
Philip Bostock, Chief Executive 

Bindu Arjoon, Assistant Chief Executive  

 

Civic Centre, Paris Street, Exeter, EX1 1JN 
Tel: 01392 277888        www.exeter.gov.uk 

Direct dial: 01392 265275 

Fax: 01392 265268 

email: sarah.selway@exeter.gov.uk 

Our ref:  
Your ref: 
 

 

To the Chair and Members  
of the Scrutiny Committee - Resources 
 

 

 

 

 
AGENDA FOR 

EXETER CITY COUNCIL 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - RESOURCES 

 

 

The Scrutiny Committee - Resources will meet on WEDNESDAY 28 JANUARY 2009, commencing 
at 5.30 pm, in the Rennes Room, Civic Centre, Paris Street, Exeter to consider the following 
business.  If you have an enquiry regarding any items on this agenda, please contact Sarah Selway, 
Member Services Officer on Exeter 265275. 
 
Entry to the Civic Centre can be gained through the Customer Service Centre, Paris Street. 

 Pages 

Part I: Items suggested for discussion with the press and public present 

 

1 MINUTES  

 To sign the minutes of the meeting held on 26 November 2008. 
  

 

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 Councillors are reminded of the need to declare personal and prejudicial 
interests, including the nature and extent of such interests, in relation to business 
on the agenda, before any discussion takes place on the item.  Councillors 
requiring clarification should seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer prior to the 
day of the meeting.  
 

 

3 LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 - 
EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 

 To pass the following resolution:- 
 
RESOLVED that, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the consideration of Item 13 
on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in the paragraph 3 of Part 1, Schedule 12A of the Act. 

 

 



  
 

4 QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC UNDER STANDING ORDER 19  

 A period of up to 15 minutes will be set aside to deal with questions to the 
Committee from members of the public. 
 
Details of questions should be notified to the Assistant Chief Executive at least 
three working days prior to the meeting. Further information and a copy of the 
procedure are available from Member Services (265275) also on the Council web 
site: http://www.exeter.gov.uk/scrutinyquestions   
 

 

5 QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL UNDER STANDING 
ORDER 20 

 

 To receive questions from Members of the Council to appropriate Portfolio 
Holders. 
  
 

 

6 2007-08 USE OF RESOURCES/DATA QUALITY REPORT  

 The Council’s External Auditor, Grant Thornton, will present the report to Members – 
report circulated 
  
 

1 - 20 

MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE EXECUTIVE 

 

7 REVENUE BUDGET PROPOSALS 2009/2010  

 To consider the report of the Head of Treasury Services - report circulated 
  
 

21 - 32 

8 CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2009/2010 TO 2011/2012  

 To consider the report of the Head of Treasury Services - report circulated 
  
 

33 - 52 

9 ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY  

 To consider the report of the Head of Treasury Services - report circulated 
  
 

53 - 62 

10 CORPORATE DEBT POLICY  

 To consider the report of the Head of Treasury Services – report circulated 
  
 
 
 
 
 

63 - 68 



MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION BY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - RESOURCES 

 

11 NON-HOUSING AIM BUDGET 2009/2010  

 To consider the joint report of the Head of Contracts and Direct Services, Head of 
Treasury Services and Head of Estates - report circulated 
  
 

69 - 78 

12 RESOURCES ESTIMATES - 2009/2010  

 To consider the report of the Head of Treasury Services – report circulated 
  
 

79 - 112 

PART II: ITEM SUGGESTED FOR DISCUSSION WITH THE PRESS AND PUBLIC EXCLUDED 

 

13 RAMM PROJECT PROGRESS REPORT  

 To consider the report of the Chief Executive  - report circulated to members 
  
 

113 - 160 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING  

 
 The next Scrutiny Committee - Resources will be held on Wednesday 25 

March 2009 at 5.30 pm  
 
 

 

FUTURE BUSINESS  

 
 The schedule of future business proposed for this Scrutiny Committee and 

other Committees of the Council can be viewed on the following link to the 
Council’s website:http://www.exeter.gov.uk/forwardplan 
Councillors can view a hard copy of the schedule in the Members Room. 
 

 
 

 

Membership - 
Councillors Coates (Chair), D J Morrish (Deputy Chair), M A Baldwin, Boyle, P J Brock, Hobden, 
Martin, Newton, Noble, Prowse, Robson, Thompson and Wardle 
 

 

Find out more about Exeter City Council services by looking at our web site 
http://www.exeter.gov.uk.  This will give you the dates of all future Committee meetings and tell you 
how you can ask a question at a Scrutiny Committee meeting.  Alternatively, contact the Member 
Services Officer on (01392) 265275 for further information. 

 

Individual reports on this agenda can be produced in large print 
on request to Member Services on 01392 265111. 

 
Please remember to recycle. If you would prefer not to receive paper copies please let us 
know. Contact Member Services 01392 265197 or email member.services@exeter.gov.uk  



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

Exeter City Council 
 

Use of Resources and Data Quality 2008 
 
12 January 2009 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

               

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



Exeter City Council - Use of Resources and Data Quality 2008 
 

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved.   

 

 

 

Contents Page 

1 Executive Summary 1 

2 Use of Resources 2 

3 Data Quality 10 

Appendix A Use of Resources from 2009 14 

 

 

 

Page 2



Exeter City Council - Use of Resources and Data Quality 2008 
 

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved.   1 

1 Executive Summary 

Background and purpose of the report 

1.1 The Audit Commission’s Code of Audit Practice requires us to reach a conclusion 
on whether the Council has put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources ("VFM conclusion"). 

1.2 We described, in our Report to those Charged with Governance (September 2008), 
the areas of audit work that provided us with the assurance that contributed to our 
annual VFM conclusion.  

1.3 This report sets out our detailed findings from the two key areas underpinning the 
Conclusion: 
 

• our assessment of the Council's Use of Resources, using the Audit 
Commission's five themes and key lines of enquiry ('KLoE') criteria; and  

• our assessment of the Council’s Data Quality management arrangements, 
using criteria prescribed by the Audit Commission. 

Key messages 

1.4 The Council continues to have good Use of Resources arrangements in place during 
2007/08 .  The theme scores for 2007 and 2008 are summarised in the table below. 

 

Use of Resources theme 2007 score 2008 score 

Financial reporting 3 3 

Financial management 3 3 

Financial standing 3 3 

Internal control 3 3 

Value for money 3 3 

 
Key to the scores: 
 
• 1. Inadequate - below minimum standards 

• 2. Performing adequately - meeting minimum requirements 
• 3. Performing well - above minimum requirements 

• 4. Performing strongly - standard setting performance 
 

1.5 Further details of work to support our 2008 Use of Resources assessment are given 
in section two. 

Page 3



Exeter City Council - Use of Resources and Data Quality 2008 
 

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved.   2 

1.6 We have also assessed the Council's management arrangements for data quality as 
being consistently above minimum requirements and our data quality spot-check 
work confirmed that both of the two indicators audited were fairly stated. 

1.7 Whilst the Council has made good progress in developing its data quality 
management arrangements we have identified a number of areas where those 
arrangements could improve further.  Further details of work to support our Data 
Quality conclusions are given in section three. 

 
Way forward 

 
1.8 There have been significant changes to the review and assessment of the Council's 

Use of Resources arrangements for 2009, as part of the new Comprehensive Area 
Assessment. The new assessment framework is more demanding than the current 
one, is broader in scope and embraces wider considerations such as people and 
workforce planning and the use of natural resources. It also places more emphasis 
on outcomes for local people. The KLoE are more strategic and focus explicitly on 
achievements and outcomes rather than internal arrangements and processes. 

 
1.9 Therefore, in reporting the areas for development identified from our 2008 

assessment, we have focussed on those where it will be important for the Council to 
demonstrate effective arrangements in 2009. 

 
1.10 We will continue to work with the Council during the year to help prepare for the 

2009 Use of Resources assessment. 
 

Use of this report 

1.11 This report has been prepared solely for use by the Council to discharge our 
responsibilities under the Audit Commission Code of Audit Practice and relevant 
auditing standards and should not be used for any other purpose. No responsibility 
is assumed by us to any other person.  

1.12 This report includes only those matters that have come to our attention as a result of 
performance of the audit. An audit of Use of Resources is not designed to identify 
all matters that may be relevant to those charged with governance. Accordingly the 
audit does not ordinarily identify all such matters. 

Acknowledgements 

1.13 We would like to record our appreciation for the co-operation and assistance 
provided to us by the Council’s management, officers and members during the 
course of our audit. 

 
Grant Thornton UK LLP 
12 January 2009 

Page 4



Exeter City Council - Use of Resources and Data Quality 2008 
 

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved. 2 

2 Use of Resources 

Introduction  

 
2.1 In carrying out our audit work we comply with the statutory requirements governing 

our duties, as set out in the Audit Commission Act 1998, in accordance with the 
Code of Audit Practice (the Code). The Code requires us to issue a conclusion on 
whether the Council has proper arrangements in place for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in the use of its resources. 

2.2 The overall conclusion that we issued, in September 2008, was that the Council has 
adequate arrangements for ensuring value for money in its use of resources. This 
was derived from the conclusions that we reached on the Council’s management 
arrangements in a number of areas. We described the components of the use of 
resources conclusion and reported key messages in our Report to those Charged 
with Governance. 

2.3 We summarise in this section matters arising from our Use of Resources key lines of 
enquiry ("KLoE") assessment for 2008. 

Approach to the audit 

2.4 The assessment was carried out between April and October 2008. We reviewed the 
Council's arrangements against eleven KLoEs within the five themes prescribed by 
the Audit Commission. 

2.5 Our work was based on review of the Council's self assessment and supporting 
evidence, meetings with senior management and other key officers. We also 
considered and updated the findings from our local risk based use of resources work 
carried out during the year and from our September 2008 value for money 
conclusion, as well as the progress made in implementing the recommendations 
made by your previous external auditors. 

2008 KLoE scores 

2.6 We have concluded our 2008 KLoE assessment and our scores submitted to the 
Audit Commission have been accepted following the national quality control 
process. 

2.7 The 2008 KLoE scores, with comparative 2007 scores, are shown in the table 
overleaf. 

 

 

 

Page 5



Exeter City Council - Use of Resources and Data Quality 2008 
 

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved. 3 

 

Theme and KLoE Score 
2007 

Score 
2008 

Financial reporting 

Annual accounts 

External accountability 

 

3 

3 

3 

 

3 

3 

3 

 

Financial management 

Medium term financial planning  

Managing performance against budgets 

Managing assets 

 

3 

3 

3 

2 

 

3 

3 

3 

3 

 

Financial standing 3 3 

Internal control 

Managing significant business risks 

Maintaining a sound system of internal control 

Ensuring probity 

 

3 

3 

3 

3 

 

3 

3 

3 

3 

 

Value for money (VFM) 

Current achievement of VFM 

Managing and improving VFM 

 

3 

3 

3 

 

3 

3 

3 

 

 

2.8 The key findings in each of the themes, together with the key areas for 
improvement, are set out below. 

Financial reporting 

Annual accounts 

2.9 The Council has maintained a level 3 score for this theme confirming that the 
Council has prepared good quality financial statements, in line with the statutory 
requirements .  A small number of significant audit adjustments were identified, 
relating to the recognition of commercial rent income and the presentation of the 
Housing Revenue Account balances within the consolidated statements.  However, 
the Council worked hard to rectify these issues during the course of the audit. 

 
 

Page 6



Exeter City Council - Use of Resources and Data Quality 2008 
 

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved. 4 

2.10 The overall quality of the Council's working papers to support the 2007-08 accounts 
was good, although we made a number of requests for additional supporting 
documentation. The Council's finance team co-operated well with our audit queries 
and responded promptly.     

External accountability  

2.11 In terms of external accountability, the Council publish the agenda, reports and 
minutes for members on a timely basis. 

 
2.12 The Council do not prepare a specific annual report or a set of summary financial 

statements, instead relying on the Corporate Plan to communicate the results for the 
year and including relevant financial information.  The Council recognises that there 
is scope to improve the evidence of the current arrangements in the engagement of 
stakeholders on whether this format of reporting meets their requirements. 

2.13 'Preparation of accounts' and 'publishing reports' are key components in the 2009 
Use of Resources assessment (KLoE 1.3). It will remain important for the Council 
to: 

• continue to improve the quality of its annual accounts and effectively 
implement revised accounting requirements, including those brought about 
by changes to the SoRP and the forthcoming introduction of International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS); 

• minimise the number of additional queries required as part of the audit 
through the use of our working paper requirements list; and 

• undertake stakeholder consultation to identify what types and format of 
financial information could be externally reported. 

Financial management 

Medium term financial planning  

2.14 The council has a medium term financial plan (MTFP) in place which models 
income and expenditure over a three year period.  This is driven by the corporate 
business plan ("Planning For Our Future 2007-12") and to the overarching 
community strategy ("Exeter Vision").   

2.15 Key corporate objectives are reflected in service business plans and budgets, thus 
ensuring that business and financial planning are linked.  Key messages from the 
medium-term financial plan are communicated internally and externally through a 
variety of means, including a community forum event. 

2.16 A comprehensive and balanced revenue budget has been set and an affordable 
capital programme has been developed which is aligned with strategic priorities as 
well as being linked to the revenue budget and the medium-term financial plan.  

2.17 Project appraisals are in place for new policy and capital developments and the 
Council is regularly undertaking equality impact assessments. 

 

Page 7



Exeter City Council - Use of Resources and Data Quality 2008 
 

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved. 5 

 

Managing performance against budgets 

2.18 Overall the Council continues to perform strongly in this area.  Robust 
arrangements are in place for agreeing and managing budgets and detailed 
monitoring is undertaken on the budgets and on forecast performance.  Budgets are 
revised each quarter to reflect any changes that are required, such as approved 
budget additions or reductions in capital charges. 

2.19 Monitoring reports included financial and non-financial data, and there is member 
involvement in the monitoring arrangements.  The Council has established member 
working groups where it has been considered that more detailed assurance is 
required.  Monitoring is risk-based, with a focus on areas of income and expenditure 
where changes will have most impact on the Council, for example, concessionary 
fares and car park income.  

2.20 Progress in achieving planned savings and efficiency gains is regularly reported to 
senior management and a backward-looking efficiency statement is considered by 
the Executive team on an annual basis. The planned efficiency savings, including the 
Gershon efficiency savings, have also been reported to members. 

Managing assets 

2.21 For 2007-08, our assessment of the Council for this KLOE has improved its score 
to a level 3.  The Council has an up-to-date corporate capital strategy which is linked 
to the MTFP.  An asset register is maintained and arrangements are in place to 
monitor maintenance and improvement works.  An asset management plan provides 
details on the assets held and the goals for the Council and assets are reviewed to 
ensure they are fit for purpose. 

2.22 The Council has sound arrangements for managing property maintenance.  
Condition Surveys are carried out on a rolling basis by the Estate team and the level 
of backlog maintenance and the reactive and planned programmes are managed 
through the corporate Asset Improvement and Maintenance (AIM) programme and 
monitored by the AIM group. 

2.23 Portfolio responsibility for the Council’s asset management arrangements has been 
allocated to the Portfolio Holder for Economy and Tourism and scrutiny 
committees receive proposals each year and quarterly progress reports.  

2.24 Whole life costing and option appraisal have been used selectively, and there is an 
opportunity for the Council to ensure that all major investment and disposal 
decisions are based on these processes. 

2.25 'Integrated financial planning,' 'medium to long term financial planning,' 'financial 
governance and leadership' and 'financial monitoring and forecasting' remain as key 
components in the 2009 Use of Resources assessment (KLoE 1.1 and 1.3).  

2.26 The Council will wish to continue to develop its financial management arrangements 
and ensure that these are integrated with other corporate processes, consider the 

Page 8



Exeter City Council - Use of Resources and Data Quality 2008 
 

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved. 6 

service and financial plans of key partners and stakeholders and demonstrate how 
arrangements are leading to improved outcomes. 

Financial standing 

2.27 There have been no significant changes to the prior year assessment and we have 
again assessed the Council at level 3. 

2.28 The Council continues to have sound financial standing.  The Council holds a levels 
of general fund reserves which, at 32% of the net revenue budget, is substantially 
higher than its target of 15%.  The Council assures us that plans are in place to 
utilise these reserves to meet specific pressures in future periods but arrangements 
could be improved if specific parameters were determined for the level of reserves 
to be held on an annual basis, reflecting local risks and developments, rather than 
reporting against a fixed percentage.  This will enable the Council greater flexibility 
in its budget planning whilst maintaining a longer term rationale for the overall level 
of reserves. 

2.29 Treasury management arrangements remain robust.  However, like many other 
Councils, the Council had a number of investments with Icelandic Banks which 
have now ceased trading.  It held investments of £3 million with Landsbanki on a 
short term deposit, that was due to mature on 3 November 2008 and £2 million 
deposit with Glitnir Bank, which was due to mature in December 2008.  With the 
Council, we will continue to assess what improvements, if any, can be made to the 
Treasury Management arrangements in place to mitigate the risk of future losses, 
arising from the current reviews being undertaken on the lessons to be learnt from 
the Icelandic banks collapse. 

2.30 The Council regularly monitors its performance on collection rates for Council Tax, 
NNDR, housing rents and car park income through its performance monitoring 
arrangements and other internal reporting mechanisms.  However, it does not 
routinely review the associated costs of collection and the effectiveness of recovery 
actions, i.e. a cost benefit analysis, and should consider incorporating this into its 
debt monitoring and reporting arrangements. 

2.31 'Managing spending' forms part of KLoE 1.1 in the 2009 assessment. We will 
continue to assess the Council's financial standing but with an increased forward-
looking focus on management of financial balances along with the delivery of 
strategic priorities. 

Internal control 

Managing significant business risks 

2.32 The Council continues to maintain effective arrangements for identifying and 
managing risks and we have assessed the Council as maintaining level 3 
performance. 

2.33 The Council has a risk management strategy, which has been adopted by Members, 
that links to corporate objectives and covers strategic and operational risks.  The 

Page 9



Exeter City Council - Use of Resources and Data Quality 2008 
 

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved. 7 

Council also maintains a register of its corporate risks and this is managed through 
the risk management group.  Each risk is linked to a strategic objective, is scored for 
likelihood and impact, and assigned to a named individual.   

2.34 The risk management arrangements also include member involvement and the 
Scrutiny (Resources) Committee considers risk management issue as well as the risk 
register.  A senior officer and a member jointly champion and take responsibility for 
embedding risk management throughout the Council.  Risk management training is 
provided as needs are identified, and risk management policies, procedures and 
guidance are available on the corporate intranet. 

2.35 The Council could further improve their current arrangements by ensuring that all 
members receive adequate and regular risk management awareness training. 

Maintaining a sound system of internal control 

2.36 We have assessed the Council's arrangements for maintaining a sound system of 
internal control as level 3, which is the same as last year.  

2.37 The Council has an assurance framework in place and has assessed the system of 
control through the Annual Governance Statement, which is supported by risk 
management and internal audit.  There is an effective internal audit function at the 
Council and key control documents, such as standing orders, are reviewed on an 
annual basis. 

2.38 The basic role of an audit committee is undertaken by the Scrutiny Resources 
Committee and includes reviewing internal controls and risk management and 
receiving internal and external audit reports.    

2.39 We believe that whilst the Scrutiny Resources Committee is effective, there is scope 
to improve it further by specifically identifying and monitoring its work on risk-
related issues, assurance arrangements and its wider role of challenging the 
Executive.  

Ensuring probity 

2.40 The arrangements for ensuring probity and propriety in the conduct of business 
remain sound and the Council has retained a level 3 on this KLOE. 

2.41 The Council maintains codes of conduct for members and staff and appropriate 
arrangements are in place for monitoring compliance with standards of conduct, 
including a register of members interests, a register of gifts and hospitality and a 
complaints procedure.  The Council is proactive in raising the standards of ethical 
behaviour, and this is included within induction training as well as in internal audit 
compliance testing.  

2.42 The Council has counter-fraud and corruption policy and "whistle-blowing" policies.  
It has participated in, and made effective use of, the National Fraud Initiative data 
matching process for 2007-08.  A standards committee is in place and its terms of 
reference are included within the Councils Constitution.  Agenda's and minutes are 
available on the Council's website and an annual report is prepared, which outlines 

Page 10



Exeter City Council - Use of Resources and Data Quality 2008 
 

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved. 8 

the work of the Standards Committee during the past year as well as the work plan 
for the future. 

Arrangements could be enhanced further by ensuring that: 

• staff are provided with specific training on ethics; and 

• arrangements are assessed against the Ethical Governance diagnostics 
toolkit. 

2.43 'Principles of good governance,' 'ethical framework and culture,' 'partnership 
governance,' 'risk management,' 'counter fraud and corruption' and 'system of 
internal control' remain as key components in the 2009 Use of Resources assessment 
(KLoE 2.3 and 2.4).  

2.44 We will continue to assess the Council on these and other aspects of internal control 
but with an increased focus on the effectiveness and outcomes of arrangements, 
including the demonstration of a strong and improving culture of governance, 
conduct, risk management and internal control. 

Value for money 

Current achievement of VFM 

2.45 We have assessed the Council as retaining a level 3 for the achievement of VFM.  
Overall, the Council continues to provide value for money when compared to its 
nearest neighbours.  Council tax rates remain relatively low as are the costs of 
delivering services. In addition, the Council has a low level of unapportioned 
overheads.  Higher comparative costs in some areas, such as culture, homelessness 
and community housing, reflect the Councils commitment to these services.  
Satisfaction levels across services are relatively high.   

2.46 The key exceptions to this overall positive performance are; economic and 
community development (where other councils are spending more with lower 
deprivation levels); planning (where other councils are performing better); and the 
cost and performance of benefits and council tax administration.  However, we 
recognise that the Council is taking action to address these issues.  The Council has a 
good track record in managing its spending and has sound arrangements for 
monitoring and reporting on costs and performance.   

2.47 The Council is increasingly focussing on sustainable economic growth and 
development, tackling social disadvantage, affordable homes and delivering high 
performing and cost effective services.   

2.48 We found that the Council’s capital projects are linked to corporate priorities and 
that capital spending is closely monitored.   

Managing and improving VFM 

2.49 We have assessed the Council as retaining a level 3 for its arrangements for 
managing and improving VfM. 

Page 11



Exeter City Council - Use of Resources and Data Quality 2008 
 

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved. 9 

2.50 Improvements in the efficiency and effectiveness of services is sought through best 
value reviews and service improvement portfolios, which focus on outcomes and 
service priorities.  The Council is developing its understanding of the longer term 
impact, costs and benefits of its decision-making.  Whole life costing is increasingly 
used, particularly in procurement decisions, and environmental sustainability is 
considered where relevant.   

2.51 The Council continues to respond to local needs through a range of well-established 
public engagement mechanisms, including a citizens’ panel and has undertaken a 
range of targeted consultation exercises.  

2.52 The Council continues to exceed its Gershon savings, with cumulative savings of 
£3.287m (cashable £2.211m) over the three year period.  There are clear 
responsibilities for the efficiency agenda with heads of service challenging service 
efficiency through service improvement portfolios which applied across all areas.   
However, senior management are not regularly presented with developed action 
plans on efficiency gains and savings and this may be an area for further 
development. 

2.53 The Council has an information strategy which underpins local work on using IT 
and information to support services and service change - the Council is using, and 
plans to use, IT for proper integration of back office services, customer relationship 
management, better customer access to services, geographical mapping and 
document imaging.  IT is also fundamental in maintaining and providing 
performance and financial management information, which members and officers 
use to monitor Council performance. 

2.54 There is no distinct VFM KLoE in the 2009 Use of Resources assessment as 
arrangements for, and achievement of, VFM will be measured across all of the 
KLoEs. The Council will, therefore, need to continue to demonstrate that it is 
improving VFM for the local community. 

 

Use of resources 2009  

2.55 From 2009, the use of resources assessment considers how well organisations are 
managing and using their resources to deliver better value for money and better and 
sustainable outcomes for local people. The assessment is structured into three 
themes that focus on the importance of sound and strategic financial management, 
strategic commissioning and good governance, and the effective management of 
natural resources, assets and people. 

2.56 The assessment will use the Audit Commission's current four-point scale and there 
will be clear expectations around the demonstration of improved outcomes in order 
to perform well. 

2.57 Further details of the 2009 framework can be found at Appendix A. 

Page 12



Exeter City Council - Use of Resources and Data Quality 2008 
 

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved. 10 

3 Data Quality 

Introduction 

3.1 Producing data, which is fit for purpose, should not be an end in itself, but an 
integral part of a body's operational, performance management, and governance 
arrangements. Organisations that put Data Quality at the heart of their performance 
management systems are most likely to be actively managing data in their day-to-day 
business, and turning that data into reliable information. 

3.2 Auditors’ work on Data Quality supports the Audit Commission’s reliance on 
performance indicators in its service assessments for CPA and this will continue to 
be the case with the introduction of CAA from 2009. 

Approach to the audit 

3.3 We use the Audit Commission's three stage approach to the audit of Data Quality, 
which is summarised in the table below: 

Stage Description 

1 Management arrangements 

A review to determine whether proper corporate management 
arrangements for data quality are in place, and whether these are being 
applied in practice. The findings contribute to our VFM conclusion. 

2 Analytical review 

An analytical review of a specified selection of performance indicator 
results for the year, and selection of a sample for testing based on a risk 
assessment. 

3 Data Quality spot checks 

In-depth review of a sample of performance indicators, most of which are 
used in CPA, to determine whether arrangements to secure data quality are 
delivering accurate, timely and accessible information in practice. 

Key management arrangements findings 

3.4 We have assessed the Council's management arrangements as meeting minimum 
requirements, or above, in each of the five areas covered by our assessment. Our key 
messages are set out overleaf. 

 

Page 13



Exeter City Council - Use of Resources and Data Quality 2008 
 

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved. 11 

Governance and leadership 

3.5 The Council has put in place a corporate framework for the management and 
accountability of data quality issues.  Its commitment to data quality is outlined 
within the Corporate Plan and there is an action plan in place to cover data quality 
issues   The Head of the Policy Unit has overall strategic responsibility for data 
quality and operational responsibility for data quality is clearly defined through heads 
of service.   

 
3.6 The corporate commitment to data quality is promoted throughout the Council.  

Member involvement is achieved principally through portfolio holders. Internal 
Audit undertakes a detailed annual review of data quality at the Council, which 
includes a review of the information systems as well as individual indicators.   

 
3.7 Data quality is also included as a broad risk in the corporate risk register.    However, 

development of embedded risk processes within departments is not yet evident and 
this is being pursued during 2008-09.  

 
Policies 

3.8 There are data quality guidelines in place and these have been approved by senior 
management.  There is also an information management strategy to secure the 
quality of data recorded.  The data quality policy is available on the Council's 
intranet, along with the performance management system links.  

3.9 The corporate Policy Unit acts as the first point of call for clarification on guidance.  
Staff induction training includes reference to performance management and to data 
quality issues.  Training notes for the new performance management system include 
reference to data quality and data entry, including guidelines on rounding and 
reporting.   

Systems and processes 

3.10 The Council has a number of departmental systems that are used to collect and 
report data.  The Council has also invested in a new performance management 
system, and has established arrangements for ensuring the quality of the data input 
to it from other systems and identifying any unexpected entries and variances.   

3.11 Internal Audit reviews performance data as part of its annual audit testing processes, 
and individual performance indicators are also subjected to detailed review.  Internal 
Audit also reviews the controls surrounding the systems and a report on findings is 
considered by the corporate Management Team.   

3.12 The Council has a business continuity plan in place and this is reviewed on a regular 
basis.  Security arrangements are in place for critical systems.  However, Internal 
Audit made a recommendation about undertaking a detailed risk assessment of the 
Council's performance information systems, and this has yet to be done.   

3.13 The Council has a general data sharing protocol, and some general data sharing 
principles included within the data quality guidelines for performance data.  Internal 
Audit randomly selects and validates data received from other organisations.  

 

Page 14



Exeter City Council - Use of Resources and Data Quality 2008 
 

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved. 12 

People and skills 

3.14 The Council has considered the roles and responsibilities necessary to achieve data 
quality within departments.   Arrangements are in place to ensure that staff have the 
knowledge and competencies for their role in relation to data quality, though the 
Council has not yet formalised this by ensuring that relevant job descriptions have 
specific reference to data quality.   

3.15 Training is provided to all relevant staff as part of the performance management 
arrangements.  Copies of the procedures are available for all staff on the intranet and 
a data quality training group is under development. 

Data use and reporting 

3.16 The Council has put arrangements in place to ensure that data supporting 
performance information is being used to manage and improve service delivery.   

3.17 The data from the performance management system is formally reported, on a 
quarterly basis, to the directorate teams and all reports are available on the intranet 
for all staff to review.  Where services have been performing less well, performance 
indicators are monitored on a monthly basis.   Performance indicator data is also 
used as part of the annual budget setting process and in the production of the 
Budget Book. 

3.18 There is member involvement in reviewing corporate and service performance, 
based, in part, on the performance indicators. 

3.19 The Council has also established sound validation procedures to ensure the accuracy 
of data used in reported performance. The performance management system has a 
clear audit trail underpinning data input.  In addition, where variations to target 
occur, staff are required to provide appropriate explanatory comment.   

3.20 The Council has adopted a numerator package, which enables the Policy Unit to 
enter directly data that is applicable across the Council, thus reducing errors.  
Appropriate data sign-off arrangements are in place.  All BVPIs that are used for 
external reporting fall within the Internal Audit risk-based approach to review. 

 

Key spot-check findings 

3.21 Following our review of management arrangements we undertook an analytical 
review of a selection of performance indicators (excluding BVPIs 78a and 78b) in 
order to establish whether they were within expected variances and thus whether we 
should undertake more detailed work.  Our analytical review work identified that the 
performance indicators were within the expected variance, and that changes were 
due to real performance change. 

3.22 We therefore focused our attention on the Housing Benefit PIs (BV 78a and 
BV78b), as required by the Audit Commission guidance. Our detailed review of the 
indicators identified that they were fairly stated and we have no significant matters to 
report to you on this work. 

 

Page 15



Exeter City Council - Use of Resources and Data Quality 2008 
 

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved. 13 

 

Next steps  

3.23 The Scrutiny Committee Resources should monitor implementation of the areas for 
improvement referred to in this report. 

 

Page 16



Exeter City Council - Use of Resources and Data Quality 2008 
 

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved. 14 

Appendix A Use of Resources from 2009 

The use of resources assessment forms part of the joint inspectorates' framework for 
Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA), which takes effect from 2009. The inspectorates, 
including the Audit Commission, propose that CAA will consist of two assessments - of the 
area and of the organisations in an area. The area assessment will look at how well local public 
services are delivering better results for local people against local priorities and how likely they 
are to improve in future. 
 
From 2009, the use of resources assessment considers how well organisations are managing 
and using their resources to deliver better value for money and better and sustainable 
outcomes for local people. The assessment is structured into three themes that focus on the 
importance of sound and strategic financial management, strategic commissioning and good 
governance, and the effective management of natural resources, assets and people. The three 
themes are illustrated below. 
 
 

 
 
 
The new use of resources assessment framework is more demanding than the previous 
assessment. It is broader in scope and embraces wider resources issues such as people and 
workforce planning, and the use of natural resources. It also places more emphasis on 
outcomes of local people. The KLoE are more strategic and focus much more explicitly on 
value for money achievements rather than processes. The KLoEs in each of the three themes 
are set out in the table overleaf. 
 

Page 17



Exeter City Council - Use of Resources and Data Quality 2008 
 

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved. 15 

Managing finances Governing the business Managing resources 

1.1  Financial planning and 
financial health  

2.1  Commissioning and 
procurement 

3.1  Natural resources 

1.2  Understanding costs 
and performance  

2.2  Data Quality and use of 
information 

3.2  Asset management 

1.3  Financial monitoring 
and reporting 

2.3  Good governance and 
ethical behaviour 

3.3  Workforce planning 

  2.4  Risk management and 
internal control 

 

 
Each theme comprises of a number of underlying KLoE which are common to all 
organisations subject to a use of resources assessment under the CAA. This promotes 
consistency and demonstrates that all organisations within and CAA area are assessed in the 
same way and to the same standards. 
 
The use of resources assessment will use the Audit Commission's current four point scale 
with 4 representing the highest level of performance, as follows: 
 

Level Performance and principles implicit in the KLoEs 

1 Inadequate 

Below minimum acceptable levels of performance. Consistent with an "except for / 
qualified" use of resources conclusion. 

2 Performs adequately 

Consistent with established professional practice, meeting statutory requirements, 
operating effectively. 

Sufficient to address the KLoE demonstrating, for example organisational 
leadership and commitment, partnership working, appropriate capacity and skills, 
and informed by priorities with supporting action plans as appropriate. 

Arrangements that achieve minimum accepted levels of performance. 

3 Performs well 

Implemented effective arrangements that are forward looking and proactive in 
developing improvement opportunities and include more sophisticated measuring 
and assessment techniques. 

Outputs and outcomes demonstrate effective arrangements that have the intended 
impact, and where appropriate show evidence of effective partnership working. 

Evidence of performing consistently above minimum acceptable levels and 
achieving value for money. 

Page 18



Exeter City Council - Use of Resources and Data Quality 2008 
 

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved. 16 

Level Performance and principles implicit in the KLoEs 

4 Performs excellently 

Demonstrating innovation or best practice. 

Demonstrating strong outcomes for the community including through partnership 
working. 

Evidence of performing well above minimum acceptable levels and achieving 
excellent value for money. 

 
 

Page 19



 

 

 

 

 
 

 www.grant-thornton.co.uk 

 © 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 
 

"Grant Thornton" means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited liability partnership. 
 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm within Grant Thornton International Ltd ('Grant Thornton 
International'). Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership.  
Services are delivered by the member firms independently. 
 

This publication has been prepared only as a guide. No responsibility can be accepted by us for loss 
occasioned to any person acting or refraining from acting as a result of any material in this publication 

Page 20



EXETER CITY COUNCIL 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - RESOURCES 
28 JANUARY 2009 

 
EXECUTIVE  

10 FEBRUARY 2009 
 
 

REVENUE BUDGET PROPOSALS 2009/10 
 
 
 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 This report outlines the strategic framework within which the estimates have been 

prepared and circulated for discussion and comment during December and highlights 
the issues that will affect the actual setting of the overall level of council tax. 

 
1.2 This report also summarises the overall budget position arising from the current cycle 

of Scrutiny Committee meetings. 
 

2.  BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 At its meeting of 9 December 2008, the Executive approved a budget strategy based 

upon key assumptions including the likely level of available resources and the 
proposed new revenue bids and other identified spending pressures. This strategy, 
including the revised medium term financial plan, indicated that the Council can 
afford to fund its proposed spending plan in the short term to medium term by utilising 
some of its balances and reserves. However there are a number of spending 
pressures that the Council needed to be made aware of. In particular the impact of 
borrowing to fund the Council’s future capital programme and the reduction of income 
in some service areas will add more pressure to the revenue budget in future years. 
Implicit within the budget strategy and medium term financial plan is the requirement 
to identify ongoing cashable efficiency savings.  

 
2.2 The Government has now announced the provisional local government finance 

settlement for 2009/10 and this was in line with previous forecasts.  For Exeter the 
guideline figure is as follows: 

 

• Formula Grant  £11,998,852 (increase 0.9% against 2008/09 grant ) 
 

 The provisional settlement now indicates that in cash terms our grant will only 
increase by £105,936 against the 2008/09 grant amount of £11,892,916. 

 
3. KEY ASSUMPTIONS 
 
3.1 In producing the Council’s medium term financial plan and annual revenue budget a 

number of factors have to be taken into consideration. Economic factors outside of 
our control such as inflation, interest rates, and economic growth etc. can have a 
huge impact upon the Council’s overall financial position. Consequently it is 
necessary to make a number of assumptions on such issues so that a meaningful 
financial plan can be produced. 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 21



3.2 The following assumptions have been made with regard to the revenue budget for 
2009/10: 

 

• Pay award   2.5% 

• General Inflation  Nil (see para 3.4 below) 

• Income    5.0% (2.8% where VAT is applicable) 

• Interest on Investments 3.0%  
 
3.3 An interim pay award for the current year has now been settled. Although 

Government policy is to try and limit public sector pay increases to no more than 2% 
it is felt prudent at this stage to budget for a 2.5% increase next year. 

 
3.4 As a means of finding efficiency savings many non-pay budgets will not be fully 

increased for inflation. There will be some exceptions to this in particular where there 
are ongoing contractual arrangements in place and where the Council has to meet 
the full price increase e.g. insurance, fuel and electricity. Recently released figures 
show that UK inflation fell in October from a 16-year high, as oil, food and transport 
costs fell. The Consumer Prices Index (CPI) measure dropped to 4.5% from 5.2% in 
September. The Retail Prices Index (RPI), the alternative measure of inflation which 
includes housing costs, also fell from 5% to 4.2%, the biggest fall since 2003. This 
downward trend has also continued in November with further reductions to both CPI 
(4.1%) and RPI (3.0%). Although the Government no longer produce targets for the 
RPI it is still used to determine increases in pensions, benefits and pay negotiations. 
With regard to next year, the Bank of England has said inflation could fall below its 
target of 2% and might drop as low as 1%. With regard to the RPI many economic 
forecasters are currently predicting that the UK’s retail price index will turn negative 
next year. 

 
3.5 In November the Bank of England reduced the base rate from 4.5% to 3% and has 

subsequently followed this up in January with a further reduction to 1.5% bringing 
interest rates to their lowest level in the Bank’s 315-year history. This lowering of 
interest rates affects the City Council in a number of ways. On the negative side, the 
drop in interest rates combined with the lowering of confidence in the banking sector 
means that we have to significantly lower our investment returns on our cash deposit 
in comparison with previous years. The likelihood is that investment returns will be no 
more than 3% in comparison with returns in excess of 6% that we have achieved in 
recent years. Conversely on the positive side, the lowering of interest rates also 
means that the cost of borrowing is now also cheaper. This is particularly important to 
the City Council which is going to make use of borrowing in order to fund part of its 
capital programme.  

 
4. CONCESSIONARY TRAVEL 
 
4.1 The Government previously announced that an additional £212 million would be 

made available to local authorities to help fund the additional costs of the nationwide 
concessionary travel scheme that took effect from 1st April 2008. This additional 
funding would be paid as a specific grant rather than through the formula grant 
allocation. The Government consulted on four different options as a means of 
deciding how the grant will be allocated.  In the event, they opted for a ‘fifth option’ 
that was not favourable for the City Council. Information received from Stagecoach 
and other smaller bus operators relating to usage of concessionary bus travel during 
the period April to September 2008, indicates that the new nationwide scheme has 
resulted in a significant increase in costs for the City Council. Current predictions are 
that the funding gap could be as much as £1.3 million in the current financial year. 

Page 22



The grant allocations were initially set for the first 3 years of the new scheme so there 
is also potentially an ongoing revenue pressure beyond 2008/09. The Council is 
currently lobbying the Government together with other similarly affected authorities to 
redress this funding gap and believes that it has a very strong case. However, the 
revenue budget proposals contained in this report have made a provision for this 
potential shortfall for both 2009/10 and 2010/11 and that therefore additional 
compensating revenue savings will also need to be identified.  

 
5. PROVISIONAL LOCAL GOVERNMENT FINANCE SETTLEMENT 2009/10 
 
5.1 As indicated above the provisional settlement includes a notification of our likely grant 

for next year. The City Council’s provisional grant settlement for 2009/10 is £11.999 
million and this represents an overall cash increase of £0.106 million (0.9%) 
compared to the current year (£11.893 million).  

 
5.2 This provisional grant settlement is the same as we were originally forecasting and 

also included the provisional settlement figures for 2010/11. The indicated grant 
increase for 2010/11 is even less at only 0.8%. The attached Appendix 1 shows as a 
comparison the grant settlement figures for all Devon authorities covering the current 
spending review period. The final settlement figures will be announced later this 
month but at this stage it is not expected that they will be significantly different from 
the provisional announcement.   

 
6. FURTHER ISSUES TO BE CONSIDERED 
 
6.1 Before the Council can finally consider the appropriate level of Council Tax to be 

levied next year, there are a number of issues that require further consideration as 
follows: -  

 

• Central Government advice on the level of Council Tax 

• Future spending pressures and review of the medium term financial planning 
process 

• The level of reserves and balances 
 
7. COUNCIL TAX  
 
7.1  Council tax in England increased by an average of 3.9% in 2008/09 compared to 

4.2% in 2007/08. By way of a comparison, in 2008/09 Exeter City Council increased 
its band D council tax from £110.03 to £114.98; an increase of £4.95 (4.5%). This 
meant that Exeter had set the 5th lowest council tax out of all the other (238) English 
District Councils. 

 
7.2  The Government has already stated its intention of keeping council tax increases to 

low single figures and therefore they have previously used their capping powers to 
restrict local authorities’ budgets. This has been previously taken into account when 
formulating the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan. The latest Budget Strategy 
noted by Council in December 2008 included an assumption that council tax would 
increase by 2.9% for next year and by no more than 4.5% for the following 2 financial 
years. 

 
 
 
 

Page 23



8. FUTURE SPENDING PRESSURES AND REVIEW OF THE MEDIUM TERM 
FINANCIAL PLANNING PROCESS 

 
8.1 The Council has a medium term financial strategy that forms an integral part of its 

formal financial planning processes. The key elements of this strategy form part of 
the overall Budget Strategy that is approved by Council each year.  As a brief 
reminder the Medium Term Financial Strategy contains the following key points: 

 

• It sets out a 4 year revenue financial plan (covering the period to 2011/12) 

• It identifies the likely level of grant support from the government 

• Sets out the likely level of future council tax increases 

• Identifies future service cost variations 

• Identifies level of future investment income 

• Takes into account the revenue consequences of our Capital Strategy 

• Identifies the future amount of efficiency savings/cost reductions required for a 
balanced budget  

 
8.2 An updated revenue financial plan covering the period 2008/09 to 2011/12 is 

attached in Appendix 2. 
 
8.3 Although the Council is required to approve an annual revenue budget it does also 

need to take into account future spending pressures and the likely level of available 
resources covered by its medium term financial plan. In the medium term, assuming 
that there are no major changes in service delivery, the Council will need to identify 
significant ongoing efficiency savings in order to deliver a balanced budget within its 
overall available resources. The revised plan indicates that in addition to the £1.031 
million of savings approved for next year, a further £1.320 million of savings for 
2009/10 also have to be identified to offset the likely shortfall of funding for 
concessionary travel. Additionally, further cash savings of £2.250 million in 2010/11 
will need to be identified and delivered in order to have an overall balanced budget 
position in the medium term. This level of efficiency savings will be very challenging 
to achieve and therefore work has already commenced at looking at more efficient 
ways of working. 

 
8.4 Looking to the longer term there are a number of uncertainties and factors that could 

affect the future financial position. These include: the amount of grant support from 
central government; the level of future years’ pension contributions; potential costs 
arising from the review of service plans;  the cost of any new statutory functions;  and 
additional borrowing and revenue costs in respect of any new capital programme 
commitments. Any additional revenue costs that are not currently identified within the 
medium term financial plan will have to be met from either additional savings or the 
use of General Fund Balances.  

 
9. BALANCES AND RESERVES 
 
9.1 Previous advice to members has indicated that the General Fund Balance should 

equate to at least 15% of Exeter’s revenue budget. This policy, although reviewed 
annually, has not been changed for a number of years. The Council’s net revenue 
budget has also increased over this period of time and therefore it is now considered 
appropriate to revise the policy for the General Fund Balance such that the minimum 
level of the General Fund Balance will now be £2 million. This is considered a 
sufficient level taking into account the potential level of financial risk facing the 
Council in the medium term. The latest estimated position of the General Fund 
Balance is that it will be about £4.647 million as at 31 March 2009, equivalent to 

Page 24



28.7% of Exeter’s net revenue budget. The council’s revised medium-term financial 
plan (Appendix 2) indicates that the General Fund Balance will be reduced to £2.001 
million (11.8%) by the end of 2010/11. 

 

9.2 The Council also has other reserves that have been earmarked for specific 
purposes. The Council’s proposed revenue budget for 2009/10 makes use of 
£387,000 from the following earmarked reserves: 

 
 Transfer from/ (to) reserves    
           £ 
  

Transport Initiative      5,000 
 Planning Delivery Grant            155,520 
 Tree Management    81,920 
 Licensing    (14,380) 

Empty Homes Initiative    18,940 
 Leisure Contract   140,000 
      387,000 
 
10. REVENUE ESTIMATES 2009/10 (APPENDIX 3) 
 
10.1 The Council’s revenue estimates for next year are being considered during the 

current cycle of Scrutiny Committee meetings for the final budget report to the 
Executive on 10 February 2009.  In total, Service Committee Expenditure for 2009/10 
is £18,598,330 which is £196,500 more than the current year. A summarised 
breakdown of this increase is shown below: 

           £000’s 
  
 Service Committee Expenditure 2008/09    18,402 
 Inflation allocation            490  
 Increased cost of Concessionary Travel      1,320 
 Proposed new revenue bids – recurring         118 
 Proposed new revenue bids – non-recurring           17 
 Revenue Costs arising from New Capital Bids        119 
 Other budgetary adjustments and savings     (1,868) 
 Service Committee Expenditure 2009/10     18,598 
 
10.2 In addition there are other items to taken into account referred to as ‘below the line’ 

as they do not form part of the individual service controllable budgets. These include 
an estimate of £300,000 for net interest in respect of our overall positive cash 
balances, and transfers in respect of balances and reserves. The Council’s total 
General Fund Expenditure budget requirement for 2009/10 is planned to be 
£16,484,021, an increase of £268,848 (1.7%) compared to 2008/09. 

 
11. COUNCIL TAX BUDGET REQUIREMENT 2009/10 
 
11.1 When the Formula Grant of £11,998,852 is taken into account the resultant net 

expenditure to be financed from the council tax payers is £4,485,169 (as indicated in 
Appendix 3), an increase of £162,912 (3.8%) compared to 2008/09. 

 
11.2 Each year the Council must estimate the likely surplus or deficit position on its 

Collection Fund and any such amounts must be taken into account when determining 
the band D Council Tax amount for 2009/10. For next year the amount that must be 
taken into account by the City Council is a surplus of £24,858.  

Page 25



 
11.3 As indicated above it is proposed that the net expenditure to be funded by council tax 

payers for 2009/10 is £4,485,169. The surplus of £24,858 must be deducted from this 
amount to give a revised amount to be funded of £4,460,311. When the tax base of 
37,700 divides this amount, the proposed band D council tax for 2009/10 will be 
£118.31, an increase of £3.33 (2.9%) compared with the 2008/09 band D amount of 
£114.98.   

 
12. SUMMARY 
 
12.1 Although the final grant settlement figures from the Government are not expected to 

be available until the end of January it is unlikely that they will be significantly 
different from the provisional settlement figures used elsewhere in this report. Based 
on this and the proposed revenue estimates presented to each Scrutiny Committee 
the proposed council tax increase for next year will be 2.9%.  

 
13. RECOMMENDATION 
 
13.1 That Scrutiny Committee - Resources considers the recommendation it wishes to 

make to the Executive on the Draft Revenue budget proposals for 2009/10 and the 
recommended minimum level for the General Fund Working Balance proposed at 
£2 million. 

 
 
HEAD OF TREASURY SERVICES 

 

CORPORATE SERVICES DIRECTORATE 
 
 
 
 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended) 
Background papers used in compiling this report: 
None 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 26



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX

 1

F
O
R
M

U
L
A
 G

R
A
N
T
 I
N
C
R
E
A
S
E
S
 -
 D

E
V
O
N
 A

U
T
H
O
R
IT

IE
S

A
d
ju

s
te

d
 

A
c
tu

a
l

P
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l

P
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l

G
ra

n
t 
In

c
re

a
s
e

G
ra

n
t

G
ra

n
t

G
ra

n
t

G
ra

n
t

2
0
0
7
/0

8
 -
 2

0
1
0
/1

1

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

2
0
0
7
/0

8
2
0
0
8
/0

9
In

c
re

a
s
e

2
0
0
9
/1

0
In

c
re

a
s
e

2
0
1
0
/1

1
In

c
re

a
s
e

£
m

£
m

%
£
m

%
£
m

%
£
m

%

D
e
v
o
n

1
3
5
.4
3
1

1
4
5
.6
3
5

7
.5
%

1
5
3
.3
3
4

5
.3
%

1
6
1
.4
4
7

5
.3
%

2
6
.0
1
6

1
9
.2
%

P
ly
m
o
u
th

9
6
.9
3
3

1
0
0
.7
2
9

3
.9
%

1
0
3
.5
2
0

2
.8
%

1
0
6
.0
6
4

2
.5
%

9
.1
3
1

9
.4
%

T
o
rb
a
y

4
9
.1
2
7

5
3
.3
6
5

8
.6
%

5
6
.3
1
2

5
.5
%

5
9
.1
4
7

5
.0
%

1
0
.0
2
0

2
0
.4
%

E
a
s
t 
D
e
v
o
n

7
.7
2
6

7
.8
1
0

1
.1
%

7
.9
4
8

1
.8
%

8
.1
5
7

2
.6
%

0
.4
3
1

5
.6
%

E
x
e
te

r
1
1
.7

2
9

1
1
.8

9
3

1
.4

%
1
1
.9

9
9

0
.9

%
1
2
.0

8
9

0
.8

%
0
.3

6
0

3
.1

%

M
id
 D
e
v
o
n

5
.8
1
8

5
.9
3
8

2
.1
%

6
.0
5
9

2
.0
%

6
.1
8
6

2
.1
%

0
.3
6
8

6
.3
%

N
o
rt
h
 D
e
v
o
n

7
.7
5
0

7
.9
2
5

2
.3
%

8
.1
0
3

2
.2
%

8
.2
8
7

2
.3
%

0
.5
3
7

6
.9
%

S
o
u
th
 H
a
m
s

5
.3
9
8

5
.4
5
2

1
.0
%

5
.4
8
0

0
.5
%

5
.5
4
9

1
.3
%

0
.1
5
1

2
.8
%

T
e
ig
n
b
ri
d
g
e

9
.4
1
0

9
.5
6
4

1
.6
%

9
.7
2
2

1
.7
%

9
.9
0
5

1
.9
%

0
.4
9
5

5
.3
%

T
o
rr
id
g
e

5
.8
9
7

6
.0
7
6

3
.0
%

6
.2
5
8

3
.0
%

6
.4
3
3

2
.8
%

0
.5
3
6

9
.1
%

W
e
s
t 
D
e
v
o
n

4
.1
3
7

4
.2
0
1

1
.5
%

4
.2
6
6

1
.5
%

4
.3
4
0

1
.7
%

0
.2
0
3

4
.9
%

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
2

M
E

D
IU

M
T

E
R

M
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

P
L

A
N

(2
0
0
8
/9

-
2
0
1
1
/1

2
)

2
0
0
8
-0

9
2
0
0
9
-1

0
2
0
1
0
-1

1
2
0
1
1
-1

2

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

C
e
n
tr

a
l
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t
S

u
p
p
o
rt

1
1
,8

9
3

1
1
,9

9
9

1
2
,0

9
0

1
2
,2

7
1

L
o
c
a
l
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

B
u
s
in

e
s
s

G
ro

w
th

In
c
e
n
ti
v
e

G
ra

n
t

0
1
0
0

2
0
0

-

C
o
u
n
c
il

T
a
x

4
,3

2
2

4
,4

8
5

4
,7

0
8

4
,9

6
9

L
ik

e
ly

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s

1
6
,2

1
5

1
6
,5

8
4

1
6
,9

9
8

1
7
,2

4
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

S
e
rv

ic
e

e
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

b
a
s
e

b
u
d
g
e
t

1
8
,2

5
3

1
8
,4

0
2

1
8
,5

9
8

1
7
,5

6
7

In
fl
a
ti
o
n

5
1
9

4
9
0

4
9
5

4
6
8

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l
in

c
re

a
s
e

in
s
e
rv

ic
e

c
o
s
ts

1
,1

6
1

2
,6

7
7

7
8
2

3
0

Id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s

/
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l
in

c
o
m

e
(1

,5
3
1
)

(6
2
0
)

(5
8
)

(9
4
0
)

Id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d

R
e
v
e
n
u
e

S
a
v
in

g
s

(1
,0

3
1
)

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l
s
a
v
in

g
s

re
q
u
ir
e
d

(1
,9

0
0
)

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l
S

a
v
in

g
s

R
e
q

u
ir

e
d

to
m

e
e
t

C
o

n
c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

T
ra

v
e
l

(1
,3

2
0
)

(3
5
0
)

0

1
8
,4

0
2

1
8
,5

9
8

1
7
,5

6
7

1
7
,1

2
5

S
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
B

u
d
g
e
ts

6
3
1

F
o
re

c
a
s
t
o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d

1
,2

5
1

L
G

R
C

o
s
ts

in
c
lu

d
in

g
m

o
b
ile

w
o
rk

in
g

1
,0

0
0

2
0
,2

8
4

1
9
,5

9
8

1
7
,5

6
7

1
7
,1

2
5

O
th

e
r

fu
n

d
in

g

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t
in

te
re

s
t

(8
0
0
)

(3
0
0
)

(2
5
0
)

(2
0
0
)

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n

to
/
(f

ro
m

)
e
a
rm

a
rk

e
d

re
s
e
rv

e
s

(4
6
4
)

(3
8
7
)

0
0

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n

to
/
(f

ro
m

)
b
a
la

n
c
e
s

-
O

th
e
r

(2
,8

0
5
)

(2
,3

2
7
)

(3
1
9
)

3
1
5

(4
,0

6
9
)

(3
,0

1
4
)

(5
6
9
)

1
1
5

T
o

ta
l
N

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

1
6
,2

1
5

1
6
,5

8
4

1
6
,9

9
8

1
7
,2

4
0

0
0

(0
)

1

O
p
e
n
in

g
G

e
n
e
ra

l
F

u
n
d

B
a
la

n
c
e

7
,4

5
2

4
,6

4
7

2
,3

2
0

2
,0

0
1

C
lo

s
in

g
G

e
n
e
ra

l
F

u
n
d

B
a
la

n
c
e

4
,6

4
7

2
,3

2
0

2
,0

0
1

2
,3

1
6

B
a
la

n
c
e

a
s

a
p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

b
u
d
g
e
t

2
8
.7

%
1
4
.0

%
1
1
.8

%
1
3
.4

%

Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

 

D
R

A
F

T
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 F
U

N
D

 E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
S

2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0

B
U

D
G

E
T

B
U

D
G

E
T

£
£

£
%

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 -

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

1
6
,6

7
7
,7

9
0

1
7
,1

1
6
,1

6
0

4
3
8
,3

7
0

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 -

 E
c
o
n

o
m

y
1
,5

4
3
,8

2
0

1
,4

0
4
,4

4
0

(1
3
9
,3

8
0
)

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 -

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

5
,7

3
3
,9

9
0

6
,6

9
3
,6

0
0

9
5
9
,6

1
0

L
e

s
s
 n

o
ti
o
n

a
l 
c
a

p
it
a

l 
c
h

a
rg

e
s

(2
,9

3
2
,1

9
0
)

(3
,1

7
4
,7

5
0
)

(2
4
2
,5

6
0
)

F
R

S
 1

7
 P

e
n
s
io

n
 A

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

t
6
8
8
,2

4
0

1
,2

7
1
,6

3
0

5
8
3
,3

9
0

D
e

fe
rr

e
d

 C
h
a

rg
e
s

(3
,3

0
9
,8

2
0
)

(2
,3

9
2
,7

5
0
)

9
1
7
,0

7
0

S
a

v
in

g
s
 t

o
 b

e
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d

(1
,3

2
0
,0

0
0
)

(1
,3

2
0
,0

0
0
)

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
S

  
T

O
T

A
L

1
8
,4

0
1
,8

3
0

1
9
,5

9
8
,3

3
0

1
,1

9
6
,5

0
0

6
.5

%

N
e

t 
In

te
re

s
t

(1
,3

0
0
,0

0
0
)

(3
0
0
,0

0
0
)

1
,0

0
0
,0

0
0

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 G

ro
w

th
 I
n

c
e
n
ti
v
e
 G

ra
n

t
0

(1
0
0
,0

0
0
)

(1
0
0
,0

0
0
)

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
S

  
N

E
T

 E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

1
7
,1

0
1
,8

3
0

1
9
,1

9
8
,3

3
0

2
,0

9
6
,5

0
0

1
2
.3

%

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
to

/(
fr

o
m

) 
w

o
rk

in
g
 b

a
la

n
c
e

(4
2
4
,7

2
7
)

(2
,3

2
7
,3

0
9
)

(1
,9

0
2
,5

8
2
)

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
to

/(
fr

o
m

) 
e
a

rm
a

rk
e

d
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
s

(4
6
1
,9

3
0
)

(3
8
7
,0

0
0
)

7
4
,9

3
0

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 E

X
P

E
N

D
IT

U
R

E
1

6
,2

1
5
,1

7
3

1
6
,4

8
4
,0

2
1

2
6
8
,8

4
8

1
.7

%

F
o

rm
u

la
 G

ra
n
t

(1
1

,8
9
2
,9

1
6
)

(1
1
,9

9
8
,8

5
2
)

(1
0
5
,9

3
6
)

0
.9

%

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 T
A

X
 N

E
T

 E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

4
,3

2
2
,2

5
7

4
,4

8
5
,1

6
9

1
6
2
,9

1
2

3
.8

%

C
H

A
N

G
E

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



EXETER CITY COUNCIL 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - RESOURCES 
28 JANUARY 2009 

 
EXECUTIVE 

10 FEBRUARY 2009 
 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME (2009/10 – 2011/12) 
 
 
 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 To approve the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account Capital Programmes for 
2009/10 along with schemes identified for the following two years.   
 

2. BACKGROUND 
 

2.1 
 
 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

In accordance with the Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities, the 
Council is required to prepare three-year capital expenditure plans and consider the 
affordability of its capital investment during all the years in which it will have a financial 
impact on the authority. 
 
The key objectives of the Prudential Code are to ensure that the capital investment plans 
of local authorities are affordable, prudent and sustainable and in considering its 
programme for capital investment, the Council is therefore required to have regard to: 
 
- Affordability, e.g. implications for Council Tax and rent levels 
- Prudence and sustainability, e.g. implications for external borrowing 
- Value for money, e.g. option appraisal 
- Stewardship of assets, e.g. asset management planning 
- Service objectives, e.g. strategic planning for the authority 
- Practicality, e.g. achievability of the forward plans 

3. 
 
3.1 
 
 
 

AVAILABLE CAPITAL RESOURCES 
 
In considering the affordability of the Council’s capital plans, the authority is required to 
consider all of the resources currently available to it and estimated resources for the 
future. 
 

3.2 Together with money from the Council’s own capital receipts and capital reserves, the 
annual capital programme is financed from Government grants, Section 106 monies, 
partnership funding and other external grants and contributions.  If necessary, the Council 
may borrow to supplement these funds. 
 

3.3 
 
 

Under the prudential capital finance system, individual authorities are responsible for 
deciding the level of their affordable borrowing.  The system is designed to encourage 
authorities that need, and can afford, to borrow for capital investment to do so. 
 

3.4 The Council must ensure that any borrowing decisions remain affordable and to this end, 
has to adopt a number of prudential indicators, which are set out in the Prudential Code 
for Capital Finance in Local Authorities, developed by CIPFA.  A report to the Executive 
setting out the Council’s Prudential Indicators will be presented at the February meeting 
along with the overall budget. 

Agenda Item 8

Page 33



 
3.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.6 
 
 
 
3.7 

General Fund Available Resources 
 
The Council will carry forward no unapplied General Fund capital receipts into 2009/10 as 
the unapplied capital receipts will be fully utilised by the 2008/09 capital programme and 
the Council will need to borrow in order to achieve the programme.  Appendix 1 sets out 
the use of the resources available in respect of the General Fund. 
 
Based upon the assumption that 70% of the Capital Programme will be spent in the 
financial year it is approved, it is forecast that the Council will have to use borrowing for 
capital purposes from 2008/09 onwards. 
 
A borrowing requirement of £20 million has been identified over the next four financial 
years, which will have an ongoing impact on the Council Tax.  The current revenue cost 
of borrowing is approximately £65,000 for each £1 million that is borrowed.  The 
affordability of the General Fund capital programme is ultimately decided by the 
incremental impact of capital investment decisions on the Council Tax. 
 

3.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.9 

Housing Revenue Account Available Resources 
 
All usable capital receipts will be utilised in 2008/09.  The capital programme for 2009/10 
will be funded from the Major Repairs Allowance, Revenue Contribution, any capital 
receipts generated in the period and use of part of the HRA working balance.  Appendix 2 
sets out the use of the resources available in respect of the HRA. 
 
Based upon the medium term financial plan it is projected that borrowing will not need to 
commence until 2010/11 for HRA capital purposes, at which point the borrowing costs will 
have an incremental impact on housing rents. 
 

4. GENERAL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME 
 

4.1 The proposed capital programme is set out in Appendix 3.  The table below sets out the 
total of new capital bids included within the three-year capital expenditure plans, for 
Executive to consider for approval: 
 

Status 2009/10 
£ 

2010/11 
£ 

2011/12 
£ 

Future Years 
£ 

Pre-approved 
schemes 

14,802,530 5,965,290 3,360,210 110,000 

New bids 
 

767,600 942,000 366,000 448,000 

Total General 
Fund Capital 
Programme 

15,570,130 6,907,290 3,726,210 558,000 

 
 
4.2 

 
The capital programme has been set out in line with the Exeter Vision themes, in order to 
demonstrate how the Council’s capital priorities help to contribute towards their 
achievement. Although a number of schemes contribute to the achievement of more than 
one vision theme, they have been placed under the theme to which it is considered the 
scheme contributes the most. 
 

4.3 Details of a selection of new capital bids are set out below, in order to provide an 
indication of how the Council seeks to further its capital investment. 
 

Page 34



 
4.3.1 

 
An Accessible City 
 
It is proposed that funding is made available to upgrade the electrical wiring system of 
Broadwalk House car park in order to meet health and safety objectives. 
 

4.3.2 An Electronic City 
 
A range of IT capital schemes are proposed for next financial year, which will help to 
improve service efficiency and customer satisfaction.  Through the utilisation of the latest 
technology, improvements in data storage, data retrieval, communication and 
management information will be possible. 
 
Some major schemes for this year include upgrading the property condition database, 
upgrading the environmental health computer system, the corporate server replacement 
and continued development of the corporate web presence and intranet site. 
 

4.3.3 A City Where People are Healthy and Active 
 
It is proposed that funding be made available in 2010/11 to replace the athletics track at 
Exeter Arena.  Exeter Arena has established itself as a regional centre and is attracting 
over one hundred events per annum.  The existing track is designed for thirty events per 
annum and requires annual repairs to maintain an acceptable standard.   
 
The proposal is to install a superior track surface that will cater for over one hundred 
events per annum and provide up to ten years usage without any substantial repair 
costs, except annual maintenance and relining. 
 

4.3.4 A City Where the Environment is Cared For 
 
It is proposed that funding is made available from 2010/11 to 2013/14 to improve the 
environmental quality of the City Centre.  Key outcomes will be to enhance the city 
centre, support the local shops and business community and improve the pedestrian 
environment.  Potential projects include Fore Street, the Clock Tower environs and 
Northernhay Place. 
 

4.3.5 A City Where the Environment is Cared For 
 
Funding is requested for 2010/11 and 2011/12 to improve the environmental quality of 
Magdalen Road.  Key outcomes will be to enhance the city centre, support the local 
shops and business community and improve the pedestrian environment.  The need for 
such improvements were identified in the draft St Leonard’s Conservation Area Appraisal 
and Management Plan. 
 

4.3.6 A City Where the Environment is Cared For 
 
Other bids include funding for proposed Midi Recycling Banks to help improve recycling 
rates and the provision of new wheelie bins for new developments and extra bins for 
existing properties. 

 

4.3.7 Achieving Excellence in Public Services 
 
Funding has been set aside to allow urgent works within the rolling programme of 
replacement fire doors and the refurbishment of communal areas throughout the Civic 
Centre.  There will also be improvements to the storage building, roadways and 

Page 35



walkways at Belle Isle Nursery.    
 

5. 
 
5.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ACHIEVABILITY OF THE GENERAL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME 
 
In order to help improve overall delivery and monitoring of the capital programme, 
schemes have been placed within two categories, C1 and C2.  Category C1 is for those 
schemes that the Council is committed to and reasonably certain of being able to deliver 
within the planned timescales.  Conversely, Category C2 is for those schemes that the 
Council is committed to but are less certain of being able to deliver due primarily to 
factors outside of the control of the Council.  It is also acknowledged that some schemes 
will have elements within both categories. 
 

6. 
 
6.1 

TEMPORARY SUSPENSION OF CAPITAL SCHEMES 
 
The Council is still waiting for further developments regarding the £5 million it has on 
deposit with 2 Icelandic banks. It is still unclear as to if and how much of this money is 
ever likely to be returned to the Council. However whatever the final outcome is, it is 
unlikely that any of the money on deposit in Iceland will be returned in the short term. For 
this reason a complete review of the Council’s Capital Programme was undertaken with 
a view to identifying up to £5 million of capital expenditure where there is currently no 
actual commitment entered into. A report was subsequently presented to Executive on 
25 November seeking approval for the temporary suspension of capital schemes totalling 
£5.285 million. For information these are shown in Appendix 5.  
 

7. HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT CAPITAL PROGRAMME 
 

7.1  For 2009/10, the medium term financial plan provides for a capital programme of 
£5.06m.  A copy of the HRA Capital Programme is attached at Appendix 4. 
 

7.2 The HRA Capital Programme will be funded by: 
  

• Major Repairs Allowance 

• HRA Capital Receipts 

• HRA Working Balance  

• Other Grants and Contributions 

• Revenue Contributions to Capital 
 

 
£3.273m 
£0.150m 
£0.682m 
£0.075m 
£0.880m     

  

8. 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

8.1 It is recommended that the Scrutiny Committee – Resources supports and the Executive 
approves: 
 

• The General Fund capital programme for 2009-10 as set out in Appendix 3 
 

 
 

• The HRA capital programme for 2009-10 as set out in Appendix 4 
 

 
 
HEAD OF TREASURY SERVICES 
 

CORPORATE SERVICES DIRECTORATE 
 

Local Government (Access to Information Act) 1985 (as amended) 
Background papers used in compiling this report: 
None 

Page 36



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX

 1

G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 F
U
N
D

2
0
0
8
-0
9

2
0
0
9
-1
0

2
0
1
0
-1
1

2
0
1
1
-1
2

2
0
1
2
-1
3

T
O
T
A
L

£
£

£
£

£
£

C
A
P
IT
A
L
 R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 A
V
A
IL
A
B
L
E

U
s
a
b
le
 R
e
c
e
ip
ts
 B
ro
u
g
h
t 
F
o
rw
a
rd

4
,1
2
1
,7
0
7

4
,1
2
1
,7
0
7

G
F
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
re
c
e
ip
ts

5
3
1
,8
6
5

4
0
0
,0
0
0

5
5
0
,0
0
0

5
0
0
,0
0
0

5
0
0
,0
0
0

2
,4
8
1
,8
6
5

G
F
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
re
c
e
ip
ts
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 C
a
n
a
l 
B
a
s
in
 R
e
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

1
1
0
,2
9
3

5
7
4
,4
2
2

1
7
0
,1
3
2

6
8
0
,5
2
8

0
1
,5
3
5
,3
7
5

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
O
u
tl
a
y

1
7
6
,0
0
0

1
5
6
,0
1
6

7
3
6
,0
1
6

0
0

1
,0
6
8
,0
3
2

D
is
a
b
le
d
 F
a
c
ili
ty
 G
ra
n
t

2
6
9
,0
0
0

2
6
9
,0
0
0

2
6
9
,0
0
0

2
6
9
,0
0
0

2
6
9
,0
0
0

1
,3
4
5
,0
0
0

L
e
s
s
 r
in
g
fe
n
c
e
d
 f
o
r 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 F
a
c
ili
ty
 G
ra
n
ts

0
0

(2
6
9
,0
0
0
)

(2
6
9
,0
0
0
)

(2
6
9
,0
0
0
)

(8
0
7
,0
0
0
)

O
th
e
r 
- 
G
ra
n
ts
/E
x
te
rn
a
l 
F
u
n
d
in
g
/R
e
s
e
rv
e
s
/S
1
0
6

1
,5
4
6
,4
3
6

6
2
8
,3
8
2

1
1
7
,0
0
0

0
0

2
,2
9
1
,8
1
8

R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
G
ra
n
t

8
3
6
,5
1
6

4
5
0
,8
1
0

5
5
9
,0
0
4

5
5
9
,0
0
4

5
5
9
,0
0
4

2
,9
6
4
,3
3
8

L
e
s
s
 R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
G
ra
n
t 
fo
r 
p
ri
v
a
te
 s
e
c
to
r 
re
n
e
w
a
l

0
0

(5
5
9
,0
0
4
)

(5
5
9
,0
0
4
)

(5
5
9
,0
0
4
)

(1
,6
7
7
,0
1
2
)

L
e
s
s
 R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
G
ra
n
t 
a
llo
c
a
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 H
R
A

(4
9
,5
1
4
)

0
0

0
0

(4
9
,5
1
4
)

H
e
ri
ta
g
e
 L
o
tt
e
ry
 F
u
n
d

2
,4
8
1
,6
0
0

4
,6
5
3
,0
0
2

1
,1
6
4
,9
9
0

0
0

8
,2
9
9
,5
9
2

T
ra
n
s
fe
rs
 f
ro
m
 S
o
c
ia
l 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 P
o
t 
to
 t
h
e
 H
R
A

(3
3
0
,0
0
0
)

(7
5
,0
0
0
)

0
0

0
(4
0
5
,0
0
0
)

T
o
ta
l 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
v
a
il
a
b
le

9
,6
9
3
,9
0
3

7
,0
5
6
,6
3
2

2
,7
3
8
,1
3
8

1
,1
8
0
,5
2
8

5
0
0
,0
0
0

2
1
,1
6
9
,2
0
1

G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 F
U
N
D
 C
A
P
IT
A
L
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
d
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

1
4
,4
7
4
,2
2
8

1
4
,8
0
2
,5
3
0

5
,9
6
5
,2
9
0

3
,3
6
0
,2
1
0

1
1
0
,0
0
0

3
8
,7
1
2
,2
5
8

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 N
e
w
 B
id
s

0
7
6
7
,6
0
0

9
3
2
,0
0
0

3
6
6
,0
0
0

4
4
8
,0
0
0

2
,5
1
3
,6
0
0

T
o
ta
l 
G
e
n
e
ra
l 
F
u
n
d

1
4
,4
7
4
,2
2
8

1
5
,5
7
0
,1
3
0

6
,8
9
7
,2
9
0

3
,7
2
6
,2
1
0

5
5
8
,0
0
0

4
1
,2
2
5
,8
5
8

E
S
T
IM
A
T
E
D
 S
P
E
N
D
 I
N
 Y
E
A
R

1
0
,1
3
1
,9
6
0

1
5
,2
4
1
,3
5
9

9
,4
9
9
,1
4
2

4
,6
7
7
,5
3
4

1
,5
0
8
,4
6
3

4
1
,0
5
8
,4
5
8

U
N
C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
D
 C
A
P
IT
A
L
 R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
:

C
a
p
it
a
l 
R
e
c
e
ip
ts
 B
ro
u
g
h
t 
F
o
rw
a
rd

4
,1
2
1
,7
0
7

0
0

0
0

4
,1
2
1
,7
0
7

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 i
n
 Y
e
a
r

5
,5
7
2
,1
9
6

7
,0
5
6
,6
3
2

2
,7
3
8
,1
3
8

1
,1
8
0
,5
2
8

5
0
0
,0
0
0

1
7
,0
4
7
,4
9
4

L
e
s
s
 E
s
ti
m
a
te
d
 S
p
e
n
d
 i
n
 Y
e
a
r

(1
0
,1
3
1
,9
6
0
)
(1
5
,2
4
1
,3
5
9
)

(9
,4
9
9
,1
4
2
)

(4
,6
7
7
,5
3
4
)

(1
,5
0
8
,4
6
3
)

(4
1
,0
5
8
,4
5
8
)

L
e
s
s
 C
o
m
m
it
te
d
 S
p
e
n
d
 i
n
 F
u
tu
re
 Y
e
a
rs

(1
6
7
,4
0
0
)

(1
6
7
,4
0
0
)

B
o
rr
o
w
in
g
 R
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t

4
3
8
,0
5
7

8
,1
8
4
,7
2
7

6
,7
6
1
,0
0
4

3
,4
9
7
,0
0
6

1
,1
7
5
,8
6
3

2
0
,0
5
6
,6
5
7

U
n
c
o
m
m
it
te
d
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
R
e
c
e
ip
ts
 

0
0

0
0

0
0

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 2

H
O
U
S
IN
G
 R
E
V
E
N
U
E
 A
C
C
O
U
N
T

2
0
0
8
-0
9

2
0
0
9
-1
0

2
0
1
0
-1
1

2
0
1
1
-1
2

2
0
1
2
-1
3

T
O
T
A
L

£
£

£
£

£
£

C
A
P
IT
A
L
 R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 A
V
A
IL
A
B
L
E

U
s
a
b
le
 R
e
c
e
ip
ts
 B
ro
u
g
h
t 
F
o
rw
a
rd

1
,2
9
2
,9
8
0

1
,2
9
2
,9
8
0

O
th
e
r 
H
R
A
 S
a
le
s

1
0
0
,0
0
0

0
0

0
0

1
0
0
,0
0
0

R
T
B
 s
a
le
s

1
5
0
,0
0
0

1
5
0
,0
0
0

1
5
0
,0
0
0

1
5
0
,0
0
0

1
5
0
,0
0
0

7
5
0
,0
0
0

M
a
jo
r 
R
e
p
a
ir
s
 A
llo
w
a
n
c
e

3
,1
2
2
,0
3
0

3
,2
7
3
,0
4
0

3
,2
7
3
,0
4
0

3
,2
7
3
,0
4
0

3
,2
7
3
,0
4
0

1
6
,2
1
4
,1
9
0

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 C
a
p
it
a
l

8
9
5
,6
0
0

8
8
0
,0
0
0

9
2
0
,0
0
0

8
4
0
,0
0
0

8
3
0
,0
0
0

4
,3
6
5
,6
0
0

T
ra
n
s
fe
r 
fr
o
m
 G
F
 r
e
 S
o
c
ia
l 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 P
o
t

1
6
0
,0
0
0

7
5
,0
0
0

0
0

0
2
3
5
,0
0
0

E
x
te
rn
a
l 
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro
m
 u
ti
lit
y
 c
o
m
p
a
n
y

1
7
6
,5
8
0

0
0

0
0

1
7
6
,5
8
0

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro
m
 w
o
rk
in
g
 b
a
la
n
c
e

3
6
5
,6
9
0

6
8
2
,0
9
0

0
0

0
1
,0
4
7
,7
8
0

T
o
ta
l 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
v
a
il
a
b
le

6
,2
6
2
,8
8
0

5
,0
6
0
,1
3
0

4
,3
4
3
,0
4
0

4
,2
6
3
,0
4
0

4
,2
5
3
,0
4
0

3
2
,8
5
3
,8
0
3

C
A
P
IT
A
L
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 

H
O
U
S
IN
G
 R
E
V
E
N
U
E
 A
C
C
O
U
N
T

M
R
A
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,1
2
2
,0
3
0

3
,2
7
3
,0
4
0

3
,2
7
3
,0
4
0

3
,2
7
3
,0
4
0

3
,2
7
3
,0
4
0

1
6
,2
1
4
,1
9
0

H
R
A
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 -
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,7
4
9
,3
4
0

1
,4
2
4
,8
9
0

1
,3
5
8
,1
4
0

1
,2
9
5
,1
4
0

1
,2
9
5
,1
4
0

8
,1
2
2
,6
5
0

F
e
e
s

3
9
1
,5
1
0

3
6
2
,2
0
0

3
6
2
,2
0
0

3
6
2
,2
0
0

3
6
2
,2
0
0

1
,8
4
0
,3
1
0

T
o
ta
l 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 A
c
c
o
u
n
t

6
,2
6
2
,8
8
0

5
,0
6
0
,1
3
0

4
,9
9
3
,3
8
0

4
,9
3
0
,3
8
0

4
,9
3
0
,3
8
0

2
6
,1
7
7
,1
5
0

U
N
C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
D
 C
A
P
IT
A
L
 R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
:

U
s
a
b
le
 R
e
c
e
ip
ts
 B
ro
u
g
h
t 
F
o
rw
a
rd

1
,2
9
2
,9
8
0

0
0

0
0

1
,2
9
2
,9
8
0

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 i
n
 Y
e
a
r

4
,9
6
9
,9
0
0

5
,0
6
0
,1
3
0

4
,3
4
3
,0
4
0

4
,2
6
3
,0
4
0

4
,2
5
3
,0
4
0

2
2
,8
8
9
,1
5
0

L
e
s
s
 E
s
ti
m
a
te
d
 S
p
e
n
d

(6
,2
6
2
,8
8
0
)

(5
,0
6
0
,1
3
0
)

(4
,9
9
3
,3
8
0
)

(4
,9
3
0
,3
8
0
)

(4
,9
3
0
,3
8
0
)

(2
6
,1
7
7
,1
5
0
)

B
o
rr
o
w
in
g
 R
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t

0
0

6
5
0
,3
4
0

6
6
7
,3
4
0

6
7
7
,3
4
0

1
,9
9
5
,0
2
0

U
n
c
o
m
m
it
te
d
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

W
O
R
K
IN
G
 B
A
L
A
N
C
E
 R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
:

B
a
la
n
c
e
 B
ro
u
g
h
t 
F
o
rw
a
rd

2
,8
4
8
,5
9
0

2
,4
8
2
,9
0
0

1
,8
0
0
,8
1
0

1
,8
0
0
,8
1
0

1
,8
0
0
,8
1
0

2
,8
4
8
,5
9
0

U
s
e
d
 i
n
 Y
e
a
r 
fo
r 
C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

3
6
5
,6
9
0

6
8
2
,0
9
0

0
0

0
1
,0
4
7
,7
8
0

B
a
la
n
c
e
 C
a
rr
ie
d
 F
o
rw
a
rd

2
,4
8
2
,9
0
0

1
,8
0
0
,8
1
0

1
,8
0
0
,8
1
0

1
,8
0
0
,8
1
0

1
,8
0
0
,8
1
0

1
,8
0
0
,8
1
0

Page 39



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 3

S
C
H
E
M
E
S
 L
IS
T
E
D
 W

IT
H
IN
 K
E
Y
 S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IC
 T
H
E
M
E
S

L
e
a
d

F
u
tu
re

O
ff
ic
e
r

C
a
te
g
o
ry

2
0
0
9
/1
0

2
0
1
0
/1
1

2
0
1
1
/1
2

Y
e
a
rs

£
£

£
£

A
P
R
O
S
P
E
R
O
U
S
 C
IT
Y

1
B
a
s
in
 /
 Q
u
a
y
s
id
e

 D
P

C
2

1
,0
0
8
,5
2
0

2
8
7
,1
3
0

6
8
0
,5
3
0

T
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 r
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 Q
u
a
y
s
id
e
 b
y
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 

e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 l
a
n
d
 a
c
q
u
is
it
io
n

2
S
c
ie
n
c
e
 P
a
rk

R
B

C
2

7
0
,0
0
0

7
4
9
,9
1
0

T
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 t
h
e
 e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 o
f 
s
c
ie
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

C
it
y
 a
n
d
 t
o
 a
tt
ra
c
t 
in
w
a
rd
 i
n
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t,
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 c
re
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

a
 s
c
ie
n
c
e
 p
a
rk

S
u
b
 T
o
ta
l 
- 
P
ro
s
p
e
ro
u
s
 C
it
y

1
,0
7
8
,5
2
0

1
,0
3
7
,0
4
0

6
8
0
,5
3
0

0

B
A
C
C
E
S
S
IB
L
E
 C
IT
Y

1
R
e
fu
rb
is
h
 B
ro
a
d
w
a
lk
 H
o
u
s
e
 C
a
r 
P
a
rk

R
C

C
2

1
0
0
,0
0
0

#
T
o
 u
p
g
ra
d
e
 t
h
e
 e
le
c
tr
ic
a
l 
w
ir
in
g
 s
y
s
te
m
 

2
R
iv
e
rs
id
e
 V
a
lle
y
 P
a
rk
 E
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
t

P
M

C
2

1
0
,0
0
0

A
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
, 
la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 v
a
lu
e
 a
n
d
 b
io
d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 o
f 
th
is
 

a
re
a

3
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 S
ig
n
a
g
e
 -
 P
h
a
s
e
 2

R
S

C
1

4
7
,0
0
0

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 i
n
s
ta
lla
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 s
ig
n
a
g
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 

w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 m
a
in
ly
 b
e
in
g
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 i
n
 2
0
0
8
/0
9

S
u
b
 T
o
ta
l 
- 
A
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 C
it
y

1
5
7
,0
0
0

0
0

0

C
E
L
E
C
T
R
O
N
IC
 C
IT
Y

1
C
o
n
ti
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
G
IS
 S
tr
a
te
g
y

J
S

C
1

4
5
,0
0
0
#

T
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
c
re
a
ti
n
g
 a
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 
d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
 o
f 

a
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
d
a
ta
 r
e
la
te
d
 t
o
 l
a
n
d
 a
n
d
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
, 
in
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 

e
n
s
u
re
 a
c
c
u
ra
te
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 d
a
ta
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s

2
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 N
e
tw
o
rk
 I
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re

P
E

C
1

3
5
,0
0
0
#

A
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 u
p
g
ra
d
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

to
 t
h
e
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 n
e
tw
o
rk
 i
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
, 
in
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 m
a
n
a
g
e
 

th
e
 g
ro
w
th
 i
n
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 o
f 
h
ig
h
 b
a
n
d
w
id
th
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s

3
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 S
e
rv
e
r 
U
p
g
ra
d
e
s

P
E

C
1

5
0
,0
0
0
#

A
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 u
p
g
ra
d
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 u
ti
lis
e
 

n
e
w
 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
ie
s
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 h
ig
h
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 s
to
ra
g
e
 s
y
s
te
m
, 

w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 p
ro
v
id
e
 f
a
s
t 
a
n
d
 r
e
lia
b
le
 d
a
ta
 r
e
c
o
v
e
ry

4
E
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 D
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 R
e
c
o
rd
s
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
(E
D
R
M
)

J
S

C
1

7
2
,8
0
0
#

T
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 p
u
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 a
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 E
D
R
M
 s
y
s
te
m
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 

a
ll 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 m
a
y
 b
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
it
h
 a
 s
y
s
te
m
 t
o
 

im
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 c
re
a
ti
o
n
, 
s
to
ra
g
e
, 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
ili
ty
, 
c
o
n
tr
o
l 
a
n
d
 

d
is
p
o
s
a
l 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
o
rd
s
 

5
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 S
y
s
te
m
 U
p
g
ra
d
e

R
N

C
1

2
0
,0
0
0
#

T
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
p
e
rs
o
n
n
e
l 
to
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 

re
m
o
te
ly
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry

6
G
V
A
 U
p
g
ra
d
e
s

P
M

C
1

2
0
,5
2
0
#

T
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 s
o
ft
w
a
re
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 m
a
in
ta
in
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 

c
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
iv
e
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
 d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 a
c
c
u
ra
te
ly
 

ta
rg
e
t 
a
n
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 f
u
tu
re
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 r
e
fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 w
o
rk
 t
o
 m
o
s
t 
n
e
e
d

7
IT
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
ta
ff
 R
e
c
h
a
rg
e
s

P
E

C
1

1
7
6
,5
0
0

1
7
6
,5
0
0

1
7
6
,5
0
0

T
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
IT
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
e
rs
, 
w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 

in
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
c
o
m
p
u
te
r 
s
o
ft
w
a
re
, 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
w
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 a
n
d
 q
u
a
lif
y
 a
s
 c
a
p
it
a
l 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

8
P
C
 R
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

P
E

C
2

1
0
0
,0
0
0
#

T
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 r
o
lli
n
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
re
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 u
p
g
ra
d
e
s
 

to
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 P
C
s

9
S
u
n
 P
la
tf
o
rm

 S
e
rv
e
rs

P
E

C
1

3
0
,0
0
0
#

T
o
 p
u
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 a
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
fo
r 
h
a
rd
w
a
re
 r
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

S
u
n
 s
e
rv
e
rs
, 
c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 h
o
s
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
ils
 c
o
re
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 

(C
a
p
it
a
)

G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 F
U
N
D
 -
 C
A
P
IT
A
L
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
 A
N
D
 F
U
T
U
R
E
 Y
E
A
R
S

W
h
a
t 
th
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 i
s
 t
ry
in
g
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e

1

Page 41



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 3

S
C
H
E
M
E
S
 L
IS
T
E
D
 W

IT
H
IN
 K
E
Y
 S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IC
 T
H
E
M
E
S

L
e
a
d

F
u
tu
re

O
ff
ic
e
r

C
a
te
g
o
ry

2
0
0
9
/1
0

2
0
1
0
/1
1

2
0
1
1
/1
2

Y
e
a
rs

£
£

£
£

G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 F
U
N
D
 -
 C
A
P
IT
A
L
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
 A
N
D
 F
U
T
U
R
E
 Y
E
A
R
S

W
h
a
t 
th
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 i
s
 t
ry
in
g
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e

1
0
W
e
b
s
it
e
 a
n
d
 I
n
tr
a
n
e
t 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

P
E

C
1

3
9
,2
8
0
#

T
o
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 a
n
d
 i
n
tr
a
n
e
t 

S
u
b
 T
o
ta
l 
- 
E
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 C
it
y

5
8
9
,1
0
0

1
7
6
,5
0
0

1
7
6
,5
0
0

0

D
C
U
L
T
U
R
A
L
 A
N
D
 F
U
N
 P
L
A
C
E
 T
O
 B
E

1
B
ro
m
h
a
m
s
 F
a
rm

 -
 R
e
fu
rb
is
h
 C
h
a
n
g
in
g
 R
o
o
m
s

P
M

C
2

2
9
,8
0
0

R
e
fu
rb
is
h
 c
h
a
n
g
in
g
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s

2
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 R
A
M
M
 r
e
 H
L
F
 P
a
rk
s
 B
id

P
M

C
1

1
7
6
,8
0
0

T
o
 r
e
p
la
c
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 b
id
 t
o
 t
h
e
 H
e
ri
ta
g
e
 L
o
tt
e
ry
 F
u
n
d
 

in
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
H
is
to
ri
c
 P
a
rk
s
, 
in
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 a
llo
w
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

th
e
 r
e
a
r 
o
f 
th
e
 m
u
s
e
u
m
 a
n
d
 R
o
u
g
e
m
o
n
t 
G
a
rd
e
n
s

3
C
o
rn
 E
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
 E
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
ts

D
P

C
1

7
6
,5
0
0

T
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 a
t 
th
e
 E
x
e
te
r 

C
o
rn
 E
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
it
 m
e
e
ts
 t
h
e
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
o
r 
m
o
d
e
rn
 v
e
n
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 k
e
e
p
s
 p
a
c
e
 w
it
h
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 o
th
e
r 
v
e
n
u
e
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 C
it
y

4
E
x
w
ic
k
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 C
e
n
tr
e

A
C

C
2

1
9
,3
6
0

T
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 f
o
r 
fi
x
tu
re
s
 a
n
d
 f
it
ti
n
g
s
, 
o
u
ts
id
e
 s
to
ra
g
e
 h
u
t 
a
n
d
 

lig
h
ts
 f
o
r 
th
e
 g
a
m
e
s
 a
re
a
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 E
x
w
ic
k
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

C
e
n
tr
e

5
L
e
is
u
re
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t

A
C

C
2

4
0
,0
0
0

T
o
 f
u
n
d
 m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 l
e
is
u
re
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
, 

in
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
e
x
te
n
s
io
n
 w
it
h
 

D
C
 L
e
is
u
re

6
N
e
w
 S
w
im
m
in
g
 F
a
c
ili
ty

A
C

C
2

1
0
9
,8
3
0

T
o
 r
e
p
la
c
e
 t
h
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 P
y
ra
m
id
s
 S
w
im
m
in
g
 a
n
d
 L
e
is
u
re
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 w
it
h
 a
 n
e
w
 s
w
im
m
in
g
 f
a
c
ili
ty
 t
h
a
t 
w
ill
 m
e
e
t 
th
e
 g
ro
w
in
g
 

n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
th
e
 c
it
ie
s
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts

7
P
a
rk
s
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts

P
M

C
2

3
0
,0
0
0

T
o
 a
llo
w
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
re
p
a
ir
s
 t
o
 b
e
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 p
a
th
s
, 
g
a
te
s
 a
n
d
 f
e
n
c
e
s

8
P
la
y
 A
re
a
 R
e
fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
ts

A
C

C
2

1
3
7
,0
4
0

8
0
,0
0
0

C
o
n
ti
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 c
h
ild
re
n
's
 p
la
y
 a
re
a
s

9
R
A
M
 M
u
s
e
u
m
 O
ff
 S
it
e
 S
to
re

A
C

C
1

3
5
,5
0
0

T
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
 b
u
ilt
 s
to
re
 f
o
r 
th
e
 R
o
y
a
l 
A
lb
e
rt
 

M
e
m
o
ri
a
l 
M
u
s
e
u
m
 o
n
 l
a
n
d
 i
n
 E
x
to
n
 R
o
a
d

1
0
R
A
M
 M
u
s
e
u
m
 R
e
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

A
C

C
1

7
,7
7
7
,2
9
0

2
,7
3
1
,2
5
0

M
a
jo
r 
p
ro
je
c
t 
u
s
in
g
 H
e
ri
ta
g
e
 L
o
tt
e
ry
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 

s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
m
o
d
e
rn
is
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 M
u
s
e
u
m
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic

S
u
b
 T
o
ta
l 
- 
C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
a
n
d
 F
u
n
 P
la
c
e
 T
o
 B
e

8
,3
9
6
,6
2
0

2
,8
4
6
,7
5
0

0
0

2

Page 42



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 3

S
C
H
E
M
E
S
 L
IS
T
E
D
 W

IT
H
IN
 K
E
Y
 S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IC
 T
H
E
M
E
S

L
e
a
d

F
u
tu
re

O
ff
ic
e
r

C
a
te
g
o
ry

2
0
0
9
/1
0

2
0
1
0
/1
1

2
0
1
1
/1
2

Y
e
a
rs

£
£

£
£

G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 F
U
N
D
 -
 C
A
P
IT
A
L
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
 A
N
D
 F
U
T
U
R
E
 Y
E
A
R
S

W
h
a
t 
th
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 i
s
 t
ry
in
g
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e

E
S
T
R
O
N
G
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
IE
S

1
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 M
a
tt
h
e
w
s
 H
a
ll 
T
o
p
s
h
a
m

A
C

C
2

1
5
,0
0
0

T
o
 a
s
s
is
t 
T
o
p
s
h
a
m
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
 i
n
 i
ts
 e
ff
o
rt
 t
o
 

e
x
te
n
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
fu
rb
is
h
 M
a
tt
h
e
w
s
 H
a
ll

S
u
b
 T
o
ta
l 
- 
S
tr
o
n
g
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

1
5
,0
0
0

0
0

0

F
H
E
A
L
T
H
Y
 A
N
D
 A
C
T
IV
E
 C
IT
Y

1
D
is
a
b
le
d
 F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 G
ra
n
ts

R
N

C
1

4
5
0
,0
0
0

T
o
 m
e
e
t 
th
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
d
u
ty
 t
o
 p
a
y
 g
ra
n
ts
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
d
 d
is
a
b
le
d
 

p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 r
e
m
a
in
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 h
o
m
e
s

2
R
e
p
la
c
e
 A
th
le
ti
c
s
 T
ra
c
k
 a
t 
A
re
n
a

A
C

C
2

6
5
0
,0
0
0
#

T
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 a
th
le
ti
c
s
 t
ra
c
k
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 a
 

s
u
p
e
ri
o
r 
im
p
e
rm

e
a
b
le
 s
u
rf
a
c
e
 a
n
d
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 s
u
rf
a
c
e
 w
a
te
r 

d
ra
in
a
g
e

S
u
b
 T
o
ta
l 
- 
H
e
a
lt
h
y
 a
n
d
 A
c
ti
v
e
 C
it
y

4
5
0
,0
0
0

6
5
0
,0
0
0

0
0

G
C
A
R
E
D
 F
O
R
 E
N
V
IR
O
N
M
E
N
T

1
C
e
m
e
te
ri
e
s
 a
n
d
 C
h
u
rc
h
e
s
 S
to
ra
g
e
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts

P
M

C
2

5
0
,0
0
0

C
a
rr
y
 o
u
t 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
a
ir
s
 t
o
 v
e
h
ic
le
 a
n
d
 

e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 
s
to
ra
g
e
 a
t 
H
ig
h
e
r 
C
e
m
e
te
ry
 a
n
d
 E
x
w
ic
k
 C
e
m
e
te
ry

2
C
it
y
 C
e
n
tr
e
 E
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
ts

J
R

C
2

2
0
0
,0
0
0

2
0
0
,0
0
0
#

2
0
0
,0
0
0
#

4
0
0
,0
0
0
#

T
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 c
it
y
 c
e
n
tr
e
's
 

p
e
d
e
s
tr
ia
n
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 e
n
c
o
m
p
a
s
s
 P
a
ri
s
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 

M
a
rt
in
's
 L
a
n
e
, 
G
a
n
d
y
 S
tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 F
o
re
 S
tr
e
e
t

3
C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 A
re
a
 E
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
ts

R
S

C
2

2
,0
0
0

T
o
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 a
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 

to
 f
if
te
e
n
 d
e
s
ig
n
a
te
d
 c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
s
, 
m
o
s
t 
o
f 
th
is
 w
o
rk
 

h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 i
n
 2
0
0
8
/0
9

4
Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 C
e
m
e
te
ry
 R
o
a
d
s
 a
n
d
 P
a
th
w
a
y
s

P
M

C
1

1
0
,0
0
0

1
0
,0
0
0

1
0
,0
0
0

1
0
,0
0
0

T
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
 o
f 
im
p
ro
v
in
g
 c
e
m
e
te
ry
 r
o
a
d
s
 a
n
d
 

p
a
th
w
a
y
s
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 s
a
fe
r 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t

5
L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 C
a
rb
o
n
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

P
M

C
2

1
0
0
,0
0
0

1
0
0
,0
0
0

1
0
0
,0
0
0

1
0
0
,0
0
0

T
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 c
a
rb
o
n
 

d
io
x
id
e
 e
m
is
s
io
n
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
e
n
e
rg
y
 

e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
, 
re
n
e
w
a
b
le
 e
n
e
rg
y
 a
n
d
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 

in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s

6
M
a
g
d
a
le
n
 R
o
a
d
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts

R
S

C
2

5
0
,0
0
0
#

1
5
0
,0
0
0
#

T
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
M
a
g
d
a
le
n
 R
o
a
d
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
e
n
tr
e
 a
n
d
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 

th
e
 p
e
d
e
s
tr
ia
n
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

7
M
id
i 
R
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 B
a
n
k
s

R
N

C
1

1
5
,0
0
0

#
T
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
b
ri
n
g
 b
a
n
k
 s
it
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 a
n
d
 

im
p
ro
v
e
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 r
a
te
s

8
N
e
w
 W

h
e
e
lie
 B
in
s

R
N

C
1

7
0
,0
0
0

#

T
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
ll 
h
o
m
e
s
 w
it
h
 w
h
e
e
lie
 b
in
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 r
e
c
y
c
le
 f
ro
m
 

h
o
m
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
w
h
e
e
lie
 b
in
s
 t
o
 n
e
w
 

re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts

9
R
e
p
la
c
e
 W

a
s
h
 D
o
w
n
 a
t 
M
R
F
 a
n
d
 D
ra
in
a
g
e
 A
lt
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

R
N

C
1

3
0
,0
0
0

#
T
o
 r
e
p
la
c
e
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
u
n
s
u
it
a
b
le
 w
a
s
h
 d
o
w
n
 a
re
a
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 

ri
s
k
 o
f 
le
g
io
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 d
is
e
a
s
e

1
0
U
p
g
ra
d
e
 o
f 
T
u
rf
 S
e
w
a
g
e
 T
re
a
tm
e
n
t 
P
la
n
t

A
C

C
2

1
0
,0
0
0

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 t
h
e
 u
p
g
ra
d
e
 o
f 
s
e
w
a
g
e
 t
re
a
tm
e
n
t 
p
la
n
t 

in
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 p
ro
v
id
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 t
re
a
tm
e
n
t 
o
f 
s
e
w
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 a
 

re
lia
b
le
 s
u
p
p
ly
 o
f 
w
a
te
r

S
u
b
 T
o
ta
l 
- 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
C
a
re
d
 F
o
r

4
8
7
,0
0
0

3
6
0
,0
0
0

4
6
0
,0
0
0

5
1
0
,0
0
0

H
S
A
F
E
 C
IT
Y

1
C
C
T
V
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y
 -
 E
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
ts

J
R

C
1

1
5
,0
0
0

T
e
c
h
n
ic
a
l 
a
d
v
ic
e
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
e
x
p
a
n
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 C
C
T
V
 

c
o
v
e
ra
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
it
y
 t
o
 t
a
rg
e
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 c
ri
m
e
 h
o
ts
p
o
ts
  
 

3

Page 43



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 3

S
C
H
E
M
E
S
 L
IS
T
E
D
 W

IT
H
IN
 K
E
Y
 S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IC
 T
H
E
M
E
S

L
e
a
d

F
u
tu
re

O
ff
ic
e
r

C
a
te
g
o
ry

2
0
0
9
/1
0

2
0
1
0
/1
1

2
0
1
1
/1
2

Y
e
a
rs

£
£

£
£

G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 F
U
N
D
 -
 C
A
P
IT
A
L
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
 A
N
D
 F
U
T
U
R
E
 Y
E
A
R
S

W
h
a
t 
th
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 i
s
 t
ry
in
g
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e

2
P
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
C
C
T
V
 a
t 
H
a
v
e
n
 R
o
a
d
 C
a
r 
P
a
rk
 &
 B
o
a
t 
S
to
ra
g
e
 A
re
a

R
C

C
2

5
0
,0
0
0

P
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
s
ix
 C
C
T
V
 c
a
m
e
ra
s
 a
n
d
 o
n
e
 h
e
lp
 p
o
in
t 
s
ta
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

h
e
lp
 g
iv
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 s
e
c
u
ri
ty
 t
o
 u
s
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 c
a
r 
p
a
rk
 a
n
d
 

b
o
a
ty
a
rd
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s

3
R
e
p
la
c
e
 D
ig
it
a
l 
R
e
c
o
rd
in
g
 E
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 
a
t 
C
o
n
tr
o
l 
C
e
n
tr
e

R
N

C
2

3
2
,0
0
0
#

1
6
,0
0
0
#

4
8
,0
0
0
#

T
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 r
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
d
ig
it
a
l 
re
c
o
rd
in
g
 e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 

a
t 
th
e
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
c
e
n
tr
e

4
S
e
c
u
ri
ty
 M
e
a
s
u
re
s
 f
o
r 
R
iv
e
rs
id
e
 V
a
lle
y
 P
a
rk

D
H

C
2

3
,2
5
0

T
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 s
e
c
u
ri
ty
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 V
a
lle
y
 

P
a
rk
 b
y
 v
e
h
ic
le
s
 c
a
n
 b
e
 r
e
s
tr
ic
te
d

S
u
b
 T
o
ta
l 
- 
S
a
fe
 C
it
y

6
8
,2
5
0

3
2
,0
0
0

1
6
,0
0
0

4
8
,0
0
0

I
A
 L
E
A
R
N
IN
G
 C
IT
Y

1
Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
t 
th
e
 Q
u
a
y
 H
o
u
s
e
 V
is
it
o
r 
C
e
n
tr
e

R
B

C
1

5
3
,0
0
0

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 m
a
in
ta
in
 i
ts
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 

a
s
 a
 k
e
y
 v
is
it
o
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 p
o
in
t 
o
n
 E
x
e
te
r'
s
 h
is
to
ri
c
 

q
u
a
y
s
id
e
.

S
u
b
 T
o
ta
l 
- 
A
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 C
it
y

5
3
,0
0
0

0
0

0

J
H
O
U
S
IN
G
 I
N
 T
H
E
 C
IT
Y

1
P
ri
v
a
te
 S
e
c
to
r 
R
e
n
e
w
a
l 
S
c
h
e
m
e

R
N

C
2

1
0
5
,9
0
0

T
o
 a
s
s
is
t 
in
 m
a
k
in
g
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 l
e
t 
b
y
 p
ri
v
a
te
 l
a
n
d
lo
rd
s
 m
e
e
t 

th
e
 D
e
c
e
n
t 
H
o
m
e
s
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd

2
R
e
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 G
ra
n
ts

R
N

C
1

5
0
0
,0
0
0

T
o
 a
s
s
is
t 
in
 m
a
k
in
g
 p
ri
v
a
te
 s
e
c
to
r 
h
o
m
e
s
 f
it
 f
o
r 
h
a
b
it
a
ti
o
n

3
S
o
c
ia
l 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 G
ra
n
ts

S
W

C
2

2
,5
0
0
,0
0
0

1
,4
2
5
,0
0
0

2
,0
2
3
,1
8
0

T
o
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
it
y

S
u
b
 T
o
ta
l 
- 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
it
y

3
,1
0
5
,9
0
0

1
,4
2
5
,0
0
0

2
,0
2
3
,1
8
0

0

K
A
C
H
IE
V
IN
G
 E
X
C
E
L
L
E
N
C
E
 I
N
 P
U
B
L
IC
 S
E
R
V
IC
E
S

1
B
e
lle
 I
s
le
 N
u
rs
e
ry
 V
a
ri
o
u
s
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts

P
M

C
2

2
7
,7
4
0

T
o
 c
a
rr
y
 o
u
t 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 r
e
p
a
ir
s
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 s
to
ra
g
e
 

b
u
ild
in
g
s
, 
ro
a
d
w
a
y
s
 a
n
d
 w
a
lk
w
a
y
s

2
C
a
p
it
a
lis
e
d
 S
ta
ff
 C
o
s
ts

A
S

C
1

3
7
0
,0
0
0

3
7
0
,0
0
0

3
7
0
,0
0
0

T
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
c
e
rt
a
in
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
, 
w
h
ic
h
 

w
ill
 b
e
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
r 
a
c
q
u
is
it
io
n
 o
f 

a
s
s
e
ts
 a
n
d
 q
u
a
lif
y
 a
s
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 

e
n
g
in
e
e
rs
, 
a
rc
h
it
e
c
ts
 a
n
d
 s
u
rv
e
y
o
rs

3
C
iv
ic
 C
e
n
tr
e
 U
p
d
a
te
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 R
o
o
m
 A
u
d
io
 V
is
u
a
l 
E
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t

J
S

C
1

5
0
,0
0
0

#
T
o
 r
e
p
la
c
e
 t
h
e
 c
e
ili
n
g
 m
o
u
n
te
d
 h
ig
h
 r
e
s
o
lu
ti
o
n
 p
ro
je
c
to
rs
 i
n
 

e
a
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 R
o
o
m
s

4
P
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
a
 G
a
rd
e
n
 o
f 
R
e
m
e
m
b
ra
n
c
e
 a
t 
E
x
w
ic
k
 C
e
m
e
te
ry

P
M

C
1

1
5
,0
0
0

T
o
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 b
e
re
a
v
e
d
 b
y
 o
ff
e
ri
n
g
 

m
o
re
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
b
u
ri
a
l 
a
n
d
 m
e
m
o
ri
a
lis
a
ti
o
n

5
R
e
fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
C
iv
ic
 C
e
n
tr
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
a
l 
A
re
a
s

J
S

C
1

9
0
,0
0
0

#

T
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
re
fu
rb
is
h
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
a
l 

a
re
a
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
iv
ic
 C
e
n
tr
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
, 
re
p
la
c
in
g
 f
ir
e
 d
o
o
rs
, 

re
fu
rb
is
h
 s
ta
ff
 t
o
ile
ts
, 
u
p
g
ra
d
e
 l
if
t 
lo
b
b
ie
s
 a
n
d
 u
p
g
ra
d
e
 m
in
i 

k
it
c
h
e
n
s

6
V
e
h
ic
le
 R
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

P
M

C
1

6
1
7
,0
0
0

T
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 v
e
h
ic
le
s
 a
re
 r
e
p
la
c
e
d
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
a
 

s
a
fe
 a
n
d
 r
e
lia
b
le
 f
le
e
t 
is
 m
a
in
ta
in
e
d

S
u
b
 T
o
ta
l 
- 
A
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 E
x
c
e
ll
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 P
u
b
li
c
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

1
,1
6
9
,7
4
0

3
7
0
,0
0
0

3
7
0
,0
0
0

0

T
O
T
A
L
 G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 F
U
N
D
 C
A
P
IT
A
L
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E

1
5
,5
7
0
,1
3
0

6
,8
9
7
,2
9
0

3
,7
2
6
,2
1
0

5
5
8
,0
0
0

C
a
te
g
o
ry
 'C

1
' S

c
h
e
m
e
s

1
0
,8
0
4
,6
9
0

6
9
%

3
,3
2
3
,2
5
0

4
8
%

5
5
6
,5
0
0

1
5
%

1
0
,0
0
0

2
%

C
a
te
g
o
ry
 'C

2
' S

c
h
e
m
e
s

4
,7
6
5
,4
4
0

3
1
%

3
,5
7
4
,0
4
0

5
2
%

3
,1
6
9
,7
1
0

8
5
%

5
4
8
,0
0
0

9
8
%

T
O
T
A
L
 G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 F
U
N
D
 C
A
P
IT
A
L
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E

1
5
,5
7
0
,1
3
0

6
,8
9
7
,2
9
0

3
,7
2
6
,2
1
0

5
5
8
,0
0
0

P
re
-A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 S
c
h
e
m
e
s

1
4
,8
0
2
,5
3
0

5
,9
6
5
,2
9
0

3
,3
6
0
,2
1
0

1
1
0
,0
0
0

N
e
w
 B
id
s

7
6
7
,6
0
0

9
3
2
,0
0
0

3
6
6
,0
0
0

4
4
8
,0
0
0

4

Page 44



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 3

S
C
H
E
M
E
S
 L
IS
T
E
D
 W

IT
H
IN
 K
E
Y
 S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IC
 T
H
E
M
E
S

L
e
a
d

F
u
tu
re

O
ff
ic
e
r

C
a
te
g
o
ry

2
0
0
9
/1
0

2
0
1
0
/1
1

2
0
1
1
/1
2

Y
e
a
rs

£
£

£
£

G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 F
U
N
D
 -
 C
A
P
IT
A
L
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
 A
N
D
 F
U
T
U
R
E
 Y
E
A
R
S

W
h
a
t 
th
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 i
s
 t
ry
in
g
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e

T
O
T
A
L
 G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 F
U
N
D
 C
A
P
IT
A
L
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E

1
5
,5
7
0
,1
3
0

6
,8
9
7
,2
9
0

3
,7
2
6
,2
1
0

5
5
8
,0
0
0

#
In
d
ic
a
te
s
 n
e
w
 b
id
s

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
K
e
y
 T
a
b
le

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
L
e
is
u
re
 a
n
d
 M
u
s
e
u
m
s

A
C

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
T
re
a
s
u
ry
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

A
S

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

R
N

E
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 C
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r

D
H

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
E
s
ta
te
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

D
P

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
E
c
o
n
o
m
y
 a
n
d
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

J
R

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

J
S

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
IT
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

P
E

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 a
n
d
 D
ir
e
c
t 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

P
M

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
E
c
o
n
o
m
y
 a
n
d
 T
o
u
ri
s
m

R
B

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
A
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

R
C

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
P
la
n
n
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

R
S

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
H
u
m
a
n
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

S
S

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 S
o
c
ia
l 
In
c
lu
s
io
n

S
W

5

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 4

2
0
0
8
-2
0
0
9

2
0
0
9
-2
0
1
0

2
0
1
0
-2
0
1
1

2
0
1
1
-2
0
1
2

T
o
ta
l

B
/F
W
D

£
£

£
£

£

H
O
U
S
IN
G
 I
N
 T
H
E
 C
IT
Y

1
A

d
a

p
ta

ti
o

n
s

-
  

  
  

  
  

 
4

0
0

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
4

0
0

,0
0

0
  

  
  

 
4

0
0

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

 
1

,2
0

0
,0

0
0

  
  

  
 

2
A

s
b

e
s

to
s

 S
u

rv
e

y
-

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
0

0
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

2
0

0
,0

0
0

  
  

  
 

3
0

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

4
3

0
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

  

3
A

s
b

e
s

to
s

 W
o

rk
-

  
  

  
  

  
 

5
0

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

2
5

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
 

2
5

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
0

0
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

  

4
B

a
th

ro
o

m
 R

e
p

la
c

e
m

e
n

ts
-

  
  

  
  

  
 

3
6

6
,7

5
0

  
  

  
  

4
2

3
,0

0
0

  
  

  
 

4
3

6
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
,2

2
5

,7
5

0
  

  
  

 

5
C

e
n

tr
a

l 
H

e
a

ti
n

g
-

  
  

  
  

  
 

3
7

7
,6

8
0

  
  

  
  

3
7

7
,6

8
0

  
  

  
 

3
7

7
,6

8
0

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
,1

3
3

,0
4

0
  

  
  

 

6
H

o
u

s
in

g
 S

tr
u

c
tu

ra
l 

S
u

rv
e

y
-

  
  

  
  

  
 

3
5

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
3

5
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

7
C

o
u

n
c

il 
H

o
u

s
e

 E
x

te
n

s
io

n
s

-
  

  
  

  
  

 
7

5
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

7
5

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

  

8
D

e
fe

c
ti

v
e

 P
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
-

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
7

7
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1

7
7

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

9
D

o
o

r 
E

n
tr

y
 S

y
s

te
m

s
-

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
0

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

1
0

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
 

1
0

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

3
0

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

  

1
0

C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l 

T
V

 a
e

ri
a

ls
-

  
  

  
  

  
 

5
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
5

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
1

E
le

c
tr

ic
a

l 
R

e
w

ir
e

s
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

d
-

  
  

  
  

  
 

5
7

3
,5

0
0

  
  

  
  

5
7

3
,5

0
0

  
  

  
 

5
7

3
,5

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
,7

2
0

,5
0

0
  

  
  

 

1
2

E
n

e
rg

y
 C

o
n

s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
-

  
  

  
  

  
 

5
0

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

5
0

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
 

5
0

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
5

0
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

  

1
3

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

-
  

  
  

  
  

 
1

1
6

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
1

1
6

,0
0

0
  

  
  

 
1

1
6

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

 
3

4
8

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

1
4

E
x

te
rn

a
l 

W
a

lls
-

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
2

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

3
0

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

4
2

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

  

1
5

F
e

e
s

-
  

  
  

  
  

 
3

6
2

,2
0

0
  

  
  

  
3

6
2

,2
0

0
  

  
  

 
3

6
2

,2
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

 
1

,0
8

6
,6

0
0

  
  

  
 

1
6

K
it

c
h

e
n

 R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

-
  

  
  

  
  

 
9

0
0

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
1

,2
0

1
,0

0
0

  
  

1
,2

5
0

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
3

,3
5

1
,0

0
0

  
  

  
 

1
7

P
la

s
ti

c
 w

in
d

o
w

s
/ 

d
o

o
rs

 r
e

a
c

ti
v

e
-

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
8

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d

 R
e

ro
o

fi
n

g
-

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
5

0
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

2
7

5
,0

0
0

  
  

  
 

3
0

0
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
 

8
2

5
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

  

1
9

R
e

n
d

e
ri

n
g

 o
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

D
w

e
lli

n
g

s
-

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
0

0
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

2
0

0
,0

0
0

  
  

  
 

2
0

0
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
 

6
0

0
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

  

2
0

S
h

e
lt

e
re

d
 A

c
c

o
m

o
d

a
ti

o
n

4
4

4
,0

0
0

  
  

3
5

6
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

6
5

0
,0

0
0

  
  

  
 

7
0

0
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
,1

5
0

,0
0

0
  

  
  

 

2
1

U
P

V
C

 G
u

tt
e

rs
, 

D
o

w
n

p
ip

e
s

 &
 F

a
s

c
ia

-
  

  
  

  
  

 
1

0
0

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
1

0
0

,0
0

0
  

  
  

 
1

0
0

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

 
3

0
0

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

T
o
ta
l 
H
R
A
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

4
4
4
,0
0
0

  
  

4
,6
1
6
,1
3
0

  
  
 

4
,9
9
3
,3
8
0

  
  

4
,9
3
0
,3
8
0

  
  
  
  

1
4
,9
8
3
,8
9
0

  
  
 

S
C
H
E
M
E
S
 L
IS
T
E
D
 W
IT
H
IN
 K
E
Y

H
O
U
S
IN
G
 -
 C
A
P
IT
A
L
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
 A
N
D
 F
U
T
U
R
E
 Y
E
A
R
S

S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IC
 T
H
E
M
E
S

Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 5

S
C
H
E
M
E
S
 L
IS
T
E
D
 W

IT
H
IN
 K
E
Y
 S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IC
 T
H
E
M
E
S

L
e
a
d

F
u
tu
re

O
ff
ic
e
r

2
0
0
8
/0
9

2
0
0
9
/1
0

2
0
1
0
/1
1

2
0
1
1
/1
2

Y
e
a
rs

£
£

£
£

£

A
P
R
O
S
P
E
R
O
U
S
 C
IT
Y

2
C
e
n
tr
a
l 
S
ta
ti
o
n
 G
a
te
w
a
y
 E
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
t

R
S

1
0
0
,0
0
0

1
0
0
,0
0
0

S
u
b
 T
o
ta
l 
- 
P
ro
s
p
e
ro
u
s
 C
it
y

1
0
0
,0
0
0

1
0
0
,0
0
0

0
0

0

B
A
C
C
E
S
S
IB
L
E
 C
IT
Y

1
E
q
u
a
l 
O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts

P
M

3
0
,0
0
0

3
0
,0
0
0

2
G
u
id
a
n
c
e
 S
y
s
te
m
 i
n
 t
h
e
 H
ig
h
 S
tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 P
ri
n
c
e
s
s
h
a
y

J
H

2
0
,0
0
0

3
Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
W
a
lk
in
g
 S
tr
a
te
g
y

D
H

3
0
,0
0
0

3
0
,0
0
0

5
L
u
g
g
s
 F
a
rm
 F
o
o
tp
a
th
 L
in
k

A
C

2
,0
0
0

7
R
e
fu
rb
is
h
 B
ro
a
d
w
a
lk
 H
o
u
s
e
 C
a
r 
P
a
rk

R
C

3
5
0
,0
0
0

8
R
iv
e
rs
id
e
 V
a
lle
y
 P
a
rk
 E
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
t

P
M

3
0
,0
0
0

1
0
T
o
p
s
h
a
m
 F
e
rr
y
 t
o
 C
a
rr
y
 B
ic
y
c
le
s

A
C

1
3
,2
4
0

S
u
b
 T
o
ta
l 
- 
A
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 C
it
y

7
5
,2
4
0

8
0
,0
0
0

3
8
0
,0
0
0

0
0

C
E
L
E
C
T
R
O
N
IC
 C
IT
Y

1
A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
M
o
d
u
le
 t
o
 H
R
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
lin
k
 S
y
s
te
m

S
S

1
4
,8
0
0

3
C
o
n
ti
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
G
IS
 S
tr
a
te
g
y

J
S

3
0
,0
0
0

1
1
E
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 D
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 R
e
c
o
rd
s
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
(E
D
R
M
)

J
S

3
5
,0
0
0

1
5
H
ig
h
 A
v
a
ila
b
ili
ty
 S
e
rv
e
r

P
E

7
5
,0
0
0

1
6
In
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 e
L
e
a
rn
in
g

S
S

1
7
,0
0
0

2
2
P
a
rk
in
g
 F
in
e
s
 S
y
s
te
m

R
C

6
5
,0
0
0

2
4
R
A
M
M
 W
e
b
 2
.0
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts

A
C

5
0
,0
0
0

2
5
R
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
T
 R
e
p
a
ir
s

P
M

8
5
,0
0
0

2
6
S
in
g
le
 S
ig
n
 O
n

P
E

1
5
,0
0
0

S
u
b
 T
o
ta
l 
- 
E
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 C
it
y

3
8
6
,8
0
0

0
0

0
0

D
C
U
L
T
U
R
A
L
 A
N
D
 F
U
N
 P
L
A
C
E
 T
O
 B
E

2
B
ro
m
h
a
m
s
 F
a
rm
 -
 R
e
fu
rb
is
h
 C
h
a
n
g
in
g
 R
o
o
m
s

P
M

2
0
,0
0
0

5
C
o
rn
 E
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
 E
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
ts

D
P

2
8
,0
0
0

6
E
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
C
h
ill
 Z
o
n
e

A
C

5
,1
9
0

7
E
x
h
ib
it
io
n
 F
ie
ld
s
 -
 N
e
w
 S
to
ra
g
e
 S
h
e
d
s

A
C

1
3
0
,0
0
0

C
A
P
IT
A
L
 S
C
H
E
M
E
S
 T
O
 B
E
 T
E
M
P
O
R
A
R
IL
Y
 S
U
S
P
E
N
D
E
D

Page 49



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 5

S
C
H
E
M
E
S
 L
IS
T
E
D
 W

IT
H
IN
 K
E
Y
 S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IC
 T
H
E
M
E
S

L
e
a
d

F
u
tu
re

O
ff
ic
e
r

2
0
0
8
/0
9

2
0
0
9
/1
0

2
0
1
0
/1
1

2
0
1
1
/1
2

Y
e
a
rs

£
£

£
£

£

C
A
P
IT
A
L
 S
C
H
E
M
E
S
 T
O
 B
E
 T
E
M
P
O
R
A
R
IL
Y
 S
U
S
P
E
N
D
E
D

9
F
lo
o
d
lig
h
ti
n
g

R
S

1
4
,0
0
0

1
2
P
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
n
e
w
 s
w
im
m
in
g
 f
a
c
ili
ty

A
C

1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

1
6
P
la
y
 A
re
a
 R
e
fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
ts

A
C

1
1
5
,8
0
0

1
8
P
a
rk
s
, 
P
la
y
in
g
 F
ie
ld
s
 a
n
d
 G
e
n
e
ra
l 
O
p
e
n
 S
p
a
c
e
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts

P
M

6
6
5
,0
0
0

S
u
b
 T
o
ta
l 
- 
C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
a
n
d
 F
u
n
 P
la
c
e
 T
o
 B
e

3
1
2
,9
9
0

1
,6
6
5
,0
0
0

1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

0
0

E
S
T
R
O
N
G
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
IE
S

2
R
e
-c
la
d
d
in
g
 o
f 
P
a
p
e
rc
h
a
in
 S
to
re
 a
t 
th
e
 M
R
F

P
M

6
6
,1
0
0

S
u
b
 T
o
ta
l 
- 
S
tr
o
n
g
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

6
6
,1
0
0

0
0

0
0

F
H
E
A
L
T
Y
 A
N
D
 A
C
T
IV
E
 C
IT
Y

S
u
b
 T
o
ta
l 
- 
H
e
a
lt
h
y
 a
n
d
 A
c
ti
v
e
 C
it
y

0
0

0
0

0

G
C
A
R
E
D
 F
O
R
 E
N
V
IR
O
N
M
E
N
T

2
C
a
th
e
d
ra
l 
Y
a
rd
 E
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
t

J
R

6
,9
9
0

5
C
iv
ic
 C
e
n
tr
e
 C
o
n
v
e
rs
io
n
 o
f 
B
o
ile
r 
to
 D
u
a
l 
F
u
e
l

J
S

2
5
,4
0
0

6
C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 A
re
a
 E
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
ts

R
S

3
3
,0
0
0

8
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 C
o
w
ic
k
 S
tr
e
e
t

R
S

1
0
0
,0
0
0

1
0
0
,0
0
0

1
0
E
x
e
te
r 
C
o
rn
 E
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
 -
 I
n
s
ta
ll 
W
o
o
d
 P
e
lle
t 
B
o
ile
r

D
P

8
0
,0
0
0

1
1
G
e
n
e
ra
l 
O
p
e
n
 S
p
a
c
e
s
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts

P
M

1
6
,0
0
0

1
5
In
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 R
e
m
e
d
ia
ti
o
n
 o
f 
C
o
n
ta
m
in
a
te
d
 L
a
n
d

R
N

1
,9
1
0

1
6
L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 C
a
rb
o
n
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

P
M

3
2
,0
0
0

2
5
U
n
a
d
o
p
te
d
 L
a
n
d
 a
t 
E
x
w
ic
k
 -
 R
e
ta
in
in
g
 W
a
lls

D
H

3
3
,0
0
0

S
u
b
 T
o
ta
l 
- 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
C
a
re
d
 F
o
r

3
2
8
,3
0
0

1
0
0
,0
0
0

0
0

0

H
S
A
F
E
 C
IT
Y

4
C
C
T
V
 S
y
s
te
m
 E
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
ts

R
N

3
5
,3
1
0

5
In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 C
C
T
V
 C
o
v
e
ra
g
e
 a
t 
th
e
 C
iv
ic
 C
e
n
tr
e

J
S

1
8
,0
0
0

9
S
e
c
u
ri
ty
 M
e
a
s
u
re
s
 f
o
r 
R
iv
e
rs
id
e
 V
a
lle
y
 P
a
rk

D
H

1
5
,0
0
0

S
u
b
 T
o
ta
l 
- 
S
a
fe
 C
it
y

6
8
,3
1
0

0
0

0
0

Page 50



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 5

S
C
H
E
M
E
S
 L
IS
T
E
D
 W

IT
H
IN
 K
E
Y
 S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IC
 T
H
E
M
E
S

L
e
a
d

F
u
tu
re

O
ff
ic
e
r

2
0
0
8
/0
9

2
0
0
9
/1
0

2
0
1
0
/1
1

2
0
1
1
/1
2

Y
e
a
rs

£
£

£
£

£

C
A
P
IT
A
L
 S
C
H
E
M
E
S
 T
O
 B
E
 T
E
M
P
O
R
A
R
IL
Y
 S
U
S
P
E
N
D
E
D

J
H
O
U
S
IN
G
 I
N
 T
H
E
 C
IT
Y

7
S
h
a
k
e
s
p
e
a
re
 R
o
a
d
 S
it
e

S
W

6
5
,0
0
0

S
u
b
 T
o
ta
l 
- 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
it
y

6
5
,0
0
0

0
0

0
0

K
A
C
H
IE
V
IN
G
 E
X
C
E
L
L
E
N
C
E
 I
N
 P
U
B
L
IC
 S
E
R
V
IC
E
S

1
B
e
lle
 I
s
le
 N
u
rs
e
ry
 V
a
ri
o
u
s
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts

P
M

2
3
,0
0
0

1
0
H
ig
h
e
r 
C
e
m
e
te
ry
 N
e
w
 S
to
ra
g
e
 Y
a
rd
 a
n
d
 B
u
ild
in
g
s

P
M

4
0
,0
0
0

1
2
N
e
w
 S
ta
lls
 f
o
r 
F
a
rm
e
rs
 M
a
rk
e
t

D
P

4
,0
0
0

1
4
P
la
n
n
in
g
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 G
ra
n
t 
S
c
h
e
m
e
s

R
S

9
0
,7
2
0

1
6
R
e
fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
C
iv
ic
 C
e
n
tr
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
a
l 
A
re
a
s

J
S

1
7
5
,0
0
0

1
7
R
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
T
ra
c
to
r 
S
h
e
d
s

P
M

1
3
0
,0
0
0

1
9
V
e
h
ic
le
 R
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

P
M

9
5
,0
0
0

S
u
b
 T
o
ta
l 
- 
A
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 E
x
c
e
ll
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 P
u
b
li
c
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

5
5
7
,7
2
0

0
0

0
0

T
O
T
A
L
 G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 F
U
N
D
 C
A
P
IT
A
L
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E

1
,9
6
0
,4
6
0

1
,9
4
5
,0
0
0

1
,3
8
0
,0
0
0

0
0

Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



EXETER CITY COUNCIL 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - RESOURCES 
28 JANUARY 2009 

 
EXECUTIVE  

10 FEBRUARY 2009 
 

ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY  -  2009-10 

 

 

 
1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

 
1.1 To seek adoption by the Council of the Annual Investment Strategy 2009-10, as 

required under section 15(1)(a) of the Local Government Act 2003.   
 

2. BACKGROUND 
 

2.1 The Strategy was amended in December 2008 in response to the current financial 
environment and the Icelandic banking crisis. 
 

3. ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY – CHANGES 
 

3.1 There are no new amendments to the strategy. 
 

4. RISKS INVOLVED 
 

4.1 Although our strategy has always been to minimise the risk of lending money by only 
lending to those institutions with high credit ratings, the past year has proven that in 
exceptional trading conditions these credit ratings cannot be relied on.  Landsbanki’s F1 
credit rating was withdrawn a week prior to the bank going under, which was a major 
cause of the substantial losses incurred by Local Authorities across the Country.  We 
will continue to monitor credit ratings on a monthly basis.  
 

5. 
 

ETHICAL INVESTMENTS 

5.1 The Council invests in a range of different financial institutions which, in line with our 
investment strategy, are mostly banks or building societies. Our fund manager has 
produced a discussion document in respect of ethical investments, which is attached at 
Appendix B. Although this was written a few years before the current economic and 
banking crisis it is still very relevant. The fund manager will, if required, come to a future 
meeting to discuss the issue of ethical investments or any other aspect regarding the 
Council’s investments. 
 

6. CONCLUSIONS 
 

6.1 There are no further amendments and therefore the Strategy remains as approved in 
December 2008. 
 

Agenda Item 9

Page 53



 

7. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

7.1 It is recommended that the Executive recommend to Council the adoption of the 
amended Annual Investment Strategy and delegations contained therein. 
 

 
HEAD OF TREASURY SERVICES 
 

CORPORATE SERVICES DIRECTORATE 
 
 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended 
Background Papers used in compiling this report:  
1. Treasury Management Strategy 
2. Fund Manager Contracts  

Page 54



APPENDIX A 
EXETER CITY COUNCIL 

 
ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY – 2009-10 

 
 
1. Introduction 

 
1.1 The Council has regard to the ODPM’s Guidance on Local Government Investments 

(“Guidance”) and CIPFA’s Treasury Management in Public Services: Code of Practice 
and Cross Sectoral Guidance Notes (“CIPFA TM Code”). 
 

2. Investment Principles 
 

2.1 The overriding principles of the Council: 
 

• All investments will be conducted in sterling; 
• The Council’s main objective is the security of its investments; 
• The liquidity of investments is also a key objective.  

 
2.2 The council will aim to achieve the optimum return on its investments commensurate 

with the proper levels of security and liquidity. 
 

2.3 The Guidance maintains that the borrowing of monies purely to invest or on-lend and 
make a return is unlawful and this Council will not engage in such activity.  The Council 
will however seek to borrow at the most appropriate time in order to finance its future 
capital programme. 
 

3. Specified and Non-Specified Investments 
 

3.1 In-house investments are either placed in call accounts or on term deposits with banks 
and building societies in line with the limits set out in section 5.1.  No investments shall 
be made over one year.  Our external Fund manager only invests in institutions or 
money market funds with the highest possible credit rating. 
 

3.2 Specified Investments 
• All investments up to one year, in sterling with institutions set out in 5.1 below shall 

be deemed specified.   
• The types of investment include term deposits and certificates of deposits.   
• The external managers may also invest in gilts and Government fixed interest 

securities for up to one year, which will also be classed as specified. 
• Both in-house and external Fund Managers may place funds with the Government’s 

Debt Management Office. 
• Use of money markets may be made (AAA rated only) for periods of no more than a 

year by both the in-house and external investment managers. 
 

Page 55



 
3.3 Non specified Investments 

• The external Fund Manager may invest in Government fixed interest Securities for 
more than one year as they are liquid, low risk and allow for good financial planning. 

• The external Fund Manager may invest in Certificates of Deposit for more than one 
year using their professional judgement. 

• The above is subject to the requirement that no more than 50% of the external 
managers Fund may be held in non-specified investments during the year.  

 
4. Liquidity 

 
4.1 Based on its cash flow forecasts, the Council anticipates its external fund balances in 

2009-10 to range between £19m and £21m.  Daily cashflow balances will normally 
range between £0 and £12m.   
 

4.2 Giving due consideration to the Council’s level of balances over the next 
5 years, the need for liquidity, its spending commitments and provisioning for 
contingencies, the Council has determined that the external Fund Manager may hold up 
to 50% in ‘non specified’ investments during the year. 
 

5. Security of Capital: The use of Credit Ratings 
 

5.1 Credit quality of counterparties (issuers and issues) and investment schemes will, in the 
first instance, be determined by reference to credit ratings published by Moody’s and 
Fitch. No institution with less than a Fitch F1 (Moody P-1) rating will be used for any 
investment.   
 
In-house investment 
 

 Type of Institution Limit per Institution 
£m 

 Banks – UK only 
Minimum Fitch Rating F1+ short term 
Minimum Fitch Rating F1 short term and Moody’s rating P-1 
short term 
 

 
3m 
2m 
2m 

 Building Society – UK only 
Minimum Fitch Rating F1+ short term 
Minimum Fitch rating F1 short term and Moody’s rating P-1 
short term, within top 25 asset rankings 
 

 
3m 

 
2m 

 
 

 Local Authorities 
 

2m 

  

Page 56



 
 External Fund Managers 

 

 Type of Institution Limit per Institution 
£m 

 Banks  
Minimum Fitch Rating F1+ short term 
Building Society 
Minimum Fitch Rating F1+ short term 
 

 
4m 

 
4m 

  
5.2 As the Fund Managers and in-house team can both invest in F1+ institutions, there may 

be occasions when the Council has up to £7 million invested with an F1+ rated 
institution.  As this is the highest rating possible it is considered that the risk involved is 
acceptable. This would in any case now be very difficult to avoid particularly as the in-
house team is restricted to making investments to UK only institutions.  
 

5.3 Monitoring of credit ratings 
The Council subscribes to Sterling Consultancy Services, which provide a monthly credit 
rating list for the Council, as well as updates throughout the month.  The following 
monitoring is therefore in place: 
 
• All credit ratings will be monitored monthly. 
• If a downgrade results in the counterparty/investment scheme no longer meeting the 
Council’s minimum criteria as outlined in 5.1 its further use, as a new investment will be 
withdrawn immediately and the external fund managers informed of the same. 
• If a counterparty/investment scheme is upgraded so that it fulfils the Council’s criteria, 
the Section 151 Officer will have the delegated authority to include it on the lending list. 
 

6. Investments defined as capital expenditure 
 

6.1 The Council will not use or allow its external fund managers to make any investment, 
which will be deemed capital expenditure. 
 

7. Investment Strategy to be followed in-house 
 

7.1 The Council’s in-house managed funds are based on the likely cash-flow position and 
are usually for periods of up to one month. Investments will be made to ensure that cash 
flow is protected and borrowing is not required.  There may be occasions however 
where money may be invested for a longer period up to 364 days.  These will be surplus 
funds that are not required for day-to-day cash management purposes. 
 

7.2 The Council will continue to seek to utilise its Bank of Scotland reserve account (which 
is linked to base rate) and use short-dated deposits up to 3 months to ensure liquidity of 
assets for day-to-day cashflow.  Additionally, the Council’s bankers, the Co-operative 
Bank operate a Public Sector Reserve Account, which automatically sweeps excess 
funds from our general bank account into one paying a higher interest rate.  The limit on 
the account is £3 million, with interest varying depending on the amount in the account.  
The interest paid is still much lower than other investments and therefore only limited 
funds are kept in this account. 

Page 57



 
8. External Cash Fund Management 

 
8.1 Investec manages the Council’s funds on a discretionary basis. The Strategy is in line 

with the contractually agreed procedures.  These have been amended to allow the 
placement of deposits with the Debt Management Office. 
 

9. Prudential Indicators 
 

9.1 The Council sets each year, in February, prudential indicators for Treasury 
Management, to ensure that proper control of borrowing and investing is maintained.  
These indicators can be found in the Council’s budget book. 
 

10. End of year Investment Report 
 

10.1 At the end of the financial year, the Council will prepare a report on its investment 
activity as part of its Annual Treasury Report. 

 
 
 
HEAD OF TREASURY SERVICES 
JANUARY 2009 

Page 58



APPENDIX B 
 
ETHICAL INVESTMENT 
 
HAS ETHICAL INVESTMENT OR SOCIALLY RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENTS (SRI) A 
ROLE FOR CASH DEPOSITS? 
 
By Paul Cammies, Director - Client Services 
 
August  2003    
 
Many Local Authorities with responsibilities for pension funds have considered the adoption 
of investment policies for their pension funds that give priority to environmental awareness, 
including the extent to which Ethical Investment or Socially Responsible Investment (SRI) 
criteria should influence the placement or withdrawal of investments.   
 
There are two options available: 
(a) Place or withdraw investments only if they fit SRI policies; or 
(b) Adopt a policy of engagement. 
This means that more is achieved by actively engaging with offending companies to 
influence their behaviour rather than simply refusing to invest.  Clearly this approach is most 
effective where the investment is in shares (e.g. for Pension Fund) – since only a 
shareholder (or a representative body thereof) achieves the right to attend Annual General 
meetings and thus gain a forum to air criticisms of unethical activity.   
 
This article explains, some of the issues and comments on the extent, or otherwise, to which 
such criteria can be successfully applied to the investment of cash reserves. 
 
Ethical Investment means choosing investments in a way that reflects a Council’s ethical 
values.  As Local Authorities with pension fund responsibilities will well know that work done 
by the Ethical Investment Research Service (EIRIS), in respect of equities, is widely 
regarded as a benchmark for deciding on the making of investments in companies.  Usually 
such ‘values’ are defined in terms of negative criteria or positive criteria whereby 
investments are to be encouraged or avoided. 
 
Non pension fund authorities may not be so familiar with the subject, so examples of the 
criteria usually adopted are listed below. 
 

Negative Criteria 
 
Advertising complaints Intensive farming and meat sale Roads 

Alcohol production or sale Military Sensitive sites 

Animal testing Mining Size 

Financial institutions Nuclear power Third world debt 

Fur Ozone depleting chemicals supply and 
use 

Tobacco 

Gambling Pesticides marketing and manufacture  

Page 59



Greenhouse gases Political donations Transnational interests 

Health and safety 
convictions 

Pollution convictions Tropical hardwood 

Human rights Pornography and cut 18 films Water pollution 

 

Positive Criteria 
 
Animal testing policy/phase 
out 

Equal Opportunities policy Trade unions 

Basic necessities Ozone depleting chemical 
policy/phase out 

Training and education 

Community involvement Public transport and bicycles Tropical hardwood 
policy/phase out 

Disclosure Safety and protection Waste disposal 

Environmental policy South Africa Women on the board 

 
These criteria may be applied relatively easily to equities however their application in the 
context of the instruments and credits that fall within the scope of the Approved Investment 
Regulations is more problematic.  For example: 
 

UK GOVERNMENT 

 
In practice, the Government commissions weapons, raises taxes from Companies involved 
in all the areas listed earlier, builds roads etc. 
 

LOCAL AUTHORITY 

 
Local Authority may welcome the nuclear industry or the military to their areas because of 
the jobs that are created. 
 

BANKS & BUILDING SOCIETIES 

 

Financial institutions present a particular difficulty in that it will be impossible for the Council 
to ensure that funds deposited with an institution will not be on-lent to another which may not 
fulfil the authorities ethical criteria maintain a specific fund which is only used by that bank to 
lend in ethical business.  It is more usual for banks to determine that the “non ethical” 
activities of any counterparty to whom they lend (however defined), should not account for 
more than, say, 5% of that company’s profits.  Beyond this undertaking major banks (or 
similar financial institutions) will not be able to satisfy depositors as to whether the ultimate 
destination of an investment will meet a Council’s ethical policies. 
 
Building societies as mortgage lenders to individuals are traditionally viewed as not giving 
rise to ethical issues.  However, building societies will deposit surplus funds in banks which 
in turn may lend-on funds to a wide range of companies that may or may not meet the 
required ethical criteria.  With more building societies becoming banks, an investment in a 
building society instrument today could become an investment in a bank instrument in the 
future. 
 

Page 60



CASH DEPOSITS DIFFER FROM EQUITIES 
 
There are, therefore, issues with all areas in which a Council is allowed to invest in cash, 
and it is not possible when lending to the Government, another Local Authority or a building 
society or a bank, to ask for the investment only to be used for “ethical” purposes.  It would 
not be possible to exclude these areas of investment.  Looking at areas where any Council 
can invest its cash in approved investments, it seems likely that monetary instruments of the 
Government, banks, building societies and public bodies, such as Local Authorities should 
all be regarded as ethical. 
 
 

THE LEGAL ISSUES IN MAKING ETHICAL INVESTMENTS 
 
Whether or not the reader shares my views, he/she will also need to take account of the 
legal issues which impact on ethical investments. 
 
All Treasurers will know that every decision taken by a Council must comply with the 
“Wednesbury Principles”.  Put simply, the Council, in adopting any discretionary function, 
should: 
 
1. Have regard to all relevant matters which the Authority is bound to consider. 
 
2. Exclude from its considerations matters which are irrelevant to what has to be 

considered. 
 
3. Not come to a decision which is so unreasonable that no reasonable Authority could 

ever have come to it. 
 
Thus, in the context of any investment, the Council must not lose sight of the fact that, as 
stated by Lord Diplock in the Case of Bromley London Borough Council v Greater London 
Council (1982), an Council owes the Taxpayer from who it obtains monies needed to carry 
out its statutory functions, the duty to deploy the full financial resources available to it to the 
best advantage.  This clearly indicates an obligation to obtain the best financial return from 
investments which maybe available; but it is clear that the Authority has a discretion as to 
how those investments may be made – and the obligation resting upon the Authority is 
clearly that it must not, in the final analysis, come to such an unreasonable decision in 
relation to such investments that no reasonable Authority could ever have come to such a 
decision.  In the light of this fiduciary duty, it might be argued that engagement, if possible, is 
more acceptable than negative exclusion. 

 
 

SUMMARY 
 
Recent case law has shown that a Council can successfully adopt a policy for making 
decisions which have regard to ethical considerations (see R v Somerset Council ex parts 
Fewings Leyland and Downs (1993) – commonly known as the Somerset Stag Hunting 
case) provided it gives proper consideration to all the relevant issues.  For Councils with 
pension fund investment responsibilities, this may give scope for action.  For the remaining 
Authorities it seems unlikely that ethical considerations when applied to approved 
investments will be a worthwhile or practical issue. 

 

 

  

Page 61



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



EXETER CITY COUNCIL 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – RESOURCES 
28 JANUARY 2009 

 
EXECUTIVE 

10 FEBRUARY 2009 
 

CORPORATE DEBT POLICY 
 
 
 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the attached Corporate Debt Policy.  
 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The Council provides a wide range of services to its community and raises a 

significant amount of income from a number of sources including council tax, housing 
rents, recovery of housing benefit, non domestic rates and sundry debt. Corporate 
Debt is the gathering together of debt owed to the council in all of these categories to 
ensure a joined up approach to collection of outstanding monies and recovery of 
arrears.  

 
2.2 Exeter City Council is committed to improving the standard of service to its 

customers by adopting best practice in all areas of activity. The effective recovery of 
debts owed to the Council is essential in ensuring that the best use is made of public 
money. Although the Council currently has a good record with regard to the recovery 
of all its debts it does not currently have a Corporate Dept Policy that sets out its 
overall approach for the recovery of debt.  

 
3. CORPORATE DEBT POLICY 
 
3.1 A proposed Corporate Debt Policy is attached at Appendix A.  The policy is a 

statement of good practice and its aim is to: 
 

• help to minimise the overall indebtedness to the Council 
 

• ensure that a strong emphasis is given to preventing arrears from arising and 
that intervention takes place as early as possible in the recovery cycle 

 

• ensure that citizens with genuine financial difficulties are provided with the 
necessary assistance to break the cycle of debt while firm recovery action is 
taken against those who can pay 

 

• ensure a consistent corporate treatment towards recovery of debt and 
arrears. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 10

Page 63



4. RECOMMENDATION 
 
4.1 That Scrutiny Committee - Resources supports and Executive approve the Corporate 

Debt policy. 
 
  
HEAD OF TREASURY SERVICES 
 

CORPORATE SERVICES DIRECTORATE 
 

 
 
 
 
Local Government (Access to Information ) Act 1985 (as amended) 
Background papers used in compiling the report:  
None 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 64



APPENDIX A 

EXTER CITY COUNCIL 

 

CORPORATE DEBT POLICY 

 

 

1. OVERVIEW 

 
1.1  Exeter City Council provides a wide range of services to its community and raises a 

significant amount of income from a number of sources. Collecting income is a major 
part of the Council’s business and the following are the main sources of income from 
debts raised (based on 2007/08 figures) are: 

 
- Council tax - £43.4 million 
- Housing Rents - £14.4 million 
- Non Domestic rates - £56.1 million 
- Sundry debts (including for example: recovery of overpaid benefit, trade waste, 

home call alarms and service charges and rents) - £15 million 
 
1.2  The Council takes the payment of this money from our residents and businesses 

seriously and this document sets out a corporate approach to the recovery of debt.  
In summary, our policy aims to maximise the Council’s income cash-flow but 
recognises that flexibility is necessary in cases of genuine hardship in the City. 

 

2. GENERAL PRINCIPLES 

 

2.1  The following principles will apply in the management of the City Council’s debts: 
 

• That the citizens and businesses of Exeter have a responsibility to pay for the 
services they receive and the charges and rents they are liable for. 

 

• The majority of debts owed to the Council are high-priority debts and as such we 
expect that debtors will give priority to the repayment of these debts over most 
other debts that they may owe. 

 

• Methods of payment giving the best customer convenience at the lowest 
collection cost will be actively promoted by the Council.  

 

• There will be a coordinated approach towards sharing debtor information and 
managing multiple debts owed to the Council where legally and practically 
possible. 

 

• Sundry debt will be avoided wherever possible in favour of cash payments 
upfront.  

 

• Best endeavours will be used to help people who are suffering genuine hardship 
and to consider the impact of debt on them, including minimising the escalation of 
debts owed to the Council. 

 
2.2 It is recognised and accepted that the Voluntary Sector, including the Citizens Advice 

Bureau and others, have a key role to play in both the prevention of debt and the 
debt recovery process. 

 
 

Page 65



APPENDIX A 

3.  ALTERNATIVE PAYMENT OPTIONS 

 
3.1 The Council recognises the importance of offering customers a range of payment 

methods and will continue to invest in improving these.  This helps the Council 
increase its ability to maximise collection of income and ensures that customers are 
not excluded from meeting their liabilities due to restrictions on the type of payment 
methods accepted. 

 
3.2 The Council will continue to review the payment methods available to bill payers in 

order to ensure that it continues to balance value for money with customer 
expectations, convenience and accessibility.  Customer confidence in the payment 
arrangements available is critical and the Council will endeavour to ensure the 
accuracy and reliability of its income systems. 

 
4.  MINIMISE SUNDRY DEBTS 

 
4.1 Sundry debts can be difficult and costly to collect and it is important to obtain 

payments in advance of service provision wherever possible.  Guidance for service 
officers is available to support this approach.  

 
5.  ACCESS and CUSTOMER CARE 

 
5.1 The City Council is committed to ensuring that no recipient of services provided by 

the Council receives less favourable treatment on any grounds such as disability, 
ethnic origin, age, gender, sexual orientation, language, religion or belief, political or 
other opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, locality, 
property, birth or other status. 

 
5.2 We will provide clear and prompt information about bills and liabilities. The 

information we provide will show: 
 

• What the bill or liability is for 

• The amount due 

• How to make payment 

• A contact point for all enquiries. 
 
5.3 The Council will consider the merits of each individual case when deciding how to 

pursue an unpaid debt.  Following the issuing of an invoice, it may be necessary to 
issue further documentation (reminders or summonses) following non-payment, or 
because a previously agreed instalment arrangement has not been adhered to.  In 
these instances, the Council will ensure that all the information outlined above is 
included in such documents. 

 
5.4 Each debt due will be notified to the debtor  promptly and accurate records of 

amounts due and collected will be maintained. The notification, collection and 
recovery of a debt will be completed in accordance with the appropriate legislation or 
internally approved guidelines, as appropriate. 

 
5.5 Wherever possible, the Council will provide information to meet customers’ specific 

communication needs.  In doing so, the Council will seek to ensure that a customer’s 
individual preferences are documented and stored on systems in order that future 
notices can be issued in the preferred format, for example large print to corporate 
standard.  A policy and guidance document is already in place which sets out the 

Page 66



APPENDIX A 

Council’s commitment on translation and interpretation and provides information and 
advice to staff on the organisations who can be contacted to provide such services. 

 
5.6 The Council will endeavour to ensure that documents issued in respect of debt 

recovery matters meet plain English standards. 
 
5.7 Documents issued will explain the legal options open to the Council in relation to the 

stage of recovery the document relates to.  Such documentation will also clearly 
explain what the customer needs to do to avoid further recovery action being taken.  

 
5.8 The Council recognises the importance of issuing debt recovery documents in a 

timely manner and will ensure that such documentation is issued in accordance with 
statutory or internally approved deadlines. 

 
6. FINANCIAL INCLUSION - MAXIMISING CUSTOMERS’ ABILITY TO MEET THEIR 

LIABILITIES 

 
6.1 The Council will publicise widely the availability of any appropriate benefits, 

exemptions, discounts or reliefs which may either reduce the level of liability for the 
debt or increase the income of the customer, thus increasing their ability to meet their 
liability.  Such benefits, exemptions, reliefs and discounts include: 

 

• Housing and Council Tax Benefits  -  The Council will undertake proactive take up 
campaigns annually in partnership with others and aim to reach every household.  
New claims will be processed promptly and to a standard at or exceeding national 
targets for new claims and changes in circumstances.   

 

• Council Tax Discounts, Reliefs and Exemptions 
 

• Business Rates Reliefs and Exemptions 
 

• Working Tax Credit 
 

• Pension Credit 
 

• Income Support and Job Seekers Allowance 
 

• Disability Benefits 
 

• Discretionary Housing Payments. 
 
6.2 Where appropriate, special payment arrangements will be considered with regard to 

the recovery of debt.  However, whilst it is important to consider the customer’s 
request in the event of a reported hardship case, it is also important to ensure a firm 
but fair approach that provides a reasonable incentive for the customer to clear their 
debt. 

 

7. PEOPLE WHO MAY REQUIRE ADDITIONAL ASSISTANCE 

 

7.1 The Council recognises that some customers may have difficulty understanding or 
dealing with their financial responsibilities. The Council will therefore take into 
account during its debt recovery process the needs of those customers who may be 
identified as vulnerable. 

 

Page 67



APPENDIX A 

7.2 When applying the debt management policy to the more vulnerable customers, 
officers will consider the wider implications of any recovery actions on the individual 
and the Council, such as preventing homelessness.  The Council is mindful of its 
responsibilities and duties under the Disability Discrimination Act and Human Rights 
Act. 

 
8. DIFFICULT TO RECOVER AND IRRECOVERABLE DEBTS 

 

8.1 The Council will pursue all monies owed to it. This includes externalising debt 
collection where appropriate. The Council recognises that there will be certain 
circumstances where it will not be able to collect all the debts owed and that some 
accounts below a certain value will be uneconomic to collect.  The Council’s 
Financial Regulations set out the procedure and financial thresholds for processing 
such debts. 

9. REPORTING AND MONITORING 

 
9.1 It is the responsibility of the originating service to take ownership of the debts in their 

service areas and to ensure effective arrangements for monitoring the payment and 
recovery are in place.  Regular reports on collection rates, arrears levels and 
approved debt write-offs will be reported to Scrutiny Committee - Resources. 

 

 

Page 68



EXETER CITY COUNCIL 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - RESOURCES 
28 JANUARY 2009 

 
NON-HOUSING AIM BUDGET 2009/2010 

 
 
1 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To detail the work proposed to non-housing properties in order to maintain and service 

such buildings in 2009/2010. The work financed from the Asset Improvement and 
Maintenance fund, referred to as AIM, is contained within the Council’s overall revenue 
budgets.  

 
2 BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 Following an examination of routine servicing and operational work, the gathering of 

historical information as to levels of reactive repair costs, an investigation of the property 
condition database priorities and the assembly and prioritization of Heads of Service 
property requirements, a budget was established as; 

 
(A) Routine Servicing and Maintenance  £   337,390 
(B) Operational Essentials   £     98,290 
(C) Reactive Repairs    £   513,710 
(D) Lease Repairs     £     83,840 
(E) Service Department Recharges  £            275,930 
(F)  Service Priorities and contingency  £            253,250 

Total (Appendix G)  £         1,562,410 
 
2.2 The attached Appendices A to F provide further breakdowns of the above categories, 

detailing the properties involved, the projects and servicing works along with an 
estimated budget required. Further explanation is provided in the text below. 

 
 

ANNUAL COMMITMENTS 
 
2.3 Routine Servicing and Maintenance (Appendix A) 
 

Appendix A lists all identified work needed to inspect, service and maintain plant, 
equipment, controls, monitoring devices and certain structures. The work is required 
annually to ensure plant, equipment and certain structures are maintained in a fully 
operational and safe state. The costs listed are based upon historical cost information 
updated for either operational (due to changes in testing regulations) or inflationary 
increases. 
 

2.4 Operational Essentials (Appendix B) 
 

Appendix B details those amounts for property repair, plant and equipment that, 
although monitored by the AIM Group, are administered by certain Heads of Service. 
The appropriate Head of Service will use these budgets to keep property and plant in 
good working order such that continued service delivery is assured.  

 
 
2.5 Reactive Repairs (Appendix C) 
 

Agenda Item 11

Page 69



Appendix C details those amounts, established from previous records, required to 
finance reactive repair works. The repairs have been placed in categories of property 
family to indicate the levels of expenditure normally incurred. The expenditure is closely 
monitored over the year to examine whether each allotted value is a fair reflection of the 
financial resource needed. 

 
2.6 Lease Repairs (Appendix D) 
 

The contract terms of commercial property leases often demand that certain repairs, 
maintenance or safety checks have to be carried out year on year in order to properly 
maintain the property in good lettable condition. Whilst the property condition survey 
annually highlights certain potential problem areas there are often further works needed, 
arising from other periodic checks carried out, that may have not been specifically raised 
through the condition survey. So it is a difficult task to accurately quantify the full extent 
of the lease liabilities in each particular year. Therefore a sum of £83,840 has been set 
aside, which will be monitored throughout the year to examine whether the allotted 
value is a fair reflection of the financial resource needed.   

 
2.7 Service Department Recharges (Appendix E) 
 

This represents the cost of the staff resources required to programme, organise, tender, 
instigate, supervise, control, monitor and settle accounts in respect of the work 
proposed for non-housing AIM projects. The cost reflects the amount of Contracts and 
Direct Services and Engineering and Construction staff resources needed to deliver the 
work programme. 

 
PRIORITIZED WORK PROGRAMME 

 
2.8 Service Priorities (Appendix F) 
 

In order to target available, but limited, financial resources in 2009/2010 a review of all 
the necessary repair work to non-housing properties was carried out by examining the 
property condition database and compiling Head of Service work requests for the 
coming financial year. As the value of work derived from this exercise was in excess of 
available funds a prioritization process was carried out. This involved each Head of 
Service and Directorate firstly prioritizing the work relating to their properties. Then the 
AIM Group (which comprises Head of Treasury Services, Head of Contracts and Direct 
Services and Head of Estates Services), in consultation with SMT, further examined 
which of those priorities were the most needed and/or most urgent. Subsequently SMT 
agreed the work listed in Appendix F as priorities. Although estimates are given for the 
cost of work listed, such estimates can only be considered as “ball-park” figures at this 
stage as, following Scrutiny, Heads of Service will need to examine and develop specific 
briefs for the work involved. Revised estimates, where necessary, can then be 
calculated. An annual provision is set aside within this budget to take account of any 
costs arising from having to employ external consultants on certain projects, where 
there are insufficient resources in-house to deliver projects programmed to be 
commenced and undertaken in 2009/10. A contingency sum has again been 
established as a provision to allow for revised estimates and for any unforeseen works, 
of an emergency repair nature, that inevitably arise through the year.  

 
 It should be noted that for 2009/10 AIM recognized that revenue savings needed to be 

sought and so AIM decided to contribute to a necessary revenue savings drive by 
reducing this Services Priority budget by some £186,000 this financial year.  

 
 
 
 

Page 70



3 PROPOSALS 
 
3.1 It is proposed that the sum of £1,562,410 be set aside, from total resources available, to 

carry out necessary works listed above and in appendices A to F attached to this report 
in respect of non-housing property Service and Maintenance Work, Operational 
Essentials, Reactive Repairs, Lease Repairs, Service Department Recharges and 
Service Priorities. 

 
4 RECOMMENDED 
 

(1) that the Committee note that the sum of £1,562,410 has been split into the 
categories of work in the year 2009/2010 as outlined in this report. 

 
 

HEAD OF CONTRACTS AND DIRECT SERVICES 
HEAD OF TREASURY SERVICES 
HEAD OF ESTATES SERVICES 
 

COMMUNITY & ENVIRONMENT DIRECTORATE 
 
 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended) 
 
Background papers used in compiling the report 
 
None 

Page 71



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



NON-HOUSING AIM BUDGET 2009/2010 APPENDIX A

SERVICING AND MAINTENANCE WORK

FIMS 

CODE

ALLOCATION 

CODES

EFIMS 

CODE

BUDGET 

2009/10

1 Air conditioning maintenance (inclusive of and chiller plant) Z6347 Y006347 £11,570

2 Corn Exchange Building Service Contracts Z6348 Y006348 £7,540

3 Routine Maintenance to roller shutter doors Z6349 Y006349 £1,200

4 Livestock Market Service Contracts Z6350 Y006350 £14,670

7 Routine Maintenance of Lightning Conductors, Various Locations Z6355 Y006355 £640

8 Routine Maintenance of Lifts on Properties (not Civic Centre) Z6356 Y006356 £6,820

9 Routine Maintenance of Lifts, Various Car Parks Z6357 Y006357 £10,000

10 Fixed Installation testing of electrical installations, various locations Z6359 Y006353 £24,040

11 Portable appliance testing of electrical equipment, various locations Z6360 Y006360 £12,280

12 Routine Maintenance of Stand-by Generators, Various Locations Z6361 Y006361 £1,750

13 Routine Maintenance of Sprinklers, Various Locations Z6362 Y006362 £16,000

14 Routine Servicing and Maintenance of Boiler and Heating Plant, Various Locations Z6363 Y006363 £14,210

15 Routine Maintenance of Heat/Ventilation Controls, Various Sites Z6365 Y006365 £17,800

16 Maintenance of Card Readers and Barriers in Car Parks Z6366 Y006366 £1,200

17 Routine maintenance of Ethnography plant at RAMM Z6368 Y006368 £2,000

18 Routine Testing of Fire Alarms Z6369 Y006369 £11,180

19 Routine Testing of Emergency Lighting Z6370 Y006370 £26,650

20 Routine Testing of Gas Pumping Station Boreholes Z6371 Y006371 £5,950

21 Routine Maintenance of Monuments Z6372 Y006372 £15,000

22 Inspections to structures and monuments (Technical Services Inspections) Z6373 Y006373 £2,340

23 inspections to ship canal lock gates and banks(Technical Services Inspections) Z6374 Y006374 £8,500

24 Exe Estuary - Hydrographic Surveys Z6375 Y006375 £5,000

25 Routine Servicing to Wallgates various locations Z6376 Y006376 £6,330

27 Maintenance of automatic door sets in lobbies of Civic Centre Z6380 Y006380 £1,100

29 Maintenance of loop system in Civic Centre and Guildhall Z6382 Y006382 £600

30 Routine maintenance to irrigation pump Belle Isle Z6383 Y006383 £430

31 Paddling pools equipment inspection and maintenance Z6385 Y006385 £1,500

32 Routine Maintenance Gateway Feature Honiton Road Z6386 Y006386 £1,500

33 Checking showers for legionella Z6387 Y006387 £2,890

34 Routine Maintenance of Council owned footways Z6388 Y006388 £20,000

35 Annual Safety Inspection of Memorials Z6389 Y006389 £30,000

36 Cleaning of High Street Pyramid riddle Z6390 Y006390 £2,000

38 Routine Servicing and Maintenance of gas detection equipment in car parks Z6392 Y006392 £1,200

39 Alarm servicing at control centre Z6393 Y006393 £2,500

40 Fire protection equipment servicing and maintenance Z6394 Y006394 £6,000

41 Livestock Market annual structure maintenance Y006345 £25,000

Legionella risk assessments Z6395 Y006395 £20,000

TOTAL  £ £337,390

APPENDIX A Item11109SCR1aimbudgetappxv30.xlsAPPA Serv-maint

Page 73



NON-HOUSING AIM BUDGET 2009/2010  APPENDIX B

NON-HOUSING AIM FUND PROGRAMME 2009-2010

OPERATIONAL ESSENTIALS

BUDGET 

2009/10

Cost Centre 

Allocation LEAD OFFICER

CIVIC CENTRE (LIFTS) 10,560 T054 J Street

CANAL 24,070 F030 Ian Cowe

CAR PARKS 45,650 M201 Roger Coombs

REACTIVE UNOCCUPIED PROPERTY 18,010 M001/M002 David Prosser

TOTAL OPERATIONAL ESSENTIALS 98,290

APPENDIX B Item11109SCR1aimbudgetappxv30.xlsAPPB opp ess

Page 74



NON-HOUSING AIM BUDGET 2009/2010  APPENDIX C, D, E

APPENDIX C

REACTIVE REPAIRS BUDGET LEAD OFFICER

2009/10

£

GENERAL REACTIVE WORK 374,930 Various

REACTIVE WORK TO ELECTRICAL TESTING 27,820 M Jones

CANAL SPECIAL WORKS 29,990 J Nott

CIVIC CENTRE 80,970 J Street

TOTAL REACTIVE REPAIRS 513,710

APPENDIX D

 LEASE REPAIRS BUDGET LEAD OFFICER

2009/10

£

LEASE REPAIRS 78,380 David Prosser

HEALTH AND SAFETY CHECKS 5,460 David Prosser

TOTAL LEASE REPAIRS 83,840

APPENDIX E

SERVICE DEPARTMENT RECHARGES BUDGET LEAD OFFICER

2009/10

£

SERVICE RECHARGES 275,930 Paul Mc Cormick

Dave Hubbard

TOTAL SERVICE RECHARGES 275,930

APPENDIX C, D, E Item11109SCR1aimbudgetappxv30.xlsAPPCDEreactiveleasefees

Page 75



NON-HOUSING AIM BUDGET 2009/2010 APPENDIX F

REF SERVICE PRIORITIES
BUDGET 

2009/10 COMMENT

Old Tiverton Bring Bank Site £7,000 Brought forward

10 St Nicholas Priory wall painting conservation work £6,250

15 Mathews Hall Topsham, repairs to walls £5,000

19 Exwick changing accomodation general repairs £10,000

26 Livestock Centre, remedial works to prevent legionella £15,000

27 Asbestos survey non-housing £40,000

28 Legionella prevention measures £40,000

32 Replace civic centre fire control panel £7,000

49 River Exe - Erosion control at Topsham Recreation Ground £20,000

52 Deal with legionella risk at washdown at MRF £30,000

54 Attend to masonry repairs Mediaeval Exe Bridge £8,000

57 Masonry repairs etc St Margaret's Churchyard Ferry Road £10,000

58 Redeck Yarislavl Bridge £15,000

60 Provision for Professional Fees £20,000

n/a Contingency £20,000

TOTAL £253,250

APPENDIX F Item11109SCR1aimbudgetappxv30.xlsAPPFpriorities

Page 76



NON-HOUSING AIMBUDGET 2008/2009 APPENDIX G

BUDGET

SUMMARY APPENDIX FOR COMMENTS

2009/10

£

ROUTINE SERVICING AND MAINTENANCE WORK A 337,390

OPERATIONAL ESSENTIALS (cost centre funded) B 98,290

REACTIVE REPAIRS C 513,710

LEASE REPAIRS D 83,840

SERVICE DEPARTMENT RECHARGES E 275,930

SERVICE PRIORITIES F 253,250

TOTALS £ 1,562,410

APPENDIX G

Item11109SCR1aimbudgetappxv30.xlssummary

Page 77



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



EXETER CITY COUNCIL  
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – RESOURCES 
 28 JANUARY 2009 

 
 

ESTIMATES 2009-10 
 
 
 

1. Introduction 
 

1.1 Attached are the draft estimates for 2009/10, which were presented to a briefing for 
members of Scrutiny Committee - Resources on 15 December 2008. 
 

1.2 This report outlines the strategic framework within which the estimates have been 
prepared, changes in accounting practices, which affect all budgets and detailed 
reasons for any significant changes in the Management Unit estimates. 
 

2. Budget Framework 
 

2.1 The estimates include assumptions for pay, general inflation and income as follows: 
 • Pay 

• General inflation 

• Income 

• Interest on Investments 

2.5% 
Nil (see paragraph 2.3 below) 
5.0%(2.8% where VAT is applicable) 
3.0% 
 

2.2 An interim pay award for the current year has now been settled. Although 
Government policy is to try and limit public sector pay increases to no more than 
2% it is felt prudent at this stage to budget for a 2.5% increase next year. 
 

2.3 As a means of finding efficiency savings, many non-pay budgets will not be 
increased for inflation. There will be some exceptions to this in particular where 
there are ongoing contractual arrangements in place and where the Council has to 
meet the full price increase e.g. insurance, fuel and electricity. The Retail Price 
Index (RPI) for September 2008 was 5%.  Although the Government no longer 
produce targets for the RPI it is still used to determine increases in pensions, 
benefits and pay negotiations.  With regard to next year, the Bank of England has 
said inflation could fall below its target of 2% and might drop as low as 1%. With 
regard to the RPI many economic forecasters are currently predicting that theUK’s 
retail price index will turn negative next year. 
 

2.4 In November the Bank of England reduced the base rate from 4.5% to 3% and has 
subsequently followed this up in December with a further reduction to 2% bringing 
interest rates to their lowest level since 1951. This lowering of interest rates affects 
the City Council in a number of ways. On the negative side, the drop in interest rates 
combined with the lowering of confidence in the banking sector means that we have 
to significantly lower our investment returns on our cash deposit in comparison with 
previous years. The likelihood is that investment returns will be no more than 3% in 
comparison with returns in excess of 6% that we have achieved in recent years. 
Conversely on the positive side, the lowering of interest rates also means that the 
cost of borrowing is now also cheaper. This is particularly important to the City 
Council which is going to make use of borrowing in order to fund part of its capital 
programme.  
 

Agenda Item 12

Page 79



2.5 Exeter’s provisional grant settlements for 2009/10 and 2010/11 are £11.999 million 
and £12.090 million respectively, amounting to yearly increases of only £106,000 
(0.9%) and £91,000 (0.7%). For the last year of the Medium Term Financial Plan 
(MTFP) a grant increase of £181,000 (1.5%) has been factored in at this stage. This 
is slightly higher than the grant increases for the previous 3 year period because it 
factors in the use of more up to date population data. 
 

2.6 The current Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR07) has also indicated a 
significant reduction in the Local Authority Business Growth Incentive (LABGI) grant 
funding from £1 billion covering the spending review period to 2007/08 to £150 
million in CSR07. There will be total LABGI funding available of £50 million for 
2009/10 and £100 million available in 2010/11. To date Exeter City Council has 
benefited greatly from this funding having received £465,108 for 2005/06, £923,941 
for 2006/07 and more than £1.7 million for 2007/08. The current MTFP has therefore 
assumed further LABGI grant funding of £100,000 for 2009/10 and £200,000 for 
2010/11 
 

2.7 At its meeting on the 09 December 2008, Executive approved a budget strategy 
based on the best known data with regard to Government spending targets and this 
was noted by the Council at its meeting on 16 December 2008: 
 

 • Formula Grant increase 

• Council tax guideline 

0.9% 
2.9% 
 

2.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.9 

The available capital resources for General Fund and Housing for 2009/10 are 
£12.117 million.  An estimated spend of £15.241 million is required in respect of the 
General Fund, of which £0.767million is required for new approvals. The Housing 
capital programme will be some £5.06 million.  There will be a total spend of £20.301 
million. This shows that the Council will have to use borrowing of £8.184 million in 
addition to other capital resources to finance its capital programme requirements. 
This will also have an ongoing impact on the Council’s revenue budget. The current 
revenue cost of borrowing consisting of interest and loan repayments, is about 
£65,000 for each £1 million that is borrowed. This amount is lower than previously 
advised due to the significant reductions in the cost of borrowing that have occurred 
in recent months. The prudential capital framework enables the Council to borrow 
within self-imposed targets largely based on affordability. A list of the proposed new 
schemes for this Committee is attached at Appendix 2. 
 
The changes in respect of 2009/10 Fees and Charges for the budget are included at 
Appendix 3.   
 

3. Revenue Budget Savings 
 
3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.2 
 

 
At the meeting of the Resources Scrutiny Committee on 18 June 2008 the future 
budgetary position facing the Council was discussed. It was highlighted that the 
Council was faced with considerable financial uncertainty in the medium term both in 
terms of a poor financial grant settlement and potential increasing budgetary 
pressures from, for example, the introduction of the national concessionary travel 
scheme. The current medium term financial plan had therefore already identified the 
need for significant ongoing revenue savings having to be identified and achieved. 
Arising from this it was therefore agreed to appoint an all party working group to 
consider the budget savings proposals for 2009/10.   
 
The all party Resources Members Working Group met on 11 November 2008 to 
consider proposed base budget reductions totalling £1,031,100 for 2009/10. 

Page 80



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Members reviewed and noted the proposed savings which would now be presented 
to the appropriate scrutiny committees for consideration.  The working group 
acknowledged that the budgets had been carefully researched but wished to 
emphasise that continuing vigilance would be needed to reduce expenditure in future 
years. 
 
The specific revenue savings that have been included within the draft estimates for 
Scrutiny Committee - Resources are as follows: 
  £ 
 IT  
   
 Saving on new copy centre printer lease 10,500 
   
 Reduction in colour copying costs  10,000 
   
 Termination of SIEMENS disaster recovery contract  6,000 
   
 Removal of annual desktop printer maintenance  7,100 
   
 Treasury Services  
   
 Reduce Staffing Levels:-  

NNDR    0.4 fte 
Council Tax Recovery  0.5 fte 
Housing Benefit  2.2 fte  

 
 
 

70,000 
   
 Corporate Customer Services  
   
 Non-filling of a vacant customer services officer post 22,000 
   
 Siemens Contract 3,000 
   
 Flowers at Civic Centre 7,000 
   
 Guildhall private hire charges 1,000 
   
 Total 136,600 
 
 Chief Executives 

 
Reduce City News 

 
 

4,000 
   
 Restructure in Policy Unit 6,000 
   
 Delete temp media support post 

 
25,000 

 
Total 35,000 

 
 Other 

 
Reduction in advertising costs 

 
 

40,000 
   
 Reduction in employers pension contributions 

 
80,000 

Page 81



 
Total 120,000 

 
 

4. Key Revenue Budget Changes Proposed for 2009/10 
 
The Revenue budgets are attached at Appendix 1.  The proposed budgets reflect a 
combination of budget increases and savings and the key changes are as follows: 
 

86A11 REVENUE COLLECTION / BENEFITS 

An increase of 5% has been applied to both Council Tax and Rent Allowance 
benefits and an increase of 6.2% has been applied to the Housing Revenue Account 
rent benefits in line with rent increases for 2009/10.  

The total cost of Housing Benefits has been adjusted to take account of the 
variances identified in September 2008 stewardship report. 

The above increases in cost have been offset by an anticipated increase in the 
Housing Benefits Subsidy. 

There are also savings in support service costs; in particular there is a reduction in 
Housing Benefit Investigation, and Council Tax and Business Rate administration 
due to staff savings and Pension Fund adjustments. 

86A2 ELECTIONS & ELECTORAL REGISTRATION 

There are no Exeter City council elections planned for 2009 but there will be 
European Parliamentary Elections and, subject to the local government review 
decision, Devon County Council Elections that will be combined and take place 
across the City on 4 June 2009. 

86A3 CORPORATE 

A revised scale of fees for external audit work to be carried out during the year will 
result in an increase in costs.  

Some of the central bank charges being incurred have been identified as relating to 
Council Tax so the budget has been transferred to management unit 86B1 Treasury 
Services, see below. 

86A4 CIVIC CEREMONIALS 

The initial project budget for the conservation of some historic paintings in the 
Guildhall has now been removed following the completion of this programme of work. 

86A5 DEMOCRATIC REPRESENTATION 

The support service recharges for Democratic Costs have reduced overall with the 
major reason being the reduction to cost centres in their pension contributions under 
FRS17 accounting regulations.   

The IT support costs of Members Expenses have been reduced due to the limitation 
of access to the live operating systems. 

86A6 GRANTS/CENTRAL SUPPORT/CONSULTATION 

The rent relief granted by Grants Committee to occupiers of council-owned property 
has been increased to reflect rent reviews agreed or pending.  

The administration costs for the Community Safety Partnership and Anti-Social 
Behaviour Co-ordinator are budgeted for in full. 

The initial two-year project for capacity building support to residents, officers and 
elected members that is part of Community Inclusion and Involvement is ending but 

Page 82



budgetary provision has been included for 2009-10. 

86A7 UNAPPORTIONABLE OVERHEADS  

There is a small balance on Central Support Services that appear within Unallocated 
Central Costs. The actual users of these services will be recharged during 2009-10.  

 

 CENTRAL SUPPORT SERVICES ACCOUNTS: 
 
The management units listed below are recharged out across the whole of the 
Council and are either brought back to zero cost or have small balances left that are 
to be recharged back to the users of the services in 2009-10: 
 

86A8 CHIEF EXECUTIVE SERVICES  

As referred to in the budget notes for management unit 86A6 above, a budget for 
neighbourhood engagement has been extended in to 2009-10. 

The staffing of the Chief Executives Services has been reviewed with a resulting 
budget saving in employee costs. 

86A9 STRATEGIC / COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIPS 

This management unit brings together the Council’s community partnerships with the 
police, health authorities and other councils to establish policies and programmes 
within the Exeter area. The full cost of administering the partnerships is shown in 
cost centre S053 Community Safety within management unit 86A6. 

86B1 TREASURY SERVICES 

The cost of Accountancy Services has increased to reflect the investment that has 
been made in the new Financial Management System (EFims) in April 2008. 

The cost of Council Tax Collection has reduced due to additional income and 
reduced operational expenses, support services and capital finance charges. 

The set-up expenses for the Local Housing Allowance Scheme (T008) that 
commenced in April 2008 is being met by Government Grant. 

86B2 AUDIT 

There are no significant changes to report. 

86B3 HUMAN RESOURCES SERVICES 

The majority of the temporary staffing arrangements that have been in place to 
review advertising, recruitment and retention policies will cease during 2009. 

Budgets have been increased to cover the costs of upgrades in software and user 
licences. 

86B4 LEGAL SERVICES 

There are no proposed increases in external fee income for legal work. 

86B5 CORPORATE CUSTOMER SERVICES 

The cost of improvements and repairs for the Civic Centre has been reduced through 
the AIM. programme. 

There have been increases in the cost of purchasing and maintaining IT systems for 
the progression of Information and G.I.S. Management and the Customer Service 
Centre, the latter having expanded further during 2008. In addition to the services 
previously covered, the Customer Service Centre now covers Council Tax and 

Page 83



Housing Benefits as well as an enhanced telephone service. 

86B6 IT SERVICES 

There has been a reduction in the cost of both black and white and colour copies in 
the Copy Centre due to new equipment leases. 

There has been a small overall increase in the cost of maintaining IT systems as the 
number of users and systems across the council has increased. 

There has been a small reduction in the capital financing costs of Desktop and 
Network Support (T049) due to a reduction in depreciation charges. 

86B7 DIRECTOR CORPORATE SERVICES 

There are no significant changes to report. 
 
 

4. RECOMMENDED that Members are asked to consider the draft Estimates for 2009. 
 
 
 
HEAD OF TREASURY SERVICES   DIRECTOR CORPORATE SERVICES 
 
 

CORPORATE SERVICES DIRECTORATE 
 
 
 
 
 

Local Government (Access to Information ) Act 1985 (as amended) 
Background papers used in compiling the report:  
None 
 

 

Page 84



 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 1 

Page 85



Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank



S
U

B
J

E
C

T
IV

E
A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
O

T
H

E
R

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E

5
R

E
S

R
2

0
0

8
-0

9
IN

F
L

A
T

IO
N

R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

N
O

N
-R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
A

D
J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
2

0
0

9
-1

0

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

7
,2

8
0

,0
3

0
2

5
0

,6
6

0
(9

2
,5

0
0

)
1

0
,0

0
0

(3
9

0
,1

9
0

)
7

,0
5

8
,0

0
0

T
ra

n
s
fe

r
P

a
y
m

e
n

ts
3

2
,5

0
6

,2
8

0
1

,2
1

5
,9

0
0

0
0

5
9

3
,2

6
0

3
4

,3
1

5
,4

4
0

P
re

m
is

e
s

8
0

9
,7

8
0

2
6

,9
5

0
(7

,0
0

0
)

0
(9

0
,8

8
0

)
7

3
8

,8
5

0

S
u

p
p

lie
s

&
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
3

,2
9

9
,4

3
0

3
1

,7
2

0
1

2
,3

5
0

1
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
3

,7
7

0
4

,3
4

7
,2

7
0

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

5
0

,9
6

0
1

,4
9

0
0

0
(2

,7
4

0
)

4
9

,7
1

0

S
u

p
p

o
rt

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

7
,5

9
1

,3
6

0
2

3
1

,5
5

0
0

0
(4

2
2

,6
7

0
)

7
,4

0
0

,2
4

0

C
a

p
it
a

l
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
8

2
6

,7
4

0
0

0
0

6
,6

5
0

8
3

3
,3

9
0

T
o

ta
l

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
5

2
,3

6
4

,5
8

0
1

,7
5

8
,2

7
0

(8
7

,1
5

0
)

1
,0

1
0

,0
0

0
(3

0
2

,8
0

0
)

5
4

,7
4

2
,9

0
0

In
c
o

m
e

(4
6

,6
3

0
,5

9
0

)
(1

,4
3

8
,0

3
0

)
(1

,0
0

0
)

0
(3

0
,8

8
0

)
(4

8
,1

0
0

,5
0

0
)

N
e

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
,7

3
3

,9
9

0
3

2
0

,2
4

0
(8

8
,1

5
0

)
1

,0
1

0
,0

0
0

(3
3

3
,6

8
0

)
6

,6
4

2
,4

0
0

O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

A
N

A
L

Y
S

IS
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

O
T

H
E

R
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

0
8

-0
9

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
2

0
0

9
-1

0

8
6

A
1

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
C

O
L

L
E

C
T

IO
N

/B
E

N
E

F
IT

S
1

,8
8

9
,4

6
0

2
8

0
,8

8
0

0
0

(2
8

4
,5

9
0

)
1

,8
8

5
,7

5
0

8
6

A
2

E
L

E
C

T
IO

N
S

&
E

L
E

C
T

O
R

A
L

R
E

G
3

1
4

,2
4

0
8

,1
3

0
0

0
(7

,7
1

0
)

3
1

4
,6

6
0

8
6

A
3

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
9

0
2

,9
2

0
2

5
,0

6
0

6
,4

5
0

0
(4

0
,1

7
0

)
8

9
4

,2
6

0

8
6

A
4

C
IV

IC
C

E
R

E
M

O
N

IA
L

S
2

8
2

,8
5

0
8

,6
5

0
(1

,0
0

0
)

0
(1

9
,9

4
0

)
2

7
0

,5
6

0

8
6

A
5

D
E

M
O

C
R

A
T

IC
R

E
P

R
E

S
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

9
1

5
,2

7
0

2
7

,7
6

0
0

1
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
(4

0
,6

8
0

)
1

,9
0

2
,3

5
0

8
6

A
6

G
R

A
N

T
S

/C
E

N
T

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
/C

O
N

S
U

L
T

A
T

IO
N

1
,1

0
8

,1
4

0
8

,0
9

0
0

0
1

3
,0

7
0

1
,1

2
9

,3
0

0

8
6

A
7

U
N

A
P

P
O

R
T

IO
N

A
B

L
E

O
V

E
R

H
E

A
D

S
3

2
1

,1
1

0
1

1
,0

6
0

0
0

(8
6

,6
5

0
)

2
4

5
,5

2
0

8
6

A
8

C
H

IE
F

E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
0

(6
,2

3
0

)
(1

0
,0

0
0

)
0

1
6

,2
3

0
0

8
6

A
9

S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

/
C

O
M

M
P

A
R

T
N

E
R

S
H

IP
S

0
(1

,4
9

0
)

0
0

1
,4

9
0

0

8
6

B
1

T
R

E
A

S
U

R
Y

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
0

1
3

,2
7

0
(6

4
,0

0
0

)
1

0
,0

0
0

4
0

,7
3

0
0

8
6

B
2

IN
T

E
R

N
A

L
A

U
D

IT
0

(4
6

0
)

0
0

4
6

0
0

8
6

B
3

H
U

M
A

N
R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

0
(4

,8
8

0
)

0
0

4
,8

8
0

0

8
6

B
4

L
E

G
A

L
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

0
(3

,3
6

0
)

0
0

3
,3

6
0

0

8
6

B
5

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
C

U
S

T
O

M
E

R
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

0
(2

4
,6

8
0

)
6

,0
0

0
0

1
8

,6
8

0
0

8
6

B
6

IT
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

0
(2

1
,3

6
0

)
(2

5
,6

0
0

)
0

4
6

,9
6

0
0

8
6

B
7

D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
0

(2
0

0
)

0
0

2
0

0
0

N
e

t
C

o
s

t
5

,7
3

3
,9

9
0

3
2

0
,2

4
0

(8
8

,1
5

0
)

1
,0

1
0

,0
0

0
(3

3
3

,6
8

0
)

6
,6

4
2

,4
0

0

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
-

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

N
E

W
P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
S

N
E

W
P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
S

Page 87



8
6

A
1

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
C

O
L

L
E

C
T

IO
N

/B
E

N
E

F
IT

S
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

O
T

H
E

R
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

0
8

-0
9

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
2

0
0

9
-1

0

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

T
ra

n
s
fe

r
P

a
y
m

e
n

ts
3

2
,5

0
6

,2
8

0
1

,2
1

5
,9

0
0

0
0

5
9

3
,2

6
0

3
4

,3
1

5
,4

4
0

P
re

m
is

e
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
u

p
p

lie
s

&
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
8

1
,7

0
0

0
0

0
6

,0
9

0
8

7
,7

9
0

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
u

p
p

o
rt

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

2
,0

2
8

,5
8

0
6

0
,8

7
0

0
0

(1
5

1
,1

3
0

)
1

,9
3

8
,3

2
0

C
a

p
it
a

l
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
0

0
0

0
0

0

T
o

ta
l
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
4

,6
1

6
,5

6
0

1
,2

7
6

,7
7

0
0

0
4

4
8

,2
2

0
3

6
,3

4
1

,5
5

0

In
c
o

m
e

(3
2

,7
2

7
,1

0
0

)
(9

9
5

,8
9

0
)

0
0

(7
3

2
,8

1
0

)
(3

4
,4

5
5

,8
0

0
)

N
e

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,8

8
9

,4
6

0
2

8
0

,8
8

0
0

0
(2

8
4

,5
9

0
)

1
,8

8
5

,7
5

0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
B

y

S
0

0
1

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
C

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
8

2
9

,5
2

0
2

4
,8

9
0

0
0

(8
1

,4
5

0
)

7
7

2
,9

6
0

S
0

0
2

R
e

n
t
A

llo
w

a
n

c
e

s
6

6
,2

4
0

(1
3

,8
2

0
)

0
0

1
9

,4
4

0
7

1
,8

6
0

S
0

0
3

S
ta

tu
to

ry
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
2

4
,0

3
0

0
0

0
1

,7
9

0
2

5
,8

2
0

S
0

0
4

C
o

u
n

c
il

T
a

x
B

e
n

e
fi
ts

6
0

7
,1

0
0

1
8

,2
2

0
0

0
(2

9
,4

4
0

)
5

9
5

,8
8

0

S
0

0
5

R
e

n
t
R

e
b

a
te

s
3

5
9

,6
1

0
2

5
1

,5
0

0
0

0
(1

9
5

,0
6

0
)

4
1

6
,0

5
0

S
0

0
6

H
o

u
s
in

g
A

c
t
A

d
v
a

n
c
e

s
2

,9
6

0
9

0
0

0
1

3
0

3
,1

8
0

N
e

t
C

o
s

t
1

,8
8

9
,4

6
0

2
8

0
,8

8
0

0
0

(2
8

4
,5

9
0

)
1

,8
8

5
,7

5
0

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
-

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

N
E

W
P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
S

Page 88



8
6

A
2

E
L

E
C

T
IO

N
S

&
E

L
E

C
T

O
R

A
L

R
E

G
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
O

T
H

E
R

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E

2
0

0
8

-0
9

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
2

0
0

9
-1

0

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

1
5

7
,2

8
0

5
,4

8
0

0
0

(5
,2

4
0

)
1

5
7

,5
2

0

P
re

m
is

e
s

1
9

,2
2

0
6

3
0

0
0

(5
0

0
)

1
9

,3
5

0

S
u

p
p

lie
s

&
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
8

4
,4

5
0

5
1

0
0

0
5

0
0

8
5

,4
6

0

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

1
3

0
0

0
0

0
1

3
0

S
u

p
p

o
rt

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

5
2

,0
7

0
1

,6
0

0
0

0
(2

,4
7

0
)

5
1

,2
0

0

C
a

p
it
a

l
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
2

,8
0

0
0

0
0

0
2

,8
0

0

T
o

ta
l
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
1

5
,9

5
0

8
,2

2
0

0
0

(7
,7

1
0

)
3

1
6

,4
6

0

In
c
o

m
e

(1
,7

1
0

)
(9

0
)

0
0

0
(1

,8
0

0
)

N
e

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
1

4
,2

4
0

8
,1

3
0

0
0

(7
,7

1
0

)
3

1
4

,6
6

0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
B

y

S
0

1
0

E
le

c
to

ra
l
R

e
g

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
1

9
4

,5
6

0
4

,9
3

0
0

0
(6

,6
8

0
)

1
9

2
,8

1
0

S
0

1
1

D
is

tr
ic

t
C

o
u

n
c
il

E
le

c
ti
o

n
s

1
1

9
,6

8
0

3
,2

0
0

0
0

(1
,0

3
0

)
1

2
1

,8
5

0

S
0

1
2

C
o

u
n

ty
C

o
u

n
c
il

E
le

c
ti
o

n
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
0

1
3

C
o

u
n

ty
C

o
u

n
c
il

B
y
-E

le
c
ti
o

n
0

0
0

0
0

0

S
0

1
4

P
a

rl
ia

m
e

n
ta

ry
E

le
c
ti
o

n
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
0

1
7

E
u

ro
p

e
a

n
E

le
c
ti
o

n
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
0

1
8

C
it
y

C
o

u
n

c
il

B
y
-E

le
c
ti
o

n
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
e

t
C

o
s

t
3

1
4

,2
4

0
8

,1
3

0
0

0
(7

,7
1

0
)

3
1

4
,6

6
0

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
-

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

N
E

W
P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
S

Page 89



8
6

A
3

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

O
T

H
E

R
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

0
8

-0
9

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
2

0
0

9
-1

0

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

P
re

m
is

e
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
u

p
p

lie
s

&
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
1

7
3

,9
8

0
4

,9
0

0
6

,4
5

0
0

(8
,0

2
0

)
1

7
7

,3
1

0

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
u

p
p

o
rt

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

1
,0

7
3

,7
7

0
3

2
,2

3
0

0
0

(6
7

,0
9

0
)

1
,0

3
8

,9
1

0

C
a

p
it
a

l
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
0

0
0

0
0

0

T
o

ta
l
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,2

4
7

,7
5

0
3

7
,1

3
0

6
,4

5
0

0
(7

5
,1

1
0

)
1

,2
1

6
,2

2
0

In
c
o

m
e

(3
4

4
,8

3
0

)
(1

2
,0

7
0

)
0

0
3

4
,9

4
0

(3
2

1
,9

6
0

)

N
e

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
0

2
,9

2
0

2
5

,0
6

0
6

,4
5

0
0

(4
0

,1
7

0
)

8
9

4
,2

6
0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
B

y

S
0

1
5

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

C
o

s
ts

8
6

0
,7

5
0

2
4

,0
3

0
6

,4
5

0
0

(3
9

,7
5

0
)

8
5

1
,4

8
0

S
0

6
6

T
re

a
s
u

ry
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
4

2
,1

7
0

1
,0

3
0

0
0

(4
2

0
)

4
2

,7
8

0

U
0

2
6

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t
P

o
lic

y
0

0
0

0
0

0

N
e

t
C

o
s

t
9

0
2

,9
2

0
2

5
,0

6
0

6
,4

5
0

0
(4

0
,1

7
0

)
8

9
4

,2
6

0

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
-

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

N
E

W
P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
S

Page 90



8
6

A
4

C
IV

IC
C

E
R

E
M

O
N

IA
L

S
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

O
T

H
E

R
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

0
8

-0
9

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
2

0
0

9
-1

0

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

1
4

7
,5

5
0

5
,1

3
0

0
0

(2
,8

6
0

)
1

4
9

,8
2

0

P
re

m
is

e
s

4
8

,0
8

0
1

,5
6

0
0

0
1

,1
4

0
5

0
,7

8
0

S
u

p
p

lie
s

&
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
7

2
,3

5
0

5
2

0
0

0
(2

0
,0

0
0

)
5

2
,8

7
0

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

5
,6

9
0

2
0

0
0

0
0

5
,8

9
0

S
u

p
p

o
rt

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

3
9

,7
3

0
1

,2
4

0
0

0
(2

,3
5

0
)

3
8

,6
2

0

C
a

p
it
a

l
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
3

4
,4

7
0

0
0

0
4

,1
3

0
3

8
,6

0
0

T
o

ta
l
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
4

7
,8

7
0

8
,6

5
0

0
0

(1
9

,9
4

0
)

3
3

6
,5

8
0

In
c
o

m
e

(6
5

,0
2

0
)

0
(1

,0
0

0
)

0
0

(6
6

,0
2

0
)

N
e

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
8

2
,8

5
0

8
,6

5
0

(1
,0

0
0

)
0

(1
9

,9
4

0
)

2
7

0
,5

6
0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
B

y

S
0

3
6

G
u

ild
h

a
ll

C
h

a
m

b
e

rs
1

2
3

,1
9

0
4

,5
4

0
(1

,0
0

0
)

0
(1

6
,1

0
0

)
1

1
0

,6
3

0

S
0

3
7

M
a

y
o

ra
lt
y

1
1

9
,5

6
0

3
,6

4
0

0
0

(3
,4

2
0

)
1

1
9

,7
8

0

S
0

3
9

C
iv

ic
H

o
s
p

it
a

lit
y

1
0

,5
4

0
4

0
0

0
(2

0
)

1
0

,5
6

0

S
0

4
0

P
u

b
lic

C
e

le
b

ra
ti
o

n
s

1
5

,9
2

0
2

9
0

0
0

(2
7

0
)

1
5

,9
4

0

S
0

4
1

T
w

in
n

in
g

1
3

,6
4

0
1

4
0

0
0

(1
3

0
)

1
3

,6
5

0

N
e

t
C

o
s

t
2

8
2

,8
5

0
8

,6
5

0
(1

,0
0

0
)

0
(1

9
,9

4
0

)
2

7
0

,5
6

0

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
-

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

N
E

W
P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
S

Page 91



8
6

A
5

D
E

M
O

C
R

A
T

IC
R

E
P

R
E

S
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
O

T
H

E
R

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E

2
0

0
8

-0
9

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
2

0
0

9
-1

0

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

1
3

,9
3

0
2

6
0

0
0

0
1

4
,1

9
0

P
re

m
is

e
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
u

p
p

lie
s

&
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
2

8
1

,2
7

0
8

,7
9

0
0

1
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
2

,8
5

0
1

,2
9

2
,9

1
0

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

7
6

0
3

0
0

0
0

7
9

0

S
u

p
p

o
rt

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

6
1

7
,8

4
0

1
8

,6
8

0
0

0
(4

2
,0

6
0

)
5

9
4

,4
6

0

C
a

p
it
a

l
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
1

,4
7

0
0

0
0

(1
,4

7
0

)
0

T
o

ta
l
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
1

5
,2

7
0

2
7

,7
6

0
0

1
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
(4

0
,6

8
0

)
1

,9
0

2
,3

5
0

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
e

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
1

5
,2

7
0

2
7

,7
6

0
0

1
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
(4

0
,6

8
0

)
1

,9
0

2
,3

5
0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
B

y

S
0

1
6

D
e

m
o

c
ra

ti
c

C
o

s
ts

5
6

1
,5

4
0

1
6

,3
2

0
0

0
(1

7
,5

7
0

)
5

6
0

,2
9

0

S
0

4
6

M
e

m
b

e
rs

E
x
p

e
n

s
e

s
3

5
3

,7
3

0
1

1
,4

4
0

0
0

(2
3

,1
1

0
)

3
4

2
,0

6
0

S
0

5
5

L
o

c
a

l
G

o
v
t
R

e
v
ie

w
0

0
0

1
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
0

1
,0

0
0

,0
0

0

N
e

t
C

o
s

t
9

1
5

,2
7

0
2

7
,7

6
0

0
1

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

(4
0

,6
8

0
)

1
,9

0
2

,3
5

0

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
-

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

N
E

W
P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
S

Page 92



8
6

A
6

G
R

A
N

T
S

/C
E

N
T

S
U

P
P

/C
O

N
S

U
L

T
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

O
T

H
E

R
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

0
8

-0
9

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
2

0
0

9
-1

0

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

P
re

m
is

e
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
u

p
p

lie
s

&
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
8

3
9

,1
4

0
0

0
0

3
,1

5
0

8
4

2
,2

9
0

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
u

p
p

o
rt

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

2
6

9
,0

0
0

8
,0

9
0

0
0

9
,9

2
0

2
8

7
,0

1
0

C
a

p
it
a

l
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
0

0
0

0
0

0

T
o

ta
l
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,1

0
8

,1
4

0
8

,0
9

0
0

0
1

3
,0

7
0

1
,1

2
9

,3
0

0

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
e

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,1

0
8

,1
4

0
8

,0
9

0
0

0
1

3
,0

7
0

1
,1

2
9

,3
0

0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
B

y

S
0

4
5

G
ra

n
ts

-
R

e
c
y
c
lin

g
0

0
0

0
0

0

S
0

4
7

G
ra

n
ts

-
A

rt
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
0

4
8

G
ra

n
ts

-
L

e
is

u
re

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
0

4
9

G
ra

n
ts

-
H

o
u

s
in

g
0

0
0

0
0

0

S
0

5
0

G
ra

n
ts

a
n

d
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
s

8
3

1
,5

2
0

7
0

0
0

0
2

,1
6

0
8

3
4

,3
8

0

S
0

5
2

E
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y

P
la

n
n

in
g

3
4

,4
7

0
1

,0
3

0
0

0
(2

,6
2

0
)

3
2

,8
8

0

S
0

5
3

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

S
a

fe
ty

8
6

,9
6

0
2

,6
1

0
0

0
(3

,5
7

0
)

8
6

,0
0

0

S
0

5
4

E
q

u
a

lit
ie

s
P

o
lic

ie
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
0

5
7

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

In
c
lu

s
io

n
&

In
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t

8
9

,4
3

0
2

,6
8

0
0

0
2

1
,7

2
0

1
1

3
,8

3
0

S
0

6
0

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
6

5
,7

6
0

1
,0

7
0

0
0

(4
,6

2
0

)
6

2
,2

1
0

N
e

t
C

o
s

t
1

,1
0

8
,1

4
0

8
,0

9
0

0
0

1
3

,0
7

0
1

,1
2

9
,3

0
0

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
-

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

N
E

W
P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
S

Page 93



8
6

A
7

U
N

A
P

P
O

V
E

R
H

E
A

D
S

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
O

T
H

E
R

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E

2
0

0
8

-0
9

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
2

0
0

9
-1

0

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

2
8

3
,0

2
0

9
,9

1
0

0
0

(3
,1

3
0

)
2

8
9

,8
0

0

P
re

m
is

e
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
u

p
p

lie
s

&
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
0

0
0

0
0

0

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
u

p
p

o
rt

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

3
8

,0
9

0
1

,1
5

0
0

0
(8

3
,5

2
0

)
(4

4
,2

8
0

)

C
a

p
it
a

l
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
0

0
0

0
0

0

T
o

ta
l
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
2

1
,1

1
0

1
1

,0
6

0
0

0
(8

6
,6

5
0

)
2

4
5

,5
2

0

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
e

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
2

1
,1

1
0

1
1

,0
6

0
0

0
(8

6
,6

5
0

)
2

4
5

,5
2

0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
B

y

S
0

5
1

U
n

a
llo

c
a

te
d

C
e

n
tr

a
l
C

o
s
ts

3
8

,0
9

0
1

,1
5

0
0

0
(8

3
,5

2
0

)
(4

4
,2

8
0

)

S
0

5
6

S
u

p
e

ra
n

n
u

a
ti
o

n
2

8
3

,0
2

0
9

,9
1

0
0

0
(3

,1
3

0
)

2
8

9
,8

0
0

N
e

t
C

o
s

t
3

2
1

,1
1

0
1

1
,0

6
0

0
0

(8
6

,6
5

0
)

2
4

5
,5

2
0

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
-

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

N
E

W
P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
S

Page 94



8
6

A
8

C
H

IE
F

E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

O
T

H
E

R
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

0
8

-0
9

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
2

0
0

9
-1

0

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

9
1

4
,1

3
0

3
1

,7
6

0
(8

,0
0

0
)

0
(4

8
,1

2
0

)
8

8
9

,7
7

0

P
re

m
is

e
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
u

p
p

lie
s

&
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
1

3
8

,1
5

0
4

3
0

(2
,0

0
0

)
0

(1
0

)
1

3
6

,5
7

0

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

4
,3

4
0

1
2

0
0

0
1

8
0

4
,6

4
0

S
u

p
p

o
rt

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

2
0

9
,1

9
0

6
,3

6
0

0
0

(1
5

,1
1

0
)

2
0

0
,4

4
0

C
a

p
it
a

l
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
1

5
,9

3
0

0
0

0
2

,9
7

0
1

8
,9

0
0

T
o

ta
l
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,2

8
1

,7
4

0
3

8
,6

7
0

(1
0

,0
0

0
)

0
(6

0
,0

9
0

)
1

,2
5

0
,3

2
0

In
c
o

m
e

(1
,2

8
1

,7
4

0
)

(4
4

,9
0

0
)

0
0

7
6

,3
2

0
(1

,2
5

0
,3

2
0

)

N
e

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
(6

,2
3

0
)

(1
0

,0
0

0
)

0
1

6
,2

3
0

0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
B

y

T
0

8
1

C
h

ie
f
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

2
0

5
,0

8
0

6
,8

1
0

0
0

(8
,9

9
0

)
2

0
2

,9
0

0

T
0

8
2

C
h

ie
f
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

S
u

p
p

o
rt

U
n

it
3

9
4

,8
0

0
1

3
,1

4
0

(6
,0

0
0

)
0

(1
1

,8
1

0
)

3
9

0
,1

3
0

T
0

8
3

M
e

m
b

e
r

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

3
2

9
,7

1
0

1
0

,3
8

0
0

0
(2

3
,9

7
0

)
3

1
6

,1
2

0

T
0

8
4

P
re

s
s

&
P

u
b

lic
R

e
la

ti
o

n
s

2
2

4
,5

8
0

4
,8

6
0

(2
9

,0
0

0
)

0
(9

,8
1

0
)

1
9

0
,6

3
0

T
0

8
5

E
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y

P
la

n
n

in
g

3
4

,4
7

0
1

,1
2

0
0

0
(2

,7
1

0
)

3
2

,8
8

0

T
0

8
6

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

In
c
lu

s
io

n
&

In
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t

8
9

,4
3

0
2

,1
9

0
2

5
,0

0
0

0
(2

,7
9

0
)

1
1

3
,8

3
0

T
0

8
7

C
h

ie
f
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

In
te

rn
a

l
R

e
c
h

a
rg

e
s

(1
,2

7
8

,0
7

0
)

(4
4

,7
3

0
)

0
0

7
6

,3
1

0
(1

,2
4

6
,4

9
0

)

N
e

t
C

o
s

t
0

(6
,2

3
0

)
(1

0
,0

0
0

)
0

1
6

,2
3

0
0

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
-

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

N
E

W
P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
S

Page 95



8
6

A
9

S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

/C
O

M
M

P
A

R
T

N
E

R
S

H
IP

S
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

O
T

H
E

R
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

0
8

-0
9

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
2

0
0

9
-1

0

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

7
1

,5
0

0
2

,4
7

0
0

0
(2

,7
5

0
)

7
1

,2
2

0

P
re

m
is

e
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
u

p
p

lie
s

&
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
3

2
5

,3
6

0
0

0
0

0
3

2
5

,3
6

0

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

8
5

0
3

0
0

0
0

8
8

0

S
u

p
p

o
rt

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

1
3

,5
5

0
4

1
0

0
0

(1
,1

2
0

)
1

2
,8

4
0

C
a

p
it
a

l
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
0

0
0

0
0

0

T
o

ta
l
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
1

1
,2

6
0

2
,9

1
0

0
0

(3
,8

7
0

)
4

1
0

,3
0

0

In
c
o

m
e

(4
1

1
,2

6
0

)
(4

,4
0

0
)

0
0

5
,3

6
0

(4
1

0
,3

0
0

)

N
e

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
(1

,4
9

0
)

0
0

1
,4

9
0

0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
B

y

S
0

7
0

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

S
a

fe
ty

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

5
3

,7
0

0
1

,7
8

0
0

0
(3

,1
9

0
)

5
2

,2
9

0

S
0

7
1

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

S
a

fe
ty

P
ro

je
c
ts

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
0

7
2

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
0

7
3

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

S
a

fe
ty

A
u

d
it

C
o

s
ts

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
0

7
4

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

S
a

fe
ty

D
ru

g
s

In
it
ia

ti
v
e

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
0

7
5

S
a

fe
r

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
In

it
ia

ti
v
e

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
0

7
6

A
n

ti
-S

o
c
ia

l
B

e
h

a
v
io

u
r

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
0

7
7

A
S

B
A

c
ti
o

n
A

re
a

F
u

n
d

0
(1

,3
4

0
)

0
0

1
,3

4
0

0

S
0

7
8

A
S

B
C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r
3

3
,2

6
0

1
,1

3
0

0
0

(6
8

0
)

3
3

,7
1

0

S
0

7
9

L
o

c
a

l
S

tr
a

te
g

ic
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
5

2
0

0
0

0
0

5
2

0

S
0

8
0

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
/S

tr
a

t/
P

a
rt

/R
e

c
h

a
rg

e
(8

7
,4

8
0

)
(3

,0
6

0
)

0
0

4
,0

2
0

(8
6

,5
2

0
)

N
e

t
C

o
s

t
0

(1
,4

9
0

)
0

0
1

,4
9

0
0

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
-

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

N
E

W
P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
S

Page 96



8
6

B
1

T
R

E
A

S
U

R
Y

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

O
T

H
E

R
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

0
8

-0
9

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
2

0
0

9
-1

0

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

2
,4

7
3

,4
7

0
8

6
,2

8
0

(7
0

,0
0

0
)

1
0

,0
0

0
(1

3
6

,7
7

0
)

2
,3

6
2

,9
8

0

P
re

m
is

e
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
u

p
p

lie
s

&
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
3

4
8

,4
7

0
4

,4
5

0
6

,0
0

0
0

1
9

,3
8

0
3

7
8

,3
0

0

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

3
2

,2
7

0
9

3
0

0
0

(2
,7

7
0

)
3

0
,4

3
0

S
u

p
p

o
rt

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

1
,9

0
8

,1
9

0
5

9
,9

3
0

0
0

(1
0

9
,8

3
0

)
1

,8
5

8
,2

9
0

C
a

p
it
a

l
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
1

1
3

,9
6

0
0

0
0

2
4

,0
0

0
1

3
7

,9
6

0

T
o

ta
l
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
,8

7
6

,3
6

0
1

5
1

,5
9

0
(6

4
,0

0
0

)
1

0
,0

0
0

(2
0

5
,9

9
0

)
4

,7
6

7
,9

6
0

In
c
o

m
e

(4
,8

7
6

,3
6

0
)

(1
3

8
,3

2
0

)
0

0
2

4
6

,7
2

0
(4

,7
6

7
,9

6
0

)

N
e

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
1

3
,2

7
0

(6
4

,0
0

0
)

1
0

,0
0

0
4

0
,7

3
0

0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
B

y

T
0

0
1

T
re

a
s
u

ry
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
7

2
8

,2
7

0
2

0
,7

0
0

6
,0

0
0

1
0

,0
0

0
1

3
,7

5
0

7
7

8
,7

2
0

T
0

0
2

C
a

s
h

ie
ri

n
g

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

1
8

3
,5

6
0

6
,0

4
0

0
0

(4
4

,2
7

0
)

1
4

5
,3

3
0

T
0

0
3

C
o

u
n

c
il

T
a

x
C

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
8

0
0

,6
8

0
2

0
,8

7
0

0
0

(5
8

,6
8

0
)

7
6

2
,8

7
0

T
0

0
4

N
N

D
R

C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
2

8
,8

4
0

6
2

0
(1

3
,8

8
0

)
0

(5
,4

9
0

)
1

0
,0

9
0

T
0

0
6

B
e

n
e

fi
ts

C
u

s
to

m
e

r
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
0

0
0

0
0

0

T
0

0
7

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
s

R
e

c
o

v
e

ry
3

2
1

,1
2

0
8

,7
2

0
(7

,7
6

0
)

0
(9

,3
8

0
)

3
1

2
,7

0
0

T
0

0
8

L
o

c
a

l
H

o
u

s
in

g
A

llo
w

a
n

c
e

S
c
h

e
m

e
0

9
2

0
0

0
(9

2
0

)
0

T
0

0
9

B
e

n
e

fi
ts

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
7

5
5

,2
1

0
5

4
,5

9
0

(2
4

,1
8

0
)

0
(7

,4
0

0
)

7
7

8
,2

2
0

T
0

1
0

B
e

n
e

fi
ts

In
v
e

s
ti
g

a
ti
o

n
3

5
7

,4
0

0
1

1
,8

9
0

(2
4

,1
8

0
)

0
(5

2
,7

1
0

)
2

9
2

,4
0

0

T
0

1
1

B
e

n
e

fi
ts

J
o

in
t
T

ra
in

in
g

P
o

s
t

2
5

,2
5

0
1

,3
1

0
0

0
(1

,8
4

0
)

2
4

,7
2

0

T
0

1
3

P
o

lic
y

T
re

a
s
u

ry
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
9

1
,6

7
0

3
,1

0
0

0
0

(4
,6

8
0

)
9

0
,0

9
0

T
0

1
5

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
v
e

S
u

p
p

o
rt

1
5

3
,7

1
0

5
,1

1
0

0
0

(3
,8

2
0

)
1

5
5

,0
0

0

U
0

8
0

T
re

a
s
u

ry
In

te
rn

a
l
R

e
h

a
rg

e
s

(3
,4

4
5

,7
1

0
)

(1
2

0
,6

0
0

)
0

0
2

1
6

,1
7

0
(3

,3
5

0
,1

4
0

)

N
e

t
C

o
s

t
0

1
3

,2
7

0
(6

4
,0

0
0

)
1

0
,0

0
0

4
0

,7
3

0
0

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
-

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

N
E

W
P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
S

Page 97



8
6

B
2

IN
T

E
R

N
A

L
A

U
D

IT
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

O
T

H
E

R
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

0
8

-0
9

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
2

0
0

9
-1

0

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

2
1

4
,1

6
0

7
,4

4
0

0
0

(1
3

,3
7

0
)

2
0

8
,2

3
0

P
re

m
is

e
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
u

p
p

lie
s

&
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
8

5
0

0
0

0
0

8
5

0

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

5
3

0
1

0
0

0
0

5
4

0

S
u

p
p

o
rt

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

3
4

,2
7

0
1

,0
2

0
0

0
(1

,2
9

0
)

3
4

,0
0

0

C
a

p
it
a

l
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
1

,4
6

0
0

0
0

(1
,4

6
0

)
0

T
o

ta
l
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
5

1
,2

7
0

8
,4

7
0

0
0

(1
6

,1
2

0
)

2
4

3
,6

2
0

In
c
o

m
e

(2
5

1
,2

7
0

)
(8

,9
3

0
)

0
0

1
6

,5
8

0
(2

4
3

,6
2

0
)

N
e

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
(4

6
0

)
0

0
4

6
0

0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
B

y

T
0

1
8

In
te

rn
a

l
A

u
d

it
2

4
1

,7
2

0
8

,0
0

0
0

0
(1

5
,8

5
0

)
2

3
3

,8
7

0

U
0

8
1

In
te

rn
a

l
A

u
d

it
R

e
c
h

a
rg

e
s

(2
4

1
,7

2
0

)
(8

,4
6

0
)

0
0

1
6

,3
1

0
(2

3
3

,8
7

0
)

N
e

t
C

o
s

t
0

(4
6

0
)

0
0

4
6

0
0

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
-

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

N
E

W
P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
S

Page 98



8
6

B
3

H
U

M
A

N
R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
O

T
H

E
R

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E

2
0

0
8

-0
9

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
2

0
0

9
-1

0

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

4
8

7
,5

7
0

1
5

,7
7

0
0

0
(3

8
,4

8
0

)
4

6
4

,8
6

0

P
re

m
is

e
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
u

p
p

lie
s

&
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
8

8
,9

6
0

9
9

0
0

0
4

,0
3

0
9

3
,9

8
0

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

2
,6

5
0

8
0

0
0

0
2

,7
3

0

S
u

p
p

o
rt

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

1
7

9
,5

6
0

5
,4

2
0

0
0

(1
1

,7
7

0
)

1
7

3
,2

1
0

C
a

p
it
a

l
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
1

6
,7

8
0

0
0

0
5

7
0

1
7

,3
5

0

T
o

ta
l
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

7
7

5
,5

2
0

2
2

,2
6

0
0

0
(4

5
,6

5
0

)
7

5
2

,1
3

0

In
c
o

m
e

(7
7

5
,5

2
0

)
(2

7
,1

4
0

)
0

0
5

0
,5

3
0

(7
5

2
,1

3
0

)

N
e

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
(4

,8
8

0
)

0
0

4
,8

8
0

0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
B

y

T
0

2
2

IT
T

ra
in

e
r

1
6

,7
6

0
4

7
0

0
0

(5
6

0
)

1
6

,6
7

0

T
0

2
4

T
ra

in
in

g
1

6
7

,7
9

0
4

,1
6

0
0

0
(5

,7
0

0
)

1
6

6
,2

5
0

T
0

2
5

H
u

m
a

n
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

4
0

5
,0

0
0

1
2

,0
8

0
0

0
(3

4
,5

5
0

)
3

8
2

,5
3

0

T
0

2
6

P
a

y
ro

ll
1

3
9

,5
1

0
3

,9
6

0
0

0
(4

,2
5

0
)

1
3

9
,2

2
0

T
0

2
7

P
o

lic
y

H
u

m
a

n
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

1
5

,8
2

0
5

2
0

0
0

(7
5

0
)

1
5

,5
9

0

U
0

8
2

H
u

m
a

n
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
R

e
c
h

a
rg

e
s

(7
4

4
,8

8
0

)
(2

6
,0

7
0

)
0

0
5

0
,6

9
0

(7
2

0
,2

6
0

)

N
e

t
C

o
s

t
0

(4
,8

8
0

)
0

0
4

,8
8

0
0

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
-

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

N
E

W
P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
S

Page 99



8
6

B
4

L
E

G
A

L
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
O

T
H

E
R

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E

2
0

0
8

-0
9

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
2

0
0

9
-1

0

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

5
4

7
,7

8
0

1
8

,3
8

0
0

0
(2

3
,3

0
0

)
5

4
2

,8
6

0

P
re

m
is

e
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
u

p
p

lie
s

&
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
4

1
,9

6
0

1
8

0
0

0
0

4
2

,1
4

0

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

1
,0

5
0

3
0

0
0

0
1

,0
8

0

S
u

p
p

o
rt

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

1
0

1
,1

0
0

3
,0

5
0

0
0

(3
,7

2
0

)
1

0
0

,4
3

0

C
a

p
it
a

l
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
8

0
0

0
0

0
0

8
0

0

T
o

ta
l
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

6
9

2
,6

9
0

2
1

,6
4

0
0

0
(2

7
,0

2
0

)
6

8
7

,3
1

0

In
c
o

m
e

(6
9

2
,6

9
0

)
(2

5
,0

0
0

)
0

0
3

0
,3

8
0

(6
8

7
,3

1
0

)

N
e

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
(3

,3
6

0
)

0
0

3
,3

6
0

0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
B

y

T
0

3
8

L
e

g
a

l
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
6

4
2

,5
7

0
1

9
,1

3
0

0
0

(2
4

,5
2

0
)

6
3

7
,1

8
0

U
0

8
3

L
e

g
a

l
In

te
rn

a
l
R

e
c
h

a
rg

e
s

(6
4

2
,5

7
0

)
(2

2
,4

9
0

)
0

0
2

7
,8

8
0

(6
3

7
,1

8
0

)

N
e

t
C

o
s

t
0

(3
,3

6
0

)
0

0
3

,3
6

0
0

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
-

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

N
E

W
P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
S

Page 100



8
6

B
5

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
C

U
S

T
O

M
E

R
S

R
V

S
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

O
T

H
E

R
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

0
8

-0
9

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
2

0
0

9
-1

0

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

9
6

2
,3

6
0

3
3

,1
0

0
0

0
(2

7
,0

2
0

)
9

6
8

,4
4

0

P
re

m
is

e
s

7
3

3
,8

0
0

2
4

,4
6

0
(7

,0
0

0
)

0
(9

1
,8

8
0

)
6

5
9

,3
8

0

S
u

p
p

lie
s

&
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
4

3
6

,4
9

0
4

,1
5

0
1

3
,0

0
0

0
(7

,9
0

0
)

4
4

5
,7

4
0

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

1
,1

0
0

2
0

0
0

(1
5

0
)

9
7

0

S
u

p
p

o
rt

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

5
2

1
,0

2
0

1
6

,3
0

0
0

0
6

3
,8

3
0

6
0

1
,1

5
0

C
a

p
it
a

l
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
2

7
6

,6
1

0
0

0
0

(9
,0

3
0

)
2

6
7

,5
8

0

T
o

ta
l
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,9

3
1

,3
8

0
7

8
,0

3
0

6
,0

0
0

0
(7

2
,1

5
0

)
2

,9
4

3
,2

6
0

In
c
o

m
e

(2
,9

3
1

,3
8

0
)

(1
0

2
,7

1
0

)
0

0
9

0
,8

3
0

(2
,9

4
3

,2
6

0
)

N
e

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
(2

4
,6

8
0

)
6

,0
0

0
0

1
8

,6
8

0
0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
B

y

T
0

4
7

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
&

G
IS

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

2
6

3
,5

1
0

5
,3

5
0

2
2

,0
0

0
0

(2
9

,9
0

0
)

2
6

0
,9

6
0

T
0

4
8

G
e

n
e

ra
l
O

ff
ic

e
1

1
1

,6
0

0
3

,3
6

0
0

0
(5

,9
5

0
)

1
0

9
,0

1
0

T
0

5
1

M
a

il
2

4
7

,4
5

0
1

,8
9

0
0

0
(4

,2
5

0
)

2
4

5
,0

9
0

T
0

5
2

T
e

le
p

h
o

n
e

s
1

4
7

,5
5

0
2

,9
4

0
(9

,0
0

0
)

0
6

2
,8

0
0

2
0

4
,2

9
0

T
0

5
4

C
iv

ic
C

e
n

tr
e

1
,1

4
3

,7
3

0
3

3
,2

8
0

(7
,0

0
0

)
0

(9
9

,1
1

0
)

1
,0

7
0

,9
0

0

T
0

5
5

C
u

s
to

m
e

r
S

e
rv

ic
e

C
e

n
tr

e
1

,0
0

9
,9

0
0

3
0

,8
3

0
0

0
3

,0
2

0
1

,0
4

3
,7

5
0

U
0

8
4

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

C
u

s
to

m
e

r
In

t
R

e
c
h

a
rg

e
s

(2
,9

2
3

,7
4

0
)

(1
0

2
,3

3
0

)
0

0
9

2
,0

7
0

(2
,9

3
4

,0
0

0
)

N
e

t
C

o
s

t
0

(2
4

,6
8

0
)

6
,0

0
0

0
1

8
,6

8
0

0

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
-

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

N
E

W
P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
S

Page 101



8
6

B
6

IT
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
O

T
H

E
R

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E

2
0

0
8

-0
9

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
2

0
0

9
-1

0

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

8
7

7
,1

3
0

3
0

,1
5

0
(1

4
,5

0
0

)
0

(8
4

,9
7

0
)

8
0

7
,8

1
0

P
re

m
is

e
s

8
,6

8
0

3
0

0
0

0
3

6
0

9
,3

4
0

S
u

p
p

lie
s

&
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
3

8
3

,8
6

0
6

,8
0

0
(1

1
,1

0
0

)
0

3
,7

0
0

3
8

3
,2

6
0

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

1
,2

1
0

3
0

0
0

0
1

,2
4

0

S
u

p
p

o
rt

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

4
8

8
,6

0
0

1
4

,7
0

0
0

0
(4

,3
9

0
)

4
9

8
,9

1
0

C
a

p
it
a

l
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
3

6
2

,4
6

0
0

0
0

(1
3

,0
6

0
)

3
4

9
,4

0
0

T
o

ta
l
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,1

2
1

,9
4

0
5

1
,9

8
0

(2
5

,6
0

0
)

0
(9

8
,3

6
0

)
2

,0
4

9
,9

6
0

In
c
o

m
e

(2
,1

2
1

,9
4

0
)

(7
3

,3
4

0
)

0
0

1
4

5
,3

2
0

(2
,0

4
9

,9
6

0
)

N
e

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
(2

1
,3

6
0

)
(2

5
,6

0
0

)
0

4
6

,9
6

0
0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
B

y

T
0

4
9

D
s
k
to

p
&

N
e

tw
o

rk
S

u
p

p
o

rt
8

5
4

,0
3

0
1

5
,4

2
0

(1
4

,5
0

0
)

0
(3

2
,4

2
0

)
8

2
2

,5
3

0

T
0

5
0

H
e

lp
d

e
s
k

&
O

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

3
7

8
,1

6
0

8
,6

1
0

9
,4

0
0

0
(3

,2
4

0
)

3
9

2
,9

3
0

T
0

5
3

C
o

p
y

C
e

n
tr

e
1

8
8

,2
5

0
5

,0
6

0
(2

0
,5

0
0

)
0

(5
,6

5
0

)
1

6
7

,1
6

0

T
0

5
9

B
u

s
in

e
s
s

D
e

v
&

S
y
s
te

m
S

u
p

p
o

rt
4

8
2

,3
2

0
1

5
,7

3
0

0
0

(4
7

,1
7

0
)

4
5

0
,8

8
0

T
0

6
0

P
o

lic
y

IT
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

1
0

8
,7

9
0

3
,5

4
0

0
0

(5
,3

8
0

)
1

0
6

,9
5

0

T
0

6
1

W
e

b
s
it
e

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
6

1
,9

0
0

2
,0

0
0

0
0

(7
,1

1
0

)
5

6
,7

9
0

T
0

6
2

E
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t
S

u
p

p
o

rt
C

o
s
ts

4
7

,8
1

0
1

,5
9

0
0

0
(2

,3
9

0
)

4
7

,0
1

0

U
0

8
5

IT
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
In

te
rn

a
l
R

e
h

a
rg

e
s

(2
,1

2
1

,2
6

0
)

(7
3

,3
1

0
)

0
0

1
5

0
,3

2
0

(2
,0

4
4

,2
5

0
)

N
e

t
C

o
s

t
0

(2
1

,3
6

0
)

(2
5

,6
0

0
)

0
4

6
,9

6
0

0

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
-

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

N
E

W
P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
S

Page 102



8
6

B
7

D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

O
T

H
E

R
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

0
8

-0
9

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
2

0
0

9
-1

0

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

1
3

0
,1

5
0

4
,5

3
0

0
0

(4
,1

8
0

)
1

3
0

,5
0

0

P
re

m
is

e
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
u

p
p

lie
s

&
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
2

,4
4

0
0

0
0

0
2

,4
4

0

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

3
8

0
1

0
0

0
0

3
9

0

S
u

p
p

o
rt

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

1
6

,8
0

0
5

0
0

0
0

(5
7

0
)

1
6

,7
3

0

C
a

p
it
a

l
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
0

0
0

0
0

0

T
o

ta
l
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
4

9
,7

7
0

5
,0

4
0

0
0

(4
,7

5
0

)
1

5
0

,0
6

0

In
c
o

m
e

(1
4

9
,7

7
0

)
(5

,2
4

0
)

0
0

4
,9

5
0

(1
5

0
,0

6
0

)

N
e

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
(2

0
0

)
0

0
2

0
0

0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
B

y

T
3

0
1

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

1
4

9
,7

5
0

5
,0

4
0

0
0

(4
,7

5
0

)
1

5
0

,0
4

0

T
3

0
2

D
ir

e
c
to

r
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
In

t
R

e
c
h

a
rg

e
(1

4
9

,7
5

0
)

(5
,2

4
0

)
0

0
4

,9
5

0
(1

5
0

,0
4

0
)

N
e

t
C

o
s

t
0

(2
0

0
)

0
0

2
0

0
0

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
-

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

N
E

W
P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
S

Page 103



Page 104

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 2 

Page 105



Page 106

This page is intentionally left blank



S
C
H
E
M
E
S
 L
IS
T
E
D
 W

IT
H
IN
 K
E
Y
 S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IC
 T
H
E
M
E
S

L
e
a
d

F
u
tu
re

O
ff
ic
e
r

C
a
te
g
o
ry

2
0
0
9
/1
0

2
0
1
0
/1
1

2
0
1
1
/1
2

Y
e
a
rs

£
£

£
£

C
E
L
E
C
T
R
O
N
IC
 C
IT
Y

1
C
o
n
ti
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
G
IS
 S
tr
a
te
g
y

J
S

C
1

4
5
,0
0
0
#

T
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
c
re
a
ti
n
g
 a
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 
d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
 o
f 

a
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
d
a
ta
 r
e
la
te
d
 t
o
 l
a
n
d
 a
n
d
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
, 
in
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 

e
n
s
u
re
 a
c
c
u
ra
te
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 d
a
ta
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s

2
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 N

e
tw

o
rk
 I
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re

P
E

C
1

3
5
,0
0
0
#

A
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 u
p
g
ra
d
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

to
 t
h
e
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 n
e
tw
o
rk
 i
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
, 
in
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 

th
e
 g
ro
w
th
 i
n
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 o
f 
h
ig
h
 b
a
n
d
w
id
th
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s

3
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 S
e
rv
e
r 
U
p
g
ra
d
e
s

P
E

C
1

5
0
,0
0
0
#

A
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 u
p
g
ra
d
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 u
ti
lis
e
 

n
e
w
 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
ie
s
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 h
ig
h
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 s
to
ra
g
e
 s
y
s
te
m
, 

w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 p
ro
v
id
e
 f
a
s
t 
a
n
d
 r
e
lia
b
le
 d
a
ta
 r
e
c
o
v
e
ry

4
E
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 D

o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 R

e
c
o
rd
s
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
(E
D
R
M
)

J
S

C
1

7
2
,8
0
0
#

T
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 p
u
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 a
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 E
D
R
M
 s
y
s
te
m
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 

a
ll 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 m

a
y
 b
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
it
h
 a
 s
y
s
te
m
 t
o
 

im
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 c
re
a
ti
o
n
, 
s
to
ra
g
e
, 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
ili
ty
, 
c
o
n
tr
o
l 
a
n
d
 

d
is
p
o
s
a
l 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
o
rd
s
 

5
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 S
y
s
te
m
 U
p
g
ra
d
e

R
N

C
1

2
0
,0
0
0
#

T
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
p
e
rs
o
n
n
e
l 
to
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 

re
m
o
te
ly
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry

6
G
V
A
 U

p
g
ra
d
e
s

P
M

C
1

2
0
,5
2
0
#

T
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 s
o
ft
w
a
re
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 m

a
in
ta
in
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 

c
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
iv
e
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
 d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 a
c
c
u
ra
te
ly
 

ta
rg
e
t 
a
n
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 f
u
tu
re
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 r
e
fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 w
o
rk
 t
o
 m

o
s
t 
n
e
e
d

7
IT
 D

e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
ta
ff
 R

e
c
h
a
rg
e
s

P
E

C
1

1
7
6
,5
0
0

1
7
6
,5
0
0

1
7
6
,5
0
0

T
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
IT
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
e
rs
, 
w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 

in
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
c
o
m
p
u
te
r 
s
o
ft
w
a
re
, 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
w
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 a
n
d
 q
u
a
lif
y
 a
s
 c
a
p
it
a
l 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

8
P
C
 R
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

P
E

C
2

1
0
0
,0
0
0
#

T
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 r
o
lli
n
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
re
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 u
p
g
ra
d
e
s
 

to
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 P
C
s

9
S
u
n
 P
la
tf
o
rm

 S
e
rv
e
rs

P
E

C
1

3
0
,0
0
0
#

T
o
 p
u
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 a
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
fo
r 
h
a
rd
w
a
re
 r
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

S
u
n
 s
e
rv
e
rs
, 
c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 h
o
s
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
ils
 c
o
re
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 

(C
a
p
it
a
)

1
0

W
e
b
s
it
e
 a
n
d
 I
n
tr
a
n
e
t 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

P
E

C
1

3
9
,2
8
0
#

T
o
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 a
n
d
 i
n
tr
a
n
e
t 

S
u
b
 T
o
ta
l 
- 
E
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 C
it
y

5
8
9
,1
0
0

1
7
6
,5
0
0

1
7
6
,5
0
0

0

G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 F
U
N
D
 -
 C
A
P
IT
A
L
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
 A
N
D
 F
U
T
U
R
E
 Y
E
A
R
S

W
h
a
t 
th
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 i
s
 t
ry
in
g
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e

S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 -
 R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S

1

Page 107



S
C
H
E
M
E
S
 L
IS
T
E
D
 W

IT
H
IN
 K
E
Y
 S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IC
 T
H
E
M
E
S

L
e
a
d

F
u
tu
re

O
ff
ic
e
r

C
a
te
g
o
ry

2
0
0
9
/1
0

2
0
1
0
/1
1

2
0
1
1
/1
2

Y
e
a
rs

£
£

£
£

G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 F
U
N
D
 -
 C
A
P
IT
A
L
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
 A
N
D
 F
U
T
U
R
E
 Y
E
A
R
S

W
h
a
t 
th
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 i
s
 t
ry
in
g
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e

S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 -
 R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S

K
A
C
H
IE
V
IN
G
 E
X
C
E
L
L
E
N
C
E
 I
N
 P
U
B
L
IC
 S
E
R
V
IC
E
S

1
C
a
p
it
a
lis
e
d
 S
ta
ff
 C

o
s
ts

A
S

C
1

3
7
0
,0
0
0

3
7
0
,0
0
0

3
7
0
,0
0
0

T
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
c
e
rt
a
in
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
, 
w
h
ic
h
 

w
ill
 b
e
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
r 
a
c
q
u
is
it
io
n
 o
f 

a
s
s
e
ts
 a
n
d
 q
u
a
lif
y
 a
s
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 

e
n
g
in
e
e
rs
, 
a
rc
h
it
e
c
ts
 a
n
d
 s
u
rv
e
y
o
rs

2
C
iv
ic
 C

e
n
tr
e
 U

p
d
a
te
 C

o
m
m
it
te
e
 R

o
o
m
 A
u
d
io
 V
is
u
a
l 
E
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t

J
S

C
1

5
0
,0
0
0

#
T
o
 r
e
p
la
c
e
 t
h
e
 c
e
ili
n
g
 m

o
u
n
te
d
 h
ig
h
 r
e
s
o
lu
ti
o
n
 p
ro
je
c
to
rs
 i
n
 

e
a
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 R
o
o
m
s

3
R
e
fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
C
iv
ic
 C
e
n
tr
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
a
l 
A
re
a
s

J
S

C
1

9
0
,0
0
0

#

T
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
re
fu
rb
is
h
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
a
l 

a
re
a
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
iv
ic
 C
e
n
tr
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
, 
re
p
la
c
in
g
 f
ir
e
 d
o
o
rs
, 

re
fu
rb
is
h
 s
ta
ff
 t
o
ile
ts
, 
u
p
g
ra
d
e
 l
if
t 
lo
b
b
ie
s
 a
n
d
 u
p
g
ra
d
e
 m

in
i 

k
it
c
h
e
n
s

S
u
b
 T
o
ta
l 
- 
A
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 E
x
c
e
ll
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 P
u
b
li
c
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

5
1
0
,0
0
0

3
7
0
,0
0
0

3
7
0
,0
0
0

0

T
O
T
A
L
 G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 F
U
N
D
 C
A
P
IT
A
L
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 -
 R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S

1
,0
9
9
,1
0
0

5
4
6
,5
0
0

5
4
6
,5
0
0

0

C
a
te
g
o
ry
 'C

1
' S

c
h
e
m
e
s

9
9
9
,1
0
0

9
1
%

5
4
6
,5
0
0

1
0
0
%

5
4
6
,5
0
0
1
0
0
%

0

C
a
te
g
o
ry
 'C

2
' S

c
h
e
m
e
s

1
0
0
,0
0
0

9
%

0
0
%

0
0
%

0

T
O
T
A
L
 G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 F
U
N
D
 C
A
P
IT
A
L
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 -
 R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S

1
,0
9
9
,1
0
0

5
4
6
,5
0
0

5
4
6
,5
0
0

0

P
re
-A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 S
c
h
e
m
e
s

5
4
6
,5
0
0

5
4
6
,5
0
0

5
4
6
,5
0
0

0

N
e
w
 B
id
s

5
5
2
,6
0
0

0
0

0

T
O
T
A
L
 G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 F
U
N
D
 C
A
P
IT
A
L
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 -
 R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S

1
,0
9
9
,1
0
0

5
4
6
,5
0
0

5
4
6
,5
0
0

0

#
In
d
ic
a
te
s
 n
e
w
 b
id
s

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
K
e
y
 T
a
b
le

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
T
re
a
s
u
ry
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

A
S

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

R
N

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

J
S

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
IT
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

P
E

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 a
n
d
 D
ir
e
c
t 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

P
M

2

Page 108



 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 3 

Page 109



Page 110

This page is intentionally left blank



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - RESOURCES

Existing Charge Recommended Charge

from 01/04/2009

Fee VAT Total Fee VAT Total

£  p £    p £     p £  p £    p £     p

A SUPPLY OF PHOTOCOPIES

Monochrome  A4 0.17 0.03 0.20 0.17 0.03 0.20

                         A3 0.34 0.06 0.40 0.35 0.05 0.40

Colour              A4 1.28 0.22 1.50 1.30 0.20 1.50

                         A3 2.55 0.45 3.00 2.61 0.39 3.00

B HIRE OF COMMITTEE ROOMS AT CIVIC CENTRE

For official and quasi-official purposes

(as determined by Committee) No Charge No Charge

Other Organisations

   Committee Room A - Bad Homburg 44.00 -        44.00 44.00 -         44.00

   (1/2 day up to 7.30pm)

   Committee Room B - Rennes 55.00 -        55.00 55.00 -         55.00

   (1/2 day up to 7.30pm)

A & B - Bad Homburg & Rennes ( as one room ) 110.00 -        110.00 110.00 -         110.00

   (1/2 day up to 7.30pm)

   (special charge after 8pm to be negotiated)

   Morning Coffee (Per cup) 0.60 0.10 0.70 0.60 0.10 0.70

   Afternoon Tea (Per cup) 0.43 0.07 0.50 0.43 0.07 0.50

C DATA PROTECTION ACT ENQUIRIES

(Maximum subject to Data Protection Act) 10.00 - 10.00 10.00 -         10.00

D COUNCIL MINUTES

Inclusion on mailing list (per annum) for:

1 Council Agenda/Committee Minutes 34.00 - 34.00 36.00 - 36.00

2 Planning Committee Agenda 39.00 - 39.00 41.00 - 41.00

3 Planning Committee Agenda and 

   Schedule of Planning Decisions 54.00 - 54.00 57.00 - 57.00

4 Other Committee/Sub-committee Agenda 29.00 - 29.00 30.00 - 30.00

E GENERAL CONVEYANCING,

SALE OF COUNCIL HOUSING, ETC.

All recharges have been based on the actual amount of work involved, the market rate and at the discretion of the

Head of Legal Services

Page 111



Page 112

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 13

Page 113

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 160

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 2007-08 Use of Resources/Data Quality Report
	7 Revenue Budget Proposals 2009/2010
	ITEM 7 Jan Report App 1
	item7 appendix 2
	ITEM 7 Jan Report App 3

	8 Capital programme 2009/2010 to 2011/2012
	item 8_Capital Appendix 1 - GF Resources Available
	Item8_Capital Appendix 2 - HRA Capital Resources Available
	Item8_Capital Appendix 3 - GF Capital Programme
	Item8_Capital Appendix 4 - HRA Capital Programme
	item 8_Capital Appendix 5 -Temp Suspension

	9 Annual Investment Strategy
	10 Corporate Debt Policy
	item 10_Coporate Debt Policy Appendix A

	11 Non-Housing AIM Budget 2009/2010
	Item11_109SCR1aimbudgetappx v3

	12 Resources Estimates - 2009/2010
	APPENDIX 1
	Appendix 1
	APPENDIX 2
	item 12 Estimates Cap Progr Appendix 2
	APPENDIX 3
	item 12 Estimates Appendix 3

	13 RAMM Project Progress Report

